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FOREWORD

This typescript, the transcribed memoir of General
Graves B. Erskine, USMC (Retired), results from a series
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in Washington, D. C., on 8, 16, 22, and 29 October, and
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4 and 11 March 1970 by Mr. Benis M. Frank for the Marine
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material to augment documentary evidence.

Oral History is essentially spoken history, the oral
recall of eyewitness impressions and observations recorded
accurately on tape in the course of an interview conducted
by an historian or an individual employing historical meth-
odology and possibly the techniques of g journalist. The
final product is a verbatim transcript containing histori-
cally valuable personal narratives relating to noteworthy
professional experiences and observations from active duty,
reserve, and retired distinguished Marines.

Unfortunately, General Erskine died before he had an
opportunity to edit his transcript. All corrections therefore,
have been made by the Oral History Unilt, History and Museums
Division. The reader is asked to bear in mind that he .is
reading a transcript of the spoken rather than the written
word. The classification of this transcript and the tape
recordings from which it is derived is OPEN, which means that
a potential user may read the transcript or audit the record-
ing upon presentation of appropriate credentials.

Copies of this memoir are deposited in the Marine Corps
Oral History Collection, Historical Division, Headquarters,
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Butler Library, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.; and
the Manuscript Collection, Breckinridge Library, Marine
Corps Development and Education Command, Quantico, Virginia.
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GENERAL: GRAVES B. ERSKINE, USMC (RETIRED)
(DECEASED)

General Graves Blanchard Erskine was born in Columbia,
Louisiana, on June 28, 1897. At the outbreak of World war
I, he was a member of the Louisiana National Guard, and
enrolled in the U. S. Marine Corps Reserve, May 21, 1917,
while working his way through Louisiana State University.
Upon graduation he reported for active duty in the Marine
Corps as a second lieutenant on. July 5, 1917.

In January 1918, he sailed for France, and as a platoon
leader in the 6th Marine Regiment, participated in the Aisne-
Margne Defensive (Chateau~Thierry), where he was wounded in
action; Belleau Wood; Bouresches; Soissons; and the St. Mihiel
Offensive, where he was agailn wounded in action. He was evac~
uated to the United States in October 1918 for hospitalization.

For bravery in action, he was awarded the Silver Star
Medal, was cited by the Commander-in-Chief, AEF, and in
General Orders of the War Department, and entitled to wear
the French Fourragere as a member of the 6th Marine Regiment.

Following recruiting duty in Kansas City, Missouri, he
was assigned foreign shore duty with the lst Provisional
Marine Brigade in Haiti; sea duty aboard the USS Olympia; and
again foreign shore duty, with the 2d Marine Brigade in Santo
Domingo. In September 1924, he became Depot Quartermaster,
Marine Barracks, Quantico, Virginia. He later completed in-
struction at the Army Infantry School, Fort Benning, Georgia,
and was assigned to the Marine Corps Schools, Quantico as an

instructor.

In March 1928, he was assigned two years! duty in
Nicaragua, serving briefly with the 2d Marine Brigade, and
later with the Nicaragua National Guard Detachment. During
this period, he organized the Presidential Guard, served as
aide and personal bodyguard to President Jose M. Moncada, and
commanded a battalion of the Guardia Nacionale in jungle
operations against organized bandits in northern Nicaragua.

Upon his return to the United States, he was an instructor
at the Basic School, Marine Barracks, Philadelphia Navy Yard;
completed the Command and General Staff School, Fort Leavenworth,
Kansas; and served as an instructor again at Marine Corps Schools,
Quantico. From January 1935 until May 1937, he was stationed
in China, serving as a member of the Marine Detachment at the
American Embassy in Peiping. In June 1937, he began a three-
year assignment as a section chief at Marine Corps Schools,
Quantico, then served as Executive Officer of the 5th Marine
Regiment at Quantico and Guantanamo Bay, Cuba.
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When World War II broke out, he was serving as Chief of
Staff, Amphibious Force, Atlantic Fleet (later redesignated
Amphibious Corps, Atlantic Fleet). In September 1942, he
joined the Amphibious Corps, Pacific Fleet, in San Diego,
California, as Chief of Staff, and performed duty in Alaska
in July and August 1943 during the planning and training
phase of the assault on Attu and Kiska in the Aleutians.
Immediately after this, he assumed duty as Chief of Staff
of the V Amphibious Corps and embarked for the Pacific area.
Overseas, he was promoted to brigadier general in November
1943 (with rank from September 1942), and was assigned
additional duty as Deputy Commander, 5th Amphibious Corps.
For exceptionally meritorious service during the assault and
capture of Kwajalein, Saipan, and Tinian, he received two
awards of the Legion of Merit, both with combat "W®. He also
performed additional duties during the Marianas campaign as
Chief of Staff of Fleet Marine Force, Pacific.

Following the Marianas operation, he was promoted to
major general in September 1944, and the following month
assumed command of the 3d Marine Division., He led the 34
Division in the battlé for Iwo Jima where members of the
division were awarded the Presidential Unit Citation for
heroism, and he was awarded the Distinguished Service Medal.

Immediately after the war, as Commanding General of the
3d Marine Division then stationed on Guam, he organized ‘
vocational schools on Guam to aid Marines under his command
in postwar trades and skills, prior to their return to

civilian life.

In October 1945, General Erskine was ordered to
Washington and as a result of a special Congressional Act
was appointed Administrator of the Retraining and Reemploy-
ment Administration (RRA). In June 1947, upon his request
to return to duty with the Marine Corps, the general assumed
command of the Marine Barracks, Marine Training and Replace-~
ment Command, Camp Pendleton, California. The following
month, with the return of the lst Marine Division from China
to Camp Pendleton, he became Commanding General of the lst
Marine Division, as well as Commanding General of Camp
Pendleton. In May 1949, he was assigned additional duty as
Deputy Commander of Fleet Marine Force, Pacific.

During this period, the Marine air units at El Toro
were molded together with the lst Marine Division troops at
Camp Pendleton, and it was this combination that embarked
for Korea when hostilities erupted in that area.




-3 -

In June 1950, the Secretary of Defense appointed
General Erskine as Chief of Military Group, Joint State-
Defense Mutual Defense Assistance Program Survey Mission
to Southeast Asis. In carrying out his assigned duties
with the Mission, he visited the Philippines, French Indo-
china, Malaya, Thailand and Indonesia. Upon completing
this assignment, General Erskine received orders in December
1950 directing him to assume duties as Commanding General of
the Department of the Pacific, San Francisco, California. He
also performed additional duties as Member of the Advisory
Group, Western Sea Frontier; and Commanding General, Marine
Corps Emergency PForces, Western Sea Frontier.

In July 1951, as a lieutenant general, he became
Commanding General, Fleet Marine Force, Atlantic. He was
authorized to retire from active service by Special Act of
Congress in June 1953 for the purpose of accepting a position
as Assistant to the Secretary of Defense as Director of
Special Operations of the Department of Defense, and served
in this post for over eight years, until October 31, 1961.

Upon his retirement from active duty in the Marine Corps,
General Erskine was advanced to four-~star rank, July 1, 1953,
by reason of having been specially commended for heroism in
combat.

General Erskine died at Bethesda Naval Hospital on
22 May 1973, and was buried with full military honors at
Arlington National Cemetery.
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MARINE CORPS DRAL WISTORY PROGRAM,

Interviswes: Gen. Graves B. ERSKINE, USHC (Ret.)
Interviewsr: fir, Benls M. Foank

Place: Gen. Erskins’s home in Washington, D,C.

Session I - 8 October 1969

Yape 1, Side 1

§: VYou have the eutline there that we sent, General?

Gen. Erskine: Yasw,

i+ But we have a little gimmick we use sometimes. I'd like te
talk %o you First aboub your early davs, before you went into the
Marine Corpe -« youp family back in Louisiena. I've never been
doun there. You are from %%xe priginally, sip?

Erskines UJriginsily from Columbias, Louisiana.

{i+ Thaet's wheresbhoubs in relation to . » .

Erskine: Sputh of ﬁannaa, about 25 miles. I was born gn o little

n{ur o o\,
an P

Pgrrineg Island. It was near Columbia ~- I guess about
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four mileos suwasy -- and vhen I was about 8 or § yesre 0ld we moved
to another farm which faced on the Ouachita River, just acrose the
river frem Columbia, Louisiane.

1 still romember my first dey in scheocl., I was 5 years old,
and I went to school in a una-rnmm'amh@mlhmusa, at 8 place called
Death Bridge. Death Bridge was really & sort of & dike that had
heon put up across the little stresm: There wss no post gffice,
it was just & country school., I went with great fear and treéidatimn
aof what might happen, because in those days the schoolmasters -~ in
this case it happeﬁad to be a woman <= ware very strict with the
youngsters and they did not spars the rod, and my grandfather had
told me that he nauer‘sxﬁae&sd me to gest a whipping in schoel or
to let any of the schoolboys lick me, that if there was sver a
man tescher that whipped ms in schosl heé wabted to konow it the™

firset thing so he could whip hinm., The old man pas quite o guy!

s Ghere did your Pamily come from originally?  Uere they New

Englunders way back?

Erokingy No. On the Graves sidey, my gramdfather was seriously
wounded in the givil Wary he came opiginally from the western park
of Virginia, and by some means in was sent south on a boat, and he

ended up in Lovisiana. Ny gzesbegrandmother was French. She

cang Fram around Columbia,; Louisisnn, someplace. She was an ,
—
] f.é, &

AT
[ Acadlanr\and was ong of those who had been pushed oub n?/qﬁAcadla |

-]

" in the garly days.
Gn the Erskine side, as far as I know they were mostly from

around that area of Louisiana. The main Glan seems to be over
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around Wiﬁﬁi@ld,lkﬁu&sianap- You might remembar that as being the

homs of Huey Long,
Gy Ob yes. But Erekine is an old Scots nams.’
Eyskine: ?aa.

i1 %o the Etakinaaapfabably ov bauk'ma?ba to the group of Scpts
that wound up down in South Caroline and Georgia. Is that possible?

£§skiﬁea It is pﬁssibl&,'yesq There aye some in Pennsylvanis,
but hat Naét‘relaiiuésa Az a matter of fact 14fuﬁ“inta them

aimgag avgryAplaaan éqt VEry.Féw in ;heﬁariﬁa'ﬁﬁrﬁs@
a:':néz' ﬂ§w, whag did your father do, sir?

'Egéki§§:: ﬂé’waé alﬁ§sma#» & dist Fag@gr@

Qg"ﬁﬁ? élmaé méga ymu:télthéiﬁéséisgiﬁéiﬁ

Erskine: 1 think ebout 60 miles.

@Q\Séiﬁha'sﬁugr‘réa;iy didn't have too mush of on effect on your

1ifs.

E#akinaﬁ fo. Well, it did in the flood saasons - spring as a rule w{
becauss the waters would back up. I remember whem I was aboub 12 or

|
|
i
i
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14 years 0ld we had » terpific flood sround my pert of the country,

and the &atar was @t lesst 5 Peet desp in ths house.

3 You mad%ﬁéil your grade a&heﬁlddﬁmﬂ agound Columbia?
£rakiﬁqg Yes, in Columbia.

fis  And then went to Loulsiasna ﬁtatﬁ.uniusrsitya
Epskines Yes, from there I went te LSU,

{3 What was your majer there, sip?

Esskinas‘ I wanted ta:ﬁa g doctop. My uncle, Dr. Jemes 0. Graves,
was @ well known and very fine surgeon, and he was praﬁti@ing in
anxmé; ;auiaiaﬁag I'thaught the woeld of him and spent g good bit
sf‘ﬁima”iﬂ B & émrt of a coepsman eround hie @laaay partiauiaw1y
in the operating room, aﬁd ! beceme Fescinated with the idea of

being @ great surgecn sowe day.
f: You went to LSU when, about? :Vau graduated, did you not?
Erskines Yes, I graduated in 1918, Thet would make it 1914 when

I went thers, I suppuss. I speciallzed mostly in the sciences,

but got a B.A. degree. I had hoped, aftsr complebing the course

at LU, to go to Tulane and take medicing there, because I gradusted

before I was 20, and my uncle told me thet if 1 went to medical
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school instead of teking s university course Pirst 1'd be too young
and nobody would have me, because I'd be sround 21 years old when
I came out. So the idea was I'd complete LSU snd then go on to

Tulane Poy medicing,
_ t, _
s How do you spell your unula?ﬁame, sir?

Erskine: It was Jamess §, (For Huarles) G.R.A.V.E.5., which is my

fivat name,

s That's right. 1 had misunderstood youw, I thought you'd sald
4. Graves., I know that you've been called by.ymur contemporaries
apd Priends either Graves or Bobby, depending on how close they
were to you and how formal oz informal they were, and by your

juniors you had the reputation of being called the Big E.
Evskines Thers are probably soms other names too! (laughs)

Gt (laughs) Now you were still in school when the war in France

-

broke out, How did the worid war affect you?

Erokines I was 8 %aniﬂv at LSU, T hag th&-prﬁuiaus year gong Lo
the border with the National Cuard, the lst Loulsiana Infaniry,

and we were labte getbing back, and shen war was declared I wans stili
a member of ths Guard. [y grandfather's lawyer was the colonel in
conmand of this regiment, and when they oidn'i cmllfsvaryha§?/§$tgm

ko war § felt pretty much upset. S0 I sent him a telegram, and
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told kum him that we had & war on and I wanted to know when the
hell we were geing. I happened to be sergeant trumpeter at that
time, He sent me a very curt note back saying to wait till I got
ordera. In the meantime meny peopls werw sipning up for the Platise
burg Training Camp, and I tried to get into that, but I was too
young -- you had to be 21, and I was nobt yet 20. Se I found mysaelf
in phet I thought was a very serious pradicament. I went down to
see the adjutent general of the Louisiane Cuard, who was thorxCmpkx
at Baton Rouge, and he gave me pretiy short ordeps and practically
threw me put of the office, and reminded me that I was only s
sergeant, and sergesnts didn't coms tp ses the adjutant gensral.

- This went on for a while, and ell my frisnde wers getting off
to Platésburg, and our Mational Guerd wasn't geing eny place, so
I went to ses the Commandant of the school; the fommandant of thg
cadats, who was then CaptHWSanderford Jarman. He 'told me-abo,tit t‘hev N
Hiarine Lorps, which st that time wanted 10 applicatiocns from
cadats at LSU for the reserve commission in the Corps, and tuwo
for probationary commissions. So I wenit down to New Orleans with
all of the candidates, end I remember two of the people on the
board there. One was majv'ﬁnﬁram Drum , the other was -- it slips

my mind now, but we aluays called him Buzzy., (Pause) Backstrom.
1z  Bath Army officers?

Erekiner No, Warines,

fir But wasn't Drum -+ there was = Hugh Drum,
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Erskines: Yes, Hugh Drum in the Army. But this was Androu Drum --

a wsll known cheractey in the Marine Corps for many yesars,

e took the examinations -- which $ae mostly oral and physical,

they had us get up and walk around s0 they could look at us and see
how we walked and so forth. 1 bhad moze experience by that time,
that ressulted from my Natianal‘auard duty, than most anyona alse.
One of the fallows that had been designated se-ens-sf by the
Comnandeant of cadsts as oneg of the two provisional commissions
flunked out on his syesight. Then the board leoked us all over,
and ‘aven though I was still under age by several months, he gave
ma‘a.mqﬁar and gave me that appointment, which I Fslt very happy

ahauii ;

{4+ These were tuo probationary sppointments to =«

Erskine: farine Corps commissions,

- Rs The pthaers would have to go through the schegl first.

Evskines Well, it was tine of wap then. The probationary
commissions lasted for tuyo yearsy at the snd of that time you took
an examination in varicus subjecis, and this was sll done under the
sypervision of a board cenvensd st Headquarters NMarine Dorps, end
depending on how you came oub on these sxaminations ybu wsre come

‘missioned or not commissionsd into the regular sepvice.

s How long after this did you leave Loulsiana?
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Erskine: Aftaer this exemination, which 1 think was in Apzril, 1 went
back to the University and I thought I was going to be ordered out
vight away. But I would not be 20 years old until the 28th of June.
Anyway I went to see the President, Col. Bpyd, and told him I
thought I'd be going to war mitﬁin a very short time, but I found
gut I had to have a diplomg, and the schoolyear hadn't ended, and
this was quite s chapter in my life. He talked to me elmost like
a father and sald he asppreciatsed my situation and he would consult
the faculty board, as to whethar they would give me credit for the
rost of the year or not. I didn’t have any ordere, I didn't know
exactly howy they ren the Marine Corps at thel time, but 1 wanted
to be ready when they called me., The faculty board declided that
they would give ma credit at the end of the'sshﬁﬁlyear for sverything
that I had a passing mark ing kkzk I had excellent marks in the
things that I had wanted to miy study, but you had so many things
you just»hgéliaigigéggﬁgéfhand somebody talked me into taking
pﬁliﬁieal scisnce, which was reslily oy downfall.

' I got clearsd on everything except pelitical science, and the
old colonel -~ this ma# an’hwnﬁrasy title -~ who taught'thiﬁ courss
was & great, big, husky Fellowi his name slips my mind at the moment.
He was @ charascter that always topped the girls un the head snd put
his arm eround them and gave them good gradss, but he raised the
devil with the cadets. Uhen 1 found out I vfiﬂ? didn't have a passing
gradeimw»I think 1 had & g:ada‘ﬁﬁ 62, and it had to be at lsast 74,
I think; I think my greds in chemistyy was'smmathing like 54 for
four years, mmgﬁéﬁgxaais gquite a difference there -+ the old colonel

et me come in to talk to him abouk ity and he just gave me the
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devil and he said, *I don't think you've opened & bogk.® I thought
{'¢ bubtter him up & little bit and I szid, "Well, when I took this
course, those who'd besn in your ciasses told me you didn't have to
open a book, you were such a marvelous professor, and all I had to
do was sit down and listen," He said, "You haven't mskss srewered
a gugsation in the entire yesr." I told him 1 konew that te be true,
but I thought I was shgﬂrbiﬁg gnough to have e passiég grage.
finally ha:aai@"ma!’ Bo I %ﬁ% lost. But I went back ta‘awe him
twice more, and on wmy third visit he finally said, "You ars so0

damn persistent 111 give vou @ passing grade to get you put of

wy class,.”® 5S¢ that's how I got my diploma at LBU,

G1 Had you ever hesrd of the Nerine Corvps before the time you

watlt down?

Erokines 1'd heard of it, but I had never beeh sseocinbed with it,
OF course I had come in contact with the Apmy a great deal, and with
the Navy on some pocasions, but I frankly knew almest nothing sbout

the Baring Corps.

§: thich I guess is pretty ouch stendavd for g lot of the young

lisutenante who came into the Harine Lorps at that Lims.

Erskine: oOh yes, 1 think so,
Eeskines So you got your diploma. Uhen did you get your orders

to repost to gctive duby?
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Ergkines 1 got my orders around the énd of July 1917, ss ! remembar,
1 was opdered tu a littia post which doesn't exist anymore, across
from Cherry Hill, Virginie. The nams esceopes me -« Winthrop « « »
Thers is a rifle range,

I was oedered there.

1 was in Washington on the 4th of July, =nd I reported sk on
the Sth of July, 1 think. I remember thet dabte very well because
gsomehow I had gotten all of my uniformd sxcept s pair of puttess,
86 1 walked around the city and Pinally sew a pair in one of the

stores here, and I called up the stors manager =« J st aotthe watchman

QqL the Aot wiho

hﬁ%htalﬂ\me who the manager was = and I told him my predicament,
and he vame down and opened the stors on the 4th of July and seld
ma that pair of putiess.
B¢ Thet was very nice,

Emrsking: That's how I can put my finger an that one,

3 Who was at Winthrop when you reported in?

S - c ot s f ' ' ' ' |
Erakinas 1 think it wae¢ LtCol. George C. Reid, a lieutenant @olonel.

s Benh Reed?

Epskines It dossn’ti anuﬂﬂ'rightq Rathey heavyset, gamd stature,

aurt of @ florid face and grey halr.

Gr I wes thinking of the other lieuvtenants.
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Erskines I was one of two Southernsrs indhot cemp.

s 0Oh zeally?

Erskiney And I had & very deep southsrn gcoent. [ had great
difficulty in getting people to understand me and understanding

the others, particularly the boys from Meine.

Gs Everyona hasl

Erskines Ooe of those fellows Frﬁm faing was anavﬁ? my tent mates;
his neme was Colomy, he wae there. Getnsr was the obther man from

the South, and he claimed he was from the South bscause he came From
ﬁklaﬁdmag At the mement I don't remembey an awful lot of ﬁaﬂe#.

It's eo long back. Colomy and I had one hell of a time understanding
gach othey and the instructors when we had 2 class at any time

would call me at every class sb they could hear me try te spesk

so they vould understend ma.
Gt Yours wes particularly a southesn aaﬁﬁﬁﬁ;ﬁaﬁh&r than o Cajun?
Erskine:r WNo, it vas purely 1ike a native dizlect,

s Very very deep southern., | o

.' Erskine: bth—uh. %ﬁﬁ}

Cam e s
LR
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G:  fen. Lejoune of course was from Louisiana. Did he have as dosp

a southern acesnt, or was his e Louisiana Fpesch sort of thing?

Erskine: 1 pever nmtiead it. I knew Ben, Lojoune guite wall.
Matter of fact he was the first Marine general I ever saw, ! think.

He was in command down at Guantico for a short time, and I pas

- as , ,
doateiled &8 the Fire Patrol officsr. He had & littles office ghich

wes @ little primitive in those dayea, I shined myself up, it was

a muddy and reiny day, and xiiiiizifgé gvery place so I'd look

real snappy when I got out theres, and he let me stand in the dooruway
about five minutes before hs spoke to6 me., He was looking at me,

and I was putiing oo my best military brece, snd finally he looked
up and he said, A1l ripht, Nepoleon, come in and tell me what you

want," {laughter)
s Did he recognize you for a felliow Loulsianan?

Erskine: Nobt for the time being. 1 made sy Fime patrol report for
the night. Then wshen he got up his shoos vere auddy ané his putiteass
were dirby and his panis wepe too big in the seat, snd I wondered,
"I den*t think I'd ever gel sway with that.®

But he was a very fins men. & vary’fimé'maWaYﬁgﬁraau;dn*t
halp but have confidence when that fallow vas &tﬁﬂﬁiﬂg apoundg

talking to you,
fis He was rathey shork, ues he wot?

Ersking: Hot very $all.
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Q.’ Pig Jug, ears?

Erskines VYme, and o sort of a French noss. 4Actually, at & distance

he reminded me of the plctures of an Indiaa.
e Yas, very dark. 0Old Gabe, I guess he wag called.

Erskines Vaa‘

G: Arvthur Gorton told me that he recalled thet he was down there
at the time that yeu reported sboard, and hs was one of the first
lieutenants or junior officers there to welcome you sbeoard. Ue
have on paper his regollections of a young, gond-looking, tall

officer From Loulsiens coming abpard.

Evskine: 1 don't remember. #ctually I don’t remember exactly
wheye I reported. (Pause) HNo, I gusss I do. They wers building
the cenp at Quantico st that time, temporazy bulldings, and we

wont from Winthrop Rifle Range to HJusntico by boat. e got off

- and merched down <~ I think there wers maybe 200 oy 300 of us in

thig group == to an area that had besn &ﬁtvaside then and was
called Officers Training Course. I think it was the first officers
tfaining counse, I dontt rsm&mbar‘any'rasepﬁiwn committes, but
Arthur Yorton was slrveady there,; and 1 bmiimu& he was sesigned te
the 79th Company et that time, which was 5@@&9 organizady it wes

part of the Znd Batialion commanded by then faj. Thomas Holcomb,
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1 went bagk to the school thore and I was billsted down.
I remesber ny bunk mate was -+ what was his name? Aand yet
I knew him so well, we used to go out on weekends and wazlk sround

the AP « ¢ = Muleahyl

s Oh, Pat Huleshy.

Epskine: Pat fulgahy.

{2 He was Just in town, by the mayﬁ

| reat
Erskine: Yea? I'd like to see old Pt again. He's 2 égaé auy .«

He didn't like hiking at zll, One day ws climbed up on a platform

. 9h | L .
. that was quita«gg, fvistion was something brond new -+ at least

to us -~ and Pab sald, "I am going to be a flier, that's a2ll thare
%gvtn itm” o he made his application, end by golly he made it,
and he- haeame g Flier ungil thﬂeuqh Korea.

1 got ths. hég?aﬁﬁx% g?ﬁ?%ﬁar taa pld vy tow heavy: Top heavy
I think, 2% that btime.  Pat was vary thin. The‘mlanaﬁ'wérmn't very
§g§§,$£tﬁeﬁg I didn'% gut dn. I use in the school & very short
%i‘m’er; ‘-""’i‘Ti‘zay'gmczaﬁ svarybody 2t the time we came in by age, and I
was the youngest one, o I found myself in, I thiﬁk, the Znd Sguady
in the rear snd, which was the lowsst,

The corporal of our scuad -- we were all Lisutenants, but we
had a corparal in the sgued -~ was a ypung follow whose namne slips
by mind at the momsnt, 3 very fine man who nade a very fine ofPicer.

He had fiever been to militery school, haé nm niliﬁazy tralﬂ;ng mhaﬁw

PO

ﬁﬁ&if&ﬁp and 1 Pelt that T uyus G\Veteran hav1ng been to the Mexican j,
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border and three years at L5U, which was rated pretiy high gs a
military school, so I was pretty disgusted that I wasn't lssening
anything that I could figurs out. Thaey were Just glving ws lectuyes
on the customs of the service, plus we had a dpill, and they were
changing the manual then from the old Navy manual which had only
thres counts to the Army which had five minimum, I gusss. And I
gould do that, I had been deing it for so long, that it was the
anly time 1 had sver instructed anybody was to try to itesch
from the Army manual

Sp I finally got pretiy well disgusted with ths school, and
this was the first school.

Then I gesigned, I sent in my resignatlion, becausa 1 felt it
was my duty to go to war. My grendfather hed always told me -
he was an pld Civil ¥War spldier ~= that when vour countzy is in
trouble vou volunteery and I felt I would not have been irue to
him if I didn't gt to war, and I didn't sep any chanicae of getting
Lo way in that school. '

When my resignation got up to the Lodgnel ~- this was Lt. Col.

P, ﬁixey -
tis by Presley M, Rixey.

Erslking: Yes, He ssnt for me and gave me guite o lecture without

peking me any reason for resigning -« gqulte o leciure on petriclism,

my duty to my counitry, all of this. Finelly he saidy “"Have you got
anything to say?" 1 saldy "Yes, that’s why I am gebting oui of
this outfit, I haven't learnod a dann thing sinse [*ve been here,

I am g@tﬁing pushed around.™ He ssid; "What are you going to dop®

i
[
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} sald, "I am going to Cenede and join the Hlack Uebteh.® And that's
exactly what I planned Lo do.

Qs Ghy the Bleck tateoh, sip?

Evskinet 1'd heard sp sich about 1%, snd they had guite = reputstion.
hnyway it seemed to Pascipate ma. Thed he saild, *I am goling to
disapprove your resignetion.® @ithin & few days 1 wes sssigned Lo
the 79th Company, which st that moment was commanded by Arthur
Yorton, and we becams wery fast Frisads and have been friends
throughout the years, He is ons of oy oldest and closest frisnds,

and a fine Fellow.

23 He's been o very good Friend 0 @6 too. 1 enjoy him ipmensely.
I don®t think I hzve met anyons who has exuded love of the Corps

g9 nuch as he hag,
frekine: He is sbsolutely sbsorbed with the Warine Covps, yes.

fix  You ktow, it's verpy funny hoariog you telk about golng to see

Col, Rixey, hecuuse I sm trying Lo recell wvho eloe went to see himfoc
The sama reasaw frote; Sen Facrsll

I think that he had to sct s.s the school chaplain -- nore peonle,

moee young lieutensnis went up to hin {pewly sppolinted lisutansnial},

wanbing Lo get oud ﬂﬂd-&ﬂﬂﬁiﬂg to 60 tomier, they'd had it. And

he would let these young lisutenants cry on his shoulder and say, |

*Looky I am here, I aw stuck hers nyselfi Tuere is nothing I can f

dia, thoss are the opders."® He must heve been s fobulous old @harmﬁt@g

|
|
|
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Erskines He He was a wondsrful man., I was his opesrations and
intelligenae officer at Peking, which was his last command, I think.
There just before he left h§ becams his exsoutive officers That was

aguite 4 coincidence, guite 8 reunion!

fl: VYessir, UWe'll tslk about Peking and we'll get to thet.
How that lst OTC, I think John Kaluf may have boen in that,

Erskine: Yas, John was thers.

fis Hp has 2 picture of thst group. We are trying to get hold
of 1%, Az a matter of faft this ic one of the sneillezy obligations
of my duby -- teying o find pictures ahd artifacte asnd memorabilia
ghich our interviewees may have stkashed away pr stoved some place
and <don't know what to do with, so we ape gathering sil this in
for the Marine Corps Historical Progresm. So I put this bug in your
heaad right now, sir.

. So you were with the 79th Cempeny. The bsttalion commander

was T. Holcomb. Uhat was he 1ike?

Erskines He wes & grand old man o every wey, I sonsideysd him

te have been one of my best commanding officers.
iz OF cougse he had 16 years in the Marine Lorps by thau.
Erskine: Yes, he hed quite s long time. UF course at that Lime

mugt of the capteits had 12 years of sgrvice. I was very friendly

with then Maj. Holoomb. Sne of my Ffirst superletces with him wag -«
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Yo were billeted in soms temporary guarters, I think esbout & pr 9
rooms, pertitioned up pértiy for the junior efficers thers. I
used to get up and walk down the street svery morning in Quantico,
douyn Barnebt Avenus at that time, and we had a little snow, And

I thought ['d show my Major how industrious i was, 20 when he canp
mgaking down ‘1 got 8 shovel, and I was out shoveling the snow off
the walk and he stopped and watched me & minute, and then he said,
"just what do you think you are doing?" I seid, "I am cleaning
off the walk here." He ssid, "Let me tsll you something, voung
man. ‘Ymu are a commissioned officer; you get paid to uss your
brain and not your hands. Now put that shovel away and get an

erderly to do it." That I've never forgotiten. (laughter)

§: 1%ve heard storiss of what Quantico was like, at that tims,

and I'd like to get your memopies of it on tape.

Erskines Guantico waes a very poor billet in my mind., Baronett
Avenus ih the rainy'émd the showy season was guite a mize of nud.
As I ramémham the story ~- of course we had no Erucks in those days
ag we have nowj we had mules pr hovses, and we had a ration and
baggage wagon for each vompany, that carrisd o few plonesr tools,
some extra ratiohs and a Fou things, soms ammuRition.

The flarine Corps bought & few of these old guad trucks with
solid tires. I think we had either two vr Four at Quanticeo.
So they ran one of these Lrucks down Barnatt Avenue one day, end
it got stuck. They sent the wther ohe in to pull it out, and it
got stuck. So aldl the trucks of the Marine Corps were stuck on

Barnett Avenue! Thay had to sgend over and get a couple of mMules ~=
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two tsams of mules -« o haul them out, Se I think most of us got

the impression that this thing was not hers to sy stay.

G Hat I understend that they bad quite 2 construction orow,

ang that it wes liks z bhoom fouwn.

Erskinss Yes it was. It was. Aw I recollest they had sald they

had 10,000 workmesn thers. You could hear the hammers going all

night long, it wes = round the clook opsration.

Qs 0Did it appear to you a2t that time that Quantico was going to
be the type of psrmanstht base that it turned oubt to be?

Erskine: N8, I never thought about it. UF course the Marine Corps

was very small when I came in. I think we had around mxthewszrd

1,080 officors. Up also had 27,000 mem, but ws only had enough

mongy for aboutb 17,500. Wost of us, I think, felt thst as soon
as the war was over they'd chop it back apain and fuantico would

probably go out of the picture sltuogether.

14 Had you thought asbout becoming a regulay flarine §$?i¢ar at

this tima?

Eeskines HNo, not yel.

G: Why don't you go on, aip, and tell us, iF you will, without

my imtarruptions, about your asssigoment to the ?ch-ﬂaﬁ@any atig

=what transpirzed from then on?
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Erakine: Camtogmmjﬂﬂhli Zane came down and témk command, (Arthur
torton was sccand in command) and H§é£g§l%gggx?gh@ ist Platoon;

I had the 2nd Plateon; I don't romember now whe had the 3Jrd; but
Juck Wast had the 4th Platoon, Jack was & big husky guy, 1 think

a fullbagk at Michigan.
A: 8y the way, sipry; did you pliay football at L5U?

Erskines Né, I did not, I didn't have time, I had fo work my wey
through college most of the time. e had a very stranuous training
schedule with lots of hiking. 1 remsmber they gobt zome cold weathsr
training ing it wasn't celled cold weathey training but it was the
game thing. We hed & few French and British instructors whe would
cone euar'aﬂd“relata the way the wap maé going and how ysu had to
iivag and they talked mostly sbout the trench life and the hazshkips
hardships. 1 remsnber ot onsg timw thers they teook our company and
lined us up., A¢ that time we had a very'heavg sHoY, dg @ matisr
of Fact the river was completely Frozen, and one time thers the
1ﬂth Artillery that had hmr$e~drawn guwa, went surpss the piver

on the ice to shoot on the range over there.
G In flaryland?
Erskines Yessir.

fiz And the river was frozen bver?
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Erskines ﬁampleteiy frozen over --'17 was a very heavy winter,
Df course in those days we ell]l wore hsavy underwear. They'd start
us asroung in single flle. The idea was net to perspire. Ue
started out with heavy overcoets and heavy underwsar, and waid
kosp moving sort of at 3 trot and when you felt you ware going
to perspire you rempved another piece of your clothing until you
got down $o your shoes, and we'd scbually be neked. Then we
slowed down and gradually aps we got 3 little coolar we pioked
up @ piece of clothing and put it back on.

I think that did us = léﬁ of good. By gelly, ws were &
pietty hardy crew when wé finished our training.

Uhen we arrived in France we had anpther pretty siiff training

ﬁchadule@

@y Did you think that cold weather training socalled had sny
gf fect on what pzaunltine you may or may not have suffered from

the influenza epidemic?

Erskines '1 ﬁhink sy ¥ Faéﬁkly do. I think it had a great deal

to do ﬁiﬁh ite I know thé%nmany of thethikas we had gwerseas
wg‘&ﬁulﬂ have ﬁﬁ pounds on our backs. e had a blanket but thot
didn't do much good high up in the Vosgee Meonteing., I remember
more btimes thaw ons I had iaiélas in my haif. We'd sleep on the
ground, I think that wae good preparation for that kind of tgaining
over there. I don't remenmber that we had any serious trouble with
the imfluanza* fa faw m? pug ﬂacple-ﬁiedi‘aua‘I don't have any

recallection of it sver having been » serious thing in my battalion,
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becaugse that's about all the people you saw ~-=- thse peovple in your

vun battalion,
G: 1've bsen told that frs. Holcomb wes expecting.
Erskine: That's right.

fis And the battalion was suppossd to mount ouft end it was held up

for 2 month, ardxze until Mpe. Holcomb was delivered,
Erskines I understand that to be true.

Qs Uhile the other units were leaving was there any unhappiness
or ghambling in the 79th Compeny or Maj., Heoloomb's battalion over

"fhédfaéﬁ-thét théy‘ﬁaﬁé héﬁ gﬂing ouL?
Erskines I havs no pecollascition of it.

@ ¥ upderstand that your batitalion marched sut to the trains,

with Maj. Holoomb leaving the battalion mounted ow his horse and so on,

Erskines Uh dh, And we yent to Philadelphia and ambarked on the
old USS Hinderson and want overseéms.

{pe funny joke hera, 1 don't know whether you'd call it & joks
or not. Arthur Worton was officer of the day. This was just as we
were mounting out =~ it might have been the night befors. Some ong
of the failaws'gbt 4 civiliﬁn friend of his to bring in a sultcase

pf ligquor. A&nd I had had mayha pne or two drinks i my 1ife up to
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that time. We were sll having o hell of a big nighty I don't think

anybody went to bed thet night, and we were raising so much rackst
thet Arthur, who"88 very serious about his duty came in with his
sword on and ordersd us tn pipe doun, and we decided that Arzthuyp

didn't have much autherity, g9 Jack llest and 1 ® caught him end

nailled his shogs to the floor., So we had our UD nailed down for oncs.

s 1 think he told the story. But hse slso sald some liguar was

forced upon him,

Erskines I don't doubt that. Ue were having & big night.

Gis And he slso told the story about how he was 0D one day ordsred

tuw chagse the prostitutes cut of Quantice.

Erakines 1 don't know that pne.

{2 I think it probably was bsfore you got there.

Erskings I don't know that thers wers any houses of prostitubion

arpund fuantico,

Gz I think what with this big work force bheps were & couple of

cribs that were set up there,

Ersking: CLould be. But we were kepi so daxt busy down thers with

oup Yroops that we nsver had much time. About the only time we got

out af the camp was to go maybe to Washington for the uweskend.
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fik I think these girle were just down there for the convenience

of the workers, who were a rough crew.

f£rskines At one time thsy had-any numbeyr of these little what uwould
be shops, before they had stores there evenj they had a gaspline
torch out, the torch would be burning there, and they sold candy,
cigarettes, all Kinds of things.

fts hat was the trip é%égizflika? You'd nsver bsen aboard . . .

You'd never heen far from Louisisne befurs this.

Erskine: No. The trip was pretty rough. I had never bsen absarg
a Navy ship. VYea I had -~ when I was in school I togk a ahozt;ggéizég
ona of my subjects wes journalism, and some degtroysrs came douwn Lo
Baton Rouge one time and I was sent down in cennection with our lab
work, which wes working with the leocsl paper, ?hsy gent me douwn to
intspview the sailors, and I.gﬁt_tn walk through thes destroyers,
and that was sbout all that I had had.

But the first thing that happebsd tb me when I was aboard w-
I was aﬁsignad’tﬂ:%ﬁagggékﬁéggﬁéﬁgﬁyx‘ 11 Hlarines who were ssnt
to different places to report what ﬁhay saw, They wers sbssrvers
and ware given @ certain ssctor to keep their eye bn, for I think
two hours. And I had uné rough time finding out becauss they ussed
sesgoing expressions,

I remember uéry clearly that one man was supposed to be at the
socuttlsbutt, and 1 hadn'{ the Faintsst ¥ idew what the scutilebutt

wags. I was marching along, and I didn't want to shew my ighorahce
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to the Marines. 1 happensed to be going along and I saw this spigot
end 1 happaned to stop, A sailer had just had @ drink of water
there, and [ said, "Where is the scubtlebuti?? He lopked st me and
he said, "That'e it right there.™ So I went to the sentry and gave
him his orders asbout the scuttlebubt.

1 think I had sbout 15 sentyies to post =-- in other words, the
syes of the ship, I remember it very clesrly. This was the last
man I had to post. 1 guess we must have hiked & couple of miles
around there because [ didn't want to show my ignorance to this
guy, the eves af the sﬁip@

flaj. Holcomb was standing right up on the bouwse and I sneaked
over to him and confided to him that 1 could not find the eyss of
the ship. He said, "You are standing on them rpight now." That |

was my last sentry to post. But it was a very rough tzip.
Rt You spent considerable time seagoing after this.

Erskips: 1In trahaﬁdrts@ maybe, in tesining, but I hed very little

saﬂ;duty"as‘5qéh.' :

§: 1 think you hed mnmlﬁhu? perhaps,

Exskines Uell, I didn't have a full tour then.

e But we are again gatting ahamﬂ'nf oursebes. You gobt to France,

‘You arrived at ft. Nazaizs on the Sth of February, Yeu were aboard

thres days before disembarking, is that correct?
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Evskine: hat was that?

s You arrived at St, Mazaire en 5 Fsbruary 1918 but didn't

dehark until three days later.
Erskine: We were thers a coupls of days anyway.
it Unlesding ship, I suppose.

Erskine: VYes. Ye had e prablam there. Arthur Yorton on one of
his tours around fuanticn had gone out soms plzce and stopped on

a ?arm\aﬁd-he saw a gmat, and he thought the conpany should have

s gpat for a mascot, su he bought this goat and brought ii back,
and gsve it to the company. And we had ong hell of a time getting
the goat aboard the ship. Ve got the goat aboard and the men hid
this gost out until we got ready io disembark., The French Pound
out sbout this gozt and they had é it about bringing a goat over
there. 1 guess it was a guestion of insoulations and so forth,

So we thought we had lost oup goat until we got douwn on board the
train and the goat showed ua. Thﬁae Fellows »- we had part of

the wag;mantal hant w~ thay-ﬁegﬁ the drum head off and put the
goat in theé drum and tried to ga%/uw and put him on huqrd the tsain.
You can't best o bunch of Marzn5$, ’

it

£x s You gan't bheat g bunch of maxzna banda, thatis Far SUDPE 4

fiow whers did you head for from St; Nazmaire?
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Erskine: e went to a ﬁréining area. Us had ﬁha&e 1ittle cggm,

8 horses and 40 men,
fis Forty-and-eight.

Erskiﬂai Ehpxef We bad w8 little straw in thoss. The officers
did have gasswnger-(aaeammnﬂatiahs), must have been the Jrd or
4th clasg becauss £hey were preotty poor accommodations,
1 can't think of the name of this training area al the moment.
But an.tha way they sidetracked the train thare.ahd we had quite a

Jittle wait.
¢  You uwent to Gondrecourt,

Erskingr That was the schoocl. I went to this schosl, But this
training area -~ en route to this training area, I'1l think of it,

2 a8 SUr8.
s I know what area you eare talking about.

Evakine: It was up in the Vosges Mountains. Uhile we wvere side~
tracked, there was @ hig cask af% g/grf;\é’ﬁp/ G R A N
officials came doun Lo Col. Les, who yas the senlor ufficer present, |
anﬁ nmmplm;nad that somebady had staien their ainawi I was on ﬁhe
sidetrack there. He turned sverybody out, celled the officers
together nd said, "Somsbody hai°RERE the wine cart over thers,

and I want you to turn every man outb amidl sample his cantesn.”
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Well, they lined them 21l up, and I had my platoon out there,
and every blessed man had the canteen full of white wine., Ang just
as I wes lsaving the sergsent rsached over te me and took mine outb,
I knew nothing about this thing. He pulled my canbesn put and he
said, "You'd better chegk veurs Liesutenant." Wekg hich I did, and
it was full. Anyway I reported I didn't find any, and I think

everybody else reported the same thing. Nobody found any wins,

it The time when you had a division oy one of the regiments in
Vorid War 11, cut in the islande, in the rear ares everybody put
ralizin jack or something undepr the washstand. You could smell it
and vou didn*t know where it was, and the only thing that directed

you there were the frult flies Piying over the washstand,

Erakines When we arrived at this place we were billsted doun,

in some cases actuslly in stables,
@t This was not Villensuve, wss 147

Erskines HNo. God, @ can®t think.

ts I know the place you mre talking abauﬁ, but I can't recall it |

either. ' (EG. Nofé: DAMBLAIN) ,
Epskine: 1 think the battalion was sctually located in twe or
three villages, The sfficers ;ibé# in homes that had been taken
over there, but the Lroops livadﬁ@ﬁah&y in stables and places like

thats sometimes the old cow was in therse with them.
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e had a protty stiff braining program thers, mostly hiking.
Thers I think I leazned a very good lesson. UJur shoss at that time
wouldn®t compare to the shoes that we have now, and blistered feel
were guite a problem. After every exsyciss we hed to inspect our
ments fest and see thai they had the propsr socks, the proper Pit,
and take care of any blisters they had., Of courss you couldn't
axpant7%dSMklé@7 to do all this with 1000 men every daye.

And see that their tosnails weras properly cut. #And I never reslized
that people could cul thelr tosnells in so many different ways and
roally wsar their shoes so thalt it maede thsm a darn poor hiksrt,

f thought of that many many years afterwards, when we'd have a

hard hike., I'11 tell you this later, I guess, but Chesty Puller

was in command at Pearl Harboy., 1 weos out with the Flset Harine
Farce there, snd be invited me to come over and ingpect his Hroofs

arw//—,aw’/ /’/’f't// {wu{ 5 ,.A//7/ cﬁ /»7<‘i c/m!

ong Saturday morning, thoy—wse , o fiay .
/;ad 7‘/11%1 >f”«0{ @uvL, P lr.h ﬁn"M +/m‘3/ a//c/ /O‘f 4// 7%’/#' 951”' o,

Then I asked that svery man in the front rank take off his
right shoe and sock,; and in the resr rank that they take off their
left shoe and sock. And I thought éézzétamulﬁ die of apoplexy.
"ihatts this?" he said. I ssid, "I want to spe what their feet
look like, and if they have proper fitting shoss and socks,”

I found o great many discrepancies. I sxplained to him that a
matt s no damk good it the inPantry unless he has fest, and his
feat hove got o be in good cénﬁitimn; ahd that's one of the most
important things. {(Pause)

I% was Prom this training canp tﬁat I wag sent g@%@h
Gondrecourt to take @ course in autamatia wpapons and muaketry»

It was the lst Apmy Corps school. I think I was there a uontl,
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tpain and thought thatte aharm Itg gﬂs
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oz maybs six weske,
i I think from 1 to %1 Qay 1918,

Erskines Uh uh. Yes, becauss mhen I came back ocur outfit moved

to ths vicinity of Beliesu lieod, up near Meaux. I astually left

‘before the school was sut. I don't know that thdy ever did Bite /e

a diplag ca”?&had hsard that the Marines had gone into action,

but the word we had was that they were near Spissons, Our paymaster

méa'in Papis, and 1 thought he would know, so I got ths train down

to Paris and went to ses theo peymaster to get a auuﬁia of months?
pay that was due. You didn*t have all the services in those days

that you have now., He mzx wrbts down on & piecs of paper "Meaux,”

‘1 had no idea where Geaux was, but it wasn't Soissons,

Tt
_ 1%
1 spent most of ay paycheck, there in Paria, and I was zXpan

7//6/’5- A’UO ////«/;/,, ad one C/j
1 srrived up at Meaux and inguired sbout the 2nd Division.
As a matter of fapt I got down to 2nd Division Headquarters, and

1 wanted to know if they ceould send an orderly with me to take me

up o the 2Znd Battalion Headquarters of the 6th Warines, Maj, Holcomb.

ihen I arrived there he looked up. Our troops had already been
in the line, and some of them were in the line st that time, and he

said, "Vou are supposed to be in schopl." I said, "Schowl is out,

lection, 1§ didn*t sxpeot you back for e week or 10 days.”

Anyway I lsft a few doys before the school ¢losed and got on the
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About three o Tour weeks later
/ We had béen in the line and had been shot up pretiy badly,
and faj. Holcomb ceme by me our place and he said, Y"You khow, you
gave me some incorrect information.” fghat was it sbout?" .
T+ was fre me.

#You said schopl wes not out wvhen you raparted.” I sald, 31 thought
I could do more hers than § could in that schoel." Anyway I gldntt
miss moye than five doys. Ue had already had our school closing

el ‘
party, in which evasybadyé@at'pratty well snockecd.
6: {lsughs) Let me turn this vver now, General, we are just

aﬁauﬁ at the end of this impex side of the tape.

End of Side 1, Tepe 1, Session l..
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Session 1 centinued

Side 2, Tape 1

B Going %o this school, sssigning young WMarines to the schools
pvey there, as I understand it was guits important. They rsally
were not too well grounded in tagtics. Uid you Vesl whan you

landed in France, ready to teke s platoon to battle?
Erskine: 1 thought so,

s OF course you had been in the National Guard, you had bsen on

expeditionary duty end had eome Apmy ground {(sxperience).

Erskines I Fel:t thot I was gualified. I don't kuow whether I was
or not. Looking back I probably wasn't too well guslified,

iz Was the schesl aif Gmndg@gaarﬁ of any help? Did yau learn any-

thing there, do you think?

Erskiney I think I leasrned somsthing in automatic weapons. We did
have machine guneg in the States, and we trained on them, wa'had the
Lewis gun which was a verpy fine gun. WU gould taka those apart at
night, repailr them, do night firing and sverything else.

then we arrived in France, it sesmed that the Aemy Avistion at
that time was shori of mechine puns, so they took our guns and put
them on alreraft and gove us this §7.50 Cheuchat #ifle, a little
subonatic pifle, and of @aursé ye'd alusys bden taught in markemanship |

te prgally sight what you ape shoobting et and hit it., With this domn
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‘ was '
thing, it £eolt like a hose, you never knew where it waem going to go,

80 we had no respect fop thet wsapon, and we thought we'd been given

a ppetby dirty deal. dhersas the Lewis gun was good and sccurats,
G2 Did you have a BAR at this time?

Erakine: No, the BAR didn't come in -= we didn't geb the BAR until
the end of the war. I think we pot most of those when we ganped

oneg time near the Army T9th Division,
s floonlight reguisition,
Erskines Yos,

s Uhat was your attitude regarding the French troops snd the

British Lroops?

Erékihéa I was nauei sround the British troops, except once in a
while we'd ses a faw British soldiers. Bubt I thought the French
troops wete uhipped, I didn't think their discipline wss very good
.?ram‘what I could see, and Ffrom o Barine's viewpoint I didn¥t think
'ﬁhmy had any‘iéea of marksmanship with 2 pifie. They wanied to
throw ¢ grenads at auwrythimg, %ﬁd‘wé wanted to L/( a1 800 yards
mway, & Little bit beywhd grenade range. I was ﬂmtbimﬁgassed at
all with the French trmm#s ﬁhmt i came in contect with,

fig hen you togk french leave, vo to spesk, of the Acmy schoosl at
gondrecourt ?Eﬂ went up be join the 78th Company in front of Belleay
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$pp Wood, at Hgoux -« I gusss battalion headguartesrs was et Meaux.
Exgkiner Yes.

it The 79th Conmpany, if I recsll, was on the pight af the Parise

fleaux Road, The S5th flarines was . «

Erskines Onh I don't know abput the right of the read, but we were
on the right of mur_battaxian, and the 9th Infantry was -« thers was
& little ravine, and~that was pur boundary, going into the town of
Bouroschas.

1 The 96th Company then must have besn on the leftb.

Erskines On our left, Capt. Duncan was in command, I for some

reason «« I gdontt know why -- was going back %o see my ceptain, I think

1 saw gapt, Duncan's body, whers he was killed.
Also we had a dentist who was acting as surgson killed right

n&ay h its'! &

s That's when Lt. Cetes took over command of the company, and

took the town of Bauresches,
Epsikeinas Uh wh,

By Uhat was it like up there?
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Ersking: It waes rough, very zough. I had the 2nd Pdatoon and wa
went over uhat they callsd going over the top $ Oc/ock
in the aftepnoon,

I dun{# vomember the disposition of the other platoons, except
that gggi%%h Platoon wasw aéZigi out az a nucleus to Form the new
company which + - .

At s
G Thatrs ag held fo reseve as cadee.

Epskine: That was the cadre for the new company. That was nobt the
best psychologys I den't think, when they gave you that reeson
because it made you fmel that you were 10D¥ sxpendable and probably
would be., 1 had about 900 yards to g through this wheat fisld,
You hear so much sbout the poppies, bk I ﬁﬁn't_ifggmbar seaiwg’ﬁa e
il bad T2t par| st of Theat 29 = CC

many pupples, but thers were some tharae, andﬂtha firg from the
Bgrmens was pretty daen initense and accurale.

I think we had only ong maschine gun company in our vegimens
at the time. It was commanded by Capt. Cole. AN I gueds he was
#aj. Cole then.

- {e hed g battalion in the brigade, ! guess.

7¢¢é%4

fit That's right, ‘Six Machine @un battalion,

Erskina: Ves. Anyway he uwes killed there, as I remember.
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Erskine: N0+that I know of., In my compsny we got a hell of a lot
of machine gun fire after we staried ocut, and it Jjust cut us to
pieces. I remember very slearly thers was pne young fellow ~w I
think he was in the 4th Platvon «- nams of Nelson, z very fine
lonking kid, one vou'd never forget. He was crawling back to get
guacuated and he was shot pight straight through the nose and he
was suych a bloody mess. And I took his first sid kit and bound up
his face and told him to ts8ll the ceptain that we wsre pinned douwn.
ﬂggif gould not advance. Nelson crawled back, wmd aboput 20 minutes
latér, and said, "I told the Captain what yoy said and he said, get

gaing, goddammit,®
B: Zsne was a pretty rough character from what I understand.

Erskines He was calm as a cucumber. He was a very fine, gentlemanly
guy, but I don't think he ever had any fasling for anybody who was in
the Heserve who didn't come from the Naval Academy.

| ‘ ecl . |
e Vary gentlemanly and very gentids. Hg had about 12 yesars®

gxperience, you sald.

Erskines Yes., He grew up in the Navy, and if vou didn't coms from
the Naval Academy vou didn't stand very high with Cept Zane. But
he was as calm as @ oucumber; I mver saw the man @xaitaggzn the
midet of firs.

fnyway we gob into the town sround 8§ or 9 o'clock and uwe
captured one machine gun getting in. This fellow was etill firings

1 walked up behind him and kicked him on a shoes he Fired a few
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more bursts and ha Finally got up, slung his gun over his shoulder.
1 was holdin ngfg}&tal'un him == a graafbig husky German, and my
hand was gmingeguzé‘lika that,

Bafore I knew it he had turned me around end was drinking sug
of my canteen, They only had about five or six men left at that
time out of 58. 1 think this boy's name was Slaktery. Anyway he
could pnever throw a grenads -- I remembersd him very wail in the
company. Yet he could play baseball, But somshow that grenads
had him foxeds he'd aim it here and it would go off hers at a 45
degree angle. He was =z gﬁed-shmt‘énd pretty much of a track man
type. I eaw hime. I wouldn't send ons of m??ﬁaﬂk and he was lost,
80 I eald, "You come here a2nd take this prisoner back ko battalion

headguarters.®
&% Gun on shouldsr and all,

Erskines Yes, he unleaded it. Ha took off with this fallow,
mavching ahead of him,

He was back, I thought in much less time than he should have
bsen hack, and I ssid, "Slattery, you shot that prisonsr.? He said,
“How dig you know?? I said, YYou didn't have time to take him back
to batbalioh headquarters. Do.n't you know you ars nobt suppussd to
‘kill prisoners?" Hb said, “Yes, but I haven't hed s chancze to kill
one of the bastards all day, all they are deoing is killing us, and
I can't gp beck bto Minnesots and tell them I dign't kill 2 German,®

Thatts how cold-blonded he was.

He  Did he laskt out the war?
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Erskines I don't know.
g: Uere you able to hold Bouresches?

Erskines Ves. I was going to say, we were supposed to rendez-vous
down around @ little water Ffountain, which wasn't sslected too wisely
because naturally the CGermans weuld logk for a watsr hole because
that's vhere most people would go to get water. Uhen I arrived
Capt. Zane wss already thare, snd he seid, "How many men do you
Chave?" I sald, " I have five, I think.® I might have had g couple
more. #nd I checked them off; and cool as a cucumber he said,

vf want you &0 go out and locate the Lermens.” 1 said, "Captain,
1 know where the Germans are." He said, YEhers are they?" I said,
“They seem to me to be all over the goddamn world.® He said,

"I am sericus., Take what you have lsft ef your platoon and go

ot and locste the Germans,® '

1 didn't have a grenads, we'd used our grenades. He orviented
mg and he said, "The iittla railroagd statien is right up there, then
the stream is down here, thers is another little stresm that gops up
heve which is on our Left.t

o I topk off with these people and thought, "By bod, this is
me lest trip." #nd we Finﬂlly'gnﬁ»gut'thﬁre, and we would crawl
up places ghere we heaxd a nuiﬁehand threw a rock, and if anybpdy
Fired back we Figursd there was o German.

Sp we gob in about 3 o'clock in the morning. It was wet,
the wheat was wet from dew, and it was cold, We cams back and we

van into this stream bed, and ceme back in pight close Lo Bouresches,

Some of the mani; {they were reslly darp good at patpoliing, very guist)
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happanad te poll 8 rock down, and when this rock rolled down I heszd
a voice that I recognized right aways it was that of Sgt. Mazarou.
Mazarou was guite a.ahara&tar in our companyg he weas tall and thin,
Ivish, suoked s pipe with a leng stem; he could be very military,
but ha had the vilest mouth, I think, of any man that I have run
inte in a long tima. ihen this rock rolled down there he came out
with a string of oaths, "You goddamn bastards, if you'd stayed with
mey you would have been in Berlin,”® 7ﬂ¢/7ﬁéf'ﬂﬁ7?)/(bu%aﬁnﬂ,
S0 I crept doun vsry carsfully, and-ﬁ*trniiﬂa
And here was Mazarou shot through the lefi, right at the knee.
He started talking again end I said, "Shut upt® He said, "You goddemn
bastards if you had stayed with me ;gsbwauld have been in Berlin in

. prit T spid A
the morning.”, "You can®t ewart walk, Ao, oNe more word @nd Lam goray 12

coock vot one. And e hrd v rhy be Foo’df/ffmcd’ /’ﬁ‘/O‘V w1

With that T coacked liien one,
Then we lugged him up the hill and braug : him in with us.

But I had to swmack him 8 couple of times more. He'd brask
put once in a whils. I opuldn't sacrifice s whole patrol to listen
to hirs (70/“0'-/(%,4 [ty -
3 How do you spell Mazarou?
Erskine: WMAZAREY, I think,
tt Tb's not z very Irish name.

Erskinazs Mo, UOF coirse he coulds*t have had a Poplish father.

8% Yes, he could have.
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Erskinas A chap ['11 Raves forget,

s Wes Cukelz ww in the Gth Marines? Or was he in tha»ﬁth Marines?
Erakins: 1 think he was. I think he was in the 5th, 1 sw not sure,
Ge 1 think probably he Wﬁ&?w

Erskine: Bub the men whom I alwéYs will be grateful tou, and who

I think had s great influsncs on my life in the sarlymlays wasl§§zsgt'

Bognard L., Fritz. Fritz wes a uery:iéarnad man. He was a graduate
Heidelbey

of ﬁﬁﬁﬁvﬁ%, s0 I understand, then he dpzig decided to becoms a priest

and he ended up finishing his education some place here in the States
Then he decided he didn't want 4o be & prisst. Uhethey that's his

correct name oy not I don't Know.

G¢ That’s the one that Gan» mﬁrtﬁn gauéfme, I remember the frame ,
Fotfies, & very fine + « .

Epsking: He snlisted in the Harine Corps, and I think he had 18

or 19 yesrs' gervice wvhen I joined the company. He had a nr@aance
that wes supsrhb. Fritz would walk like a great map in front of the
company and call atitention, I don't know the wsy he did it, but |
! guess it was the force of hie charecter or something that made
you want Lo stand attention. He was very sharp and very much to
the point in gverything he said. Fritz took a &ﬁm liking to me,

and many times I was stumped when I was out in the dpill field, and
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he uould shneak over and he would -- he slways spoke in the third
parson ~- he would say, "Haybe the Lieutenant would consider doing

this or that or something else.” Uhich I found later was pretty

damn good.
{l: Uas he & blg man?

Erskins: Yes, a good 6 fest, maybe & fest one. Wratty husky,
Fritz knew tho Navy regulations almost by heart. The paregraphs
were numbered, and he could say, "Thet's apticle 201, page B82.%
That wey. He was o very beilliant fellow. I don't think he'd
gver been considered fob commission bhecauss he wae & Germen, and
they suspecited him of being an intelligsnce agent and never found
any roason Lo continue this suspicion., Anyway he told me that lster
and I got him commissiened, |

But I think Fritz weally had & greater influsnce on my caresr

than any other ong man.

e I understand that Gen. Forton had been acting company c¢ommander
or something whan Gen. Pershing wase making an inspectiony and Feitz
knew that Porton®s pistol was not too glean, and that Pershing had
a hablt of inspecting young officers® pistols, and hs exchanged his
own for toetonts, This is at lesst Len. Wortoh's memory of it.

He spoke guite favorably and remamberved Sgt. Fritz guite well also.

Ersking: Uhen we finished this wexes pairdl e cams back in ‘and

I reportad ko the Captain on what we had found. ﬂa‘aaﬁignaﬂ me o
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1ittls sector to defend, and about that time some 15 or 28 wen from
the 2nd Englnesrs came In ag reinforcements and they were essighed
to me to hold this sector, And we had been teught never to dig in
behind the hedge: this ig the artillerymaen's viswpoint becauss it's
s0 sasy ito regisiter on a hadgs, or the edge of the woods., But I
found that sometimas I was much safer by violating this, becauss
the German aprtillery had the same thought, and unless you had
movenment to give away yYour positipn they'd never khow you were thers.
T think the hedges wes 7 feet high en, I balisve, the northeast
saction of Bouresches, Thevre was a bhig trse at the gther and of
our sector. I had I guese close to 30 men at that time, su we dug
in thers, individual foxholes, and es time went on we tisd them
together. I think we were attacked three timaes there by the Germans,

Night attacke pach time, And I found that hedge was the best

protection I could have berause to get a grenade over that hedge

they wouldn't fall an uvs, they'd heve to throw it sp high, and
they'd have to hsap grenadss or get close snough Yo throw grenades
over khEmirxieadsx that hedge.

G:  They had good fialds of fire from the other side of the hadge,

ki o

Erskine: Yes. On ong night attack they oot down their maching gun

in the street sver thers. It wasn‘t.cavareﬁ,@vidgnt;y¢ Tren fhay

vk 22 fﬁmﬁ/ba@jg pur line, but they dign't shoot close

ta the hedge. Thay thought we were further back. UYe stayed thers

LAkl we pulled oute We went back.
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Theo the 26th Divisgion came in,

Es

s 1 think se.

Erskined At dellesu Uopds. Iy was part of the Pellesu osds atiack.

A .
1 And they had tp go back to relisve them.

Erskings VYos, we went back there to relisve them., Hexwss On the
way in we went over whab %¥By colled Suicide Lana: ws were going
in B yards apset, aimost 200 men, and it was quita g long column.
The German artillery cut our company haadquartéxs, and that was
ong of the wmost intense bombardments that I think ws had, 1% just
came down, and it knocked out most of OUD . . . |

The then lst sergeant was lst Sgt. Barbsp. Fritez and Capt. Zane
didn®t gst along too well iLogsther., Keziixy Fritz, if ha thought
semething vas wrong he'd tell the gGeptain in no uncertain terns,
and he knsy his business. I think Fritz had gotben hurt or something.
Anyway he wes sway for 8 liittle while aend they put Barber in,

then Fritz came back I esked the Captain ta aas&gn him €0 mg =«
I didn't have z platoon sergeent at that time., So he did, Angd while
we wors baking cover theve im the woods == thls was a battalion
relisf thai night -~ in the midgst of this bombardment, I'11 never
forget the picture I saw; Fritz éﬁaﬁding up a&luting; “Gir, vou

are in command, what are your mrﬁer'”“

Be  1V11 be davned,
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‘ Lie down,

Erskine: And my ordesrs wsres, ”t%ﬁh%—ﬁﬁg goddammit, just as fast
WSy, Yot et ‘n Command?

T yeuvcan,"” He finally took apver, but I had to tell him aib

lgast three times, Uhen the bombagdment wes over ws collscted

pur people,; went on and mede the pelief. I think we weye wvelisving

the lst battelien of the éth, I am not sure.
e That Berry's outfit?y

Ersking: DBerry had bwen woutided,

iz Sibley's?

Erskine: All I saw, of course, was the compsny sector at that time.

Wle were right in front of the hunting lodge,

iz VYes.

o Tt Futrned oot Lo b -

Erskines Jﬁ%:%htha next moerning at dawn/we were the only company

of the battelion that mansged to make its xelaaf that night, and
here 1 was not vet 21, I spent oy 21lst birthday up thara in command
of this oubfit, and Gen. Holcomb laisr told me thet thah waa pne of
the biggest ig;élgi had in that whole battle. "This kid up hhera,

1 wonder what the hell he's lisble to do next." (1aughs)‘ But he

sald he was pretty much satisfied.

fis These whazt fislds that you went through of courss age pretty
famous in the histery of the battle of Bellesau loods, thraugh the
wheat fields. The whest was abowlt waist high, wae it mot?
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Erskings 1'd say a2lmpst up to the waist,

4 So geing through it you could Jjust aboul sse ths tips of the
wheat being snipped off by the machine guns.

Erskinet Oh yes, But the crpack is whet we'd listen to. If vou

heard 4t it didn't hit you.
s Did the German machine gun have a characteristic sound?

Exskine; Yes. WHell, it wase about the seme thing except that after
they'd passed you there'd be this fesling of the vecuum at high speed.
They had e damn good machine gun, an excellant one. 1 suppose they

had the best gun in existence at that time, .
i3 What did they have, the Spandau?

Erskinesy Er . & They\/’& 907’; a name Fre thewr.

I forgot what we called thosw.
@2 How about the HMarine marksmanship io muakétwy at this tipe?

Erekines ihen we firet went out and the Germans got outy cur people
knocksd them off at 600 vards. They couldn't undepstand i.;ba

To be a member of that battalion you had to be -~ and this was on
the old wmarksmanship couprse -« a shap sharpshooter op sxpert. 4

markaman couldn't get in, he was not eligiblae.
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s Oh veally? They wers that handpicked a group.

Erskine: Yessir. That's officers znd men,

meech
Qs Hed you done say shooting before you went into the Marine Corps?

Erskines Well, I'd hunted Prom the tims ! was 18 years old, I guess,
I'd used riflss and shotguns. The shotgun wes my basic wespon. But
I don't think 1 wes a good shot. Ag 2 matter of fact I think my
fPirst gualificatisn in the National Guard )faﬁ;ﬁkgman, But with /i
the years I think I waz an expert rifle snd pistol shot for maybe

40 years.

Bs VYou said it wae pretiy rough when you got up there and you
started sntering the lines. How would you compare the fighting in
France in Yorld Gar I with the island fighting in the Pacific in

Uopld War I1? Are there any grounds for comparison? -

Epskinas Yes, I think se, The (erman artillery wae figst class,
The Japanesa artillsry was very poorj they diden't have in these
islands amy large guantity of artillery., But they had machins guns,
and they had prenades, booby traps and guts, Th@ Germans had sense
annu§h to get the hell out or $u?reﬁdar when it wag hopeless. The
Japanese dido't. I wpas = liautanant in the one and I was & general
in the other. Uur headguariers on Iwo Jima were net ovéar 500 yards,
1 don't think, From the front line. #e'd frequently get a spray

of machine gun Fire pver there.
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Frankly, my recollection would meks me fesl -- maybe it's
because I was cleser to it Ffor = longer time -~ that WHorld flar I
was 8 little hazrder than the socslled island fighting, when we had
greatly improved veaspons over those we'd had before; although I
spent a lot of time tesching machine guns I'd frankly go back for
the individusl amldier%ggiiha old Springfield rifle ag my choicej
with proper training you can fire that rifle pretiy damn fast --
if you get the training with it. 4nd I think today marksmanship

is sort of approaching & stage where they might use a hose.
f: Well of course subtomation and « . .

Evskine: But you waste so much smmunition that way, and you psally

put an extra load on your logistics setup to keep it there.

L4

s I think this has always been a problem with the semi sr fully

aytonatic weapons.
Erskinegs It always will bs.

Gy lhen you pulled out af the ling from Belleau lWoods you went back

for the socalled R & R?
Erskings Noy we didn't have all that.
s I mean = y89x¥ you didn't gt back to Paris?

Erskings: No.
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s Just to teke new men in and o o . .

Erskins: To rsbuild the organization and train. Us'd go back to
another training arss, and from there we went back to Autreville,

I believe,
B+ Yse, Autrsville.

Erskines Then I think we went over near the Moselle River to what

wes celled a rest sectop there., And we went back %0 a little place -
I was sick snd I was away from the battalion for g 1ittle while

befiny toward the end pf this thing., I think i{hsy went pver near

the flosells River, as 1 remember. The right flank of the battalion

was down on the wast side of the Woselle River, There wers french

troops on the other side, celled the Lest Sector. This was & place ~=

this hig paiding school was not Far from there, and we ussd to

' \ , Hindenbsrg
practice our ralds, and I understend they callsd it the Hkehduge

Cireus., They would vome in and raid thess places, snd almost

svery outfit that went in there lost prisonars., Soahs French

hét éﬁr'gwlanéi that we would lose prisconers -~ bet him a champagne

dinner. e didn*t lose any prisoners but we captured soms of theip

p@mplg whan they came over, That I remember so well, but I am not

sure axactly”mhen we went in thgra.} | | Dlomd e
Anyway I had an unfertunate littls incident. -Hekum was gives

coumand of the bettalion. I went back up there, and I want right

back to my platoon. They were in this Kest sector and they wers

taking 1ife @ 1ittle bit sasy, 1 thought, I had heard the story

about everybody lost peisoners., fly instructions were the winute
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we sse snything that lookes like a barrage we get the hell out of
these tersnches., They've been here long encugh that they can
aartaialy/{g;%ég; tims they wantedd. Judd 7’6'7[ out Jato thafeee -

Therse was lots of bharbed wire thera.

I guess 1% been theyre only two days, and wy ieft flank hooksd
on to the 26th Infantry which weae part of the é;g—ﬂzmy Divieion,
Aind I heard semebody say,ggg;, I got up and looked agound, I didn't
have my whole belt on, 1 just B had y¥xwyxx my pistel stuck in my
trousers belt, And hers was a greset big husky Pellow, with slightly
reddish hair, end he wore an Aray enlisted man's unifarm with major's
xi83§3§ on, end he was giving this Maring hell there, *I am your
battalion commander.™ So I stepped up and said, "You ave not my
battalion commandery I know who Ay baéta&ian cnmmandeyr is, and this
is @ Warine sector, and you get back up in the Armyy"end shoy ap Fheee.t

#ell,; he insisted he was my batfalion commander. le had been
told several times about the Germans putting aﬁ pur uniforms and
sending spies in, issuing apders and things like that. I naver
saw it, but I am told it did hoppen more than ong ﬁihag_ He got a
little buk bit rough and I yenked put my pistol and made him stick
his hands up. He said, "I am Yaj. E.C. Uilliams, commander of the
Znd ﬂaﬁtalimn of the 6th Marinss.® 1 sald, “Hell, you den*t look
liks my bettalion cummanda#;"‘ } mayched him all the way back with
his hands up to Battelion Heaﬂquariersg I thought I had & prisonar,.

Capt. Vap Dorn was adjutent at that time, and when I merched
him in 1 could see VYan Dorn's fece just change, end I reslized that
something was wrongs #And he sald, "Tell this goddemn fool who I am,®

And he said, "This is the new battslion commander, Maj. Gilliams.®
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Qs Uas that Rpd Williams?

Bull

Erskine: WNo, BE¥¥ Gilliems, And I thought, "Boyp that has Finished

me." ({laughs) find then I said, "I am sorry, I have bsen away from

the battalion, I dido't know, and I dor’*it take anybody's word for

anything up on that line, if I don't know them. That's the way we

gun 1t up thers.® And hs was new oveyr there toy at the time.
Anyway he didn®t say much, he sort of half smiled, and he

said, "About face.™ 1 dida'¢ know whether he wae going to shoot

me in the back or not. He sald, "Now double bime all the way hack

to your £P." And I did. ({laughter)
s Bubt shouldn't there have been an order notifying . +

Erskine: They didn’t have any urders.

hen 1 went in, my Captain was & new captain, I didn't know
him and I didn't care for him, and 1 went pight back to my platoon,
They had some young fellow up thsre in command of it, end I toeld
him to gst out, "This is my platoon, I organized it, and goddann
ity that's that," »

s Uhat happened to Zane?

Erekines Oh Zene in Bellesu Woods was hit, wuunﬁéd, and lst Sgt.
Barber was killed. This is when we went in to make this relief.
I think we had abgut 15 or 20, maybe more, wounded and killed.

He went to the heospital, wes evacuated, ang disd of influehzae
xWBE e was in the hospital, |
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fis You were wounded on the 25th of June in the hip, but you weren't
svacuatsd,
Erskiney That's right. Maktter of fact thet was & couple of days
bwfmr@, because we ware back in the wanda‘ﬁhmrs, and the srtillepy
got us, and hit ma, it?braisad my hip ﬂndigwﬁ a fragment in my leg.
But I could still walk.
Pont-d- Mousson was the name of the place in this west sector.
e were sent back to another camp to get veady to go into

3¢ Mihiel.

fis You commended the company fmr.abQut'tw& weeks in 8slleau Uoods.
Erekine: YVes,

43 From June 26th until July 10th,

Erakings flust have haeﬁf

e Hag Qgr&ﬂn been wounded and evecuated already?

Exékiya: iorton was hit the first day.

fiz  In Belleau Uoods?

Erskitiog o, this wes on ﬁh&/Triangle Farm. This was j&at beforg ==

I thiok it was one or Lwo days befors I pot back from thﬁ'aaﬁamla
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He was shob through the throat, and I gon't think he ever did get back
s Mo, 1 don't think sp. Then he was gassad,

Epskines He might have gotten some gas., But hs got hit through the

throat., UWUhether he had a.ny other wounds I am not sure.

oo oflack
fis Did you ever come uﬁﬂer”g88<ﬁf?ﬁﬁ%8?

Epakine: Yes. Uhen we went through the sresas I got burned & little

bit douwn around my crotch.
i That's whege it genspally wound up.

Erekines lUherever you had perspiration. And some in the lungs,

But I never went to the hosplital bith it.

G Lot's see. Yau went up to --
Now this Belleau WUoods operstion, the Army as I resall

classified it as the Sisne«flarne offensive, Chéteau Thisrey.

Epskine: 1t was included, I think,

N

iz - It wae lncluded, They never gave credit . . .

Erskine: It wae o smell ares, The Aisne-iarne cavers quits &
large avea. I don't know gxactly how they plicked out the names }

for thesa things. : ‘ | f
‘ |
|
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Incidentally, at Bellsau Ucods, we wesre up there and ws had =
again I dug in right at the edge of the woods. The place was just
coversd with dead fermang. 1 sent a working party out thers when
I could == %@Egé%gaxﬁ sone guys that needed gsome sort of punishwment.
Apd around the crest of the hill we put a number of Lermans, we
propped them up with ouy rifles and put American helmets on their
haads, This was on the crest of the ridge, whsre the Lprmans would
think we should be, Us were actuslly 108 yards or more, dug ocut
at the edge of the woods, where we could sse what the hell was going

71'/7'65 had i ordee. iathe AEK= —/i/:710 ‘/'1’-;}10"/' w/ DU [C[m‘{'IL\Z-‘ 2 e
oft. Then s radsrethor e, x B

&%4[)$ was sitting in my Toxhols and Fritz was right next to me
one day, when a gentleman in a French helmet and an arsband -- a
white anhd gresn srmhand ~- came up {(and he hed an orderly with him
who had the same kind of thing), very nsatly dresssd, and he said,

"gho is in command here?” 1 was siiting in my Poxhole and I said,
Qo wirtea preHy cocky Licattuwaq v . Efstrue [t

@

"iho the hell wanis to knum?"/la was company commandgi. And I
was just about < {. ) It's the snly way to do it.
jere's Sawe fresheys whos come wp hee,

Then I thought -~ my first impressicn was that he was a war
cmfresymﬁdentg and I had hesrd some of the stories they had baen
writing about uwe and I didn®t like them, and I had no damn use
far thest yp there. Hg said, "I am your brigade commander.® 1 sald,
"Pontt give me that, I know my brigade commander, and it's nob you.”®

Fritz stood dp and tpok a8 lopk, and he motioned to me to gat
up. I got up and 1 looksd on the other side of his shoulder -«
brigadier gensrale "I don't kaow what goddamn apmy you ape ing
but you®d better pull out of hare pratty damn guick. s don®*t

, . X _ t
tolerate any goddamn strangers up bere.® 1t turned out to be Herbord,
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Finally I made him show me his identification. He had it.

And I told him, "You don't know how close you came Lo really
< ff cyald bave been terr bl | Aaol 5497“%/;’;;/ ”’ui{é;’f j/arf:&
C{)/I,‘//‘th C{J}a_,) 6(4 fwd/ulS?"'a’(/ﬂ f ’flh/’e— a,ﬁ ?Od %\:’Z\f’. 4n;2wcjy ”’1/(:55

He never said a word. He emiled and said, "Npw show me your

getting it up here.

positions.® I took him down aryound the edge of the woods and

showed himyand Shery T shoudl him f Gtrmans ap thee o the (o910a [ pos Fiams Ao occt’d

He sald, ®*Don't you know, haan't anybody told vou that it’s
forbidden to dig in at the edge of the woods?" 1 said, "Yes, I

jn The ALF s ot
koows you asre aok doing it.

know about it. But everybody alse

~ The Germans know where you are, but they don't know where I am.”

a2 /b4 f."fg thern af belrind &5, ’
And they had been shalling the placey And 1 zaid, "I don't think

I had one man killed, and I think cnly two wounded up thers during
that period.”

He shook his head and he said, "How long have you been in
gommang of the company?" 1 told him, "“Just aboul a wesk, I think."
“How ©ld are you?' I sald, "1'l} be 2! in a couple of days.*

He sgid, "You want i command this company?' I said; "Yes.," He said,

"If anyhody sver relisves you, you just communicate with me and you

will get it back.”

s Oh boy! He becamp guite a good frisnd of the Marine Corps.
Erskines ©Oh yes, the farine Lorps made hims

Y @ ﬁ rm% 7

the

32 You probably chipped in for that pﬁrtrait‘that’s down thers in

Na Vy f»:l U?:) o

/ | |
' Probably did. | ' ' |

Ersking: I don't doubt it./ He wos o good man, a hell of & good mgn. |
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He understood i thought, #oops, o, because when (gave him a
Aongure /(xsﬂ;/ﬂg

—e—&eson, he nover said & word, he just seort ef
L ADS~

smiled, 1 guess he thought, "This young fellow will get the weeks

wezd sognery or latsr.”

s So few of the staff and general officers came up te the front,
7L/7.{C“7L C‘ﬂ:}je e 7[/16 745747‘- AN

E£rskinet I never expecisd %o ses him up there. 1 thought he was

8 newspaparman. Hy had a .,

d: uhat did C stsnd Pord

Ersking: I don't know. I didn't Baue to yse it enymors se I never

inquired.,

82 Of couprse Floyd Gibbons was wounded and laoast his eye at Belleau
fioods, which of course gave prominence to the WMarine Corps and later
ied to this Army attitude regsrding the Werine Corps, @8 yosu probably

gxperienced and well know,
Erskinay VYes.
4y Well, General, it's & couple of ninutes before 12 and you have

a deadlineg, 1 think this is s guod place %o snd the session right

RO o | |
: N - N Q i .
Epskines: HRLL right. | Very good, sip.

End of Side 2, Tape 1, End of Ssasion 1.
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Session Il - 16 October 1969

Jope L, Sids 1

Gz #s we copcluded pur first session last time, Gensral, we were
still in Belleau Wood., You were in command of the 79th Lompany at

this timeg. You'd besn wounded, but had not begn evacuated, 1 think

you'd been hit in the hip,

Epskines I was hit on my left side and bruised pratty badly on
the hip, but I was still able to carpy on with the help of a hospital

COrpenan.

G Alsp just asbout this time you chne down with the flu.

o

Epskine: 1 ceme down with the flu, but I can'i QULuQ place where this
’a”pg“ﬁﬁyz remember hiking out wlth the company, and it was very bad westher,
and the next morning I had ong hell of e bad cold and a pretty high
fever. So the docter turned me in, and 1 wes in the bunk in the
camp there feor sbout thres or four days. In the meantime, the
outfit das ovdered up to Soissons, end I ﬁ%ﬁggﬁggﬁxxﬁz Just in time
to cabtch up with them. They lefi and left me in the socslled sick
ﬁggyat that time, but I mareged by means of rides on trucks st cefere
to rejoin them the night before the attack ab Soissuns,
iy This was at Pont-a-Foussan?
Ewsking: Hoy Ponteaeloussen was down ab the other end of ths sentor.

This vas Scissons, the big drive that went in st Yoissons. I don't J
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remember the dete., But the Znd Division was ordered up there.
e had no real formal marching orders as was the ususl cess,
¥ was Jjust soert of an informal thing in a way, becausse the
Divigion Commander called in the regimenitsl cemmanders and said,
*This is where we ave going, you have so meny trucks.® And he
Just marked it ocut oh the map, =nd that's how we got to Solssons.
te got there on time, belisve it or not, in spite of all this
congestion that we ran into,

But I did not make the march ug there becauss of the flu
that I'd just gotten gver, And incidentally I was knocked put
with a concussion the First hour, I guess, and evacuated bagk to
Paris. I was first put in a haospital behind the lines thers, the
pame of which I don't romember. Thé Geprmans came over end bombed
this liktle hospital, ond we were all taoken cul and put mrxihe
putside of the hospital in the open, then put on e Ltrain and taken
‘to Paris. It turned out thaet I hed, I guess, & slight concussion.
I was sent to Hospitsl No. 5, as I remember, and they had nuite g
number of casualties, and since I didn't bave any open wounds or
anything, I lay arcund zight on the ground for = large part of the
first day of my arrival. Finally they took me in for an examication.
They were suppesed to bhave some of the best doctors in the country
in this particular hospital. 1 had a very sore heads swd the right
side of my head was very sore, you could hardly touch it,; so the
dectors decided that I had & mastoid. The next thing I knew they
had me an the operating table. I flgured that this wasn't right,
s I got up from the sperating tshle and said, "No operation on me

until you find out what the hell is wrong with me.® I found myself
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evacuated from there very aquickly to another bospital, just ouiside

Nantes, and thers a doctor came in and gave me about the seme
exanination, tapping me on the'haad, end it was very sore then,
So I gave him a plece of my mind, and 1 didn't get much attention
for about a day there, Finally a nurse ceme in and asked mp if
she couldn’t syringe out my epare, because it looked like T had =
clet of bleood in my ears. And she did, and by golly that was all
that kwas wrong with me. I might heve besn g littls insensitive,
not listening to ths deome doctors, but I am glad ¥ was, I wase
around there sbout a week or 10 days, I guess, and ! peceversd
from this secalled sar infection.

Then I weni back to my cutPit, which uwas u# I think in the

Pont-a-Mousson area at that timey
0 The Harbache sscior.

Egskinaa I think that's what it's called, . Hy memery on those
points is sort of hazy at this time.

;@

¢ A this time you wers had the 2nd Plataon.

Erskines 2nd Platoon, 79th Company. Bull Williams had religved
Caig Hﬁlmam&'és‘mux,hatﬁaliﬁn commander, and Holcomb had become
the 1iwutanant calonal of the ragiment. It was a quiet sector.
That‘s tha oné 1 mantmaned in the previous conversation as being
tha seatmr in whiah ﬁhe Ezgaam bgt buyr ﬁulmnal that we would losge
ﬁ?haﬂﬁﬁfﬂp but wa d;dn’t. ﬁctually we captured some priscners

whan the bqrmana nada one of their raiding sttacks. This was an
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area where they ussd to pyaxx practice their ralding,
I think it's celled the Hindenberg Clircus School, which wes located
not far from that area.
t: Houw long did you remain there?
£rekines I think g couple of yseks.
s Yes, snd then you tmngﬁgmr the « « .
Erekine: Us moved back tu enother training arsa. He got some

raplacsments, I remember o tough hike, I think about 20 or 28

miles, in which we left just efter dark znd got Xtk into this litile

camp about & or 8 o'cleock the next merning. It was really a tough one.

fis A lot of hiking, into position,

Erekiney Yes, this was before the day of the jesp. Hiking was
considerad gowud braining and a1§39§i$$mplinary trmining,m%?naﬁ
ﬂnéy ﬁ3 toughened up the suldier, but by golly it took e lot of

grit somstimes. to make that hike.

fis The ides of hiking, say 20-25 wmiles or so and being ready to

fight once you sttained your line of dépeirtzee .. .

trakine: That has happened morpse than oncs!
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i Now an the 25th you were detzilsd as batialion adjutant of the

2nd Batbtalion 6th Marines,

Erskine: Yes, that was in the avea of Autreville, which waa the

battalion hesadquarters at that time.
Gt 1 think about that time you were also promoted to captain.

Erzkine: HNo, I never got my captaints bars until gfter 1 got homa,

gfter the war.
s Did you get back pay for all this time?

Epskine: No. 1 don’t thipk I was actuslly promoted to captain.
Tharalgss something wrong theree (Pmuse} Oh yss, you are right,

! made temporary caphain, then towpard the end of the wggﬁghey
gtarted cutting back I dropped back to lst lieutenant.

ffr That's right, in September of 1919,

Evskines Ygs. Then I wenit to Haiti. Let's sees 1 went on
recruiting duty Por a brief period, then 1 was sent doun te Haitd,

1 was thare only sbout six months, I think, when I was ordered home
on tepporary duty to take the Guerd of Honor for the Unkrown Soldier

to ﬁurmga, pick up the body on bonpd the USSx ﬁl;m,ia; and bring

it home.



Eprskineg -~ 61

G: But we are getting a little ahsad of ourselves, because ue
haven*t finished licrld Sier I yat! Was there any more action after

you were assignhed to the Marbache sactor?

Erskines VYes, we went into S5t Mihiel. At that time 1'% been made
bettalion scout efficer. Gur battalion, as 1 remember, when we
jumped off at 5t Nihisl, we had ancther one of thoss terrific hikes
to get into pvsitiaﬁ, and this was ons of the worst traffic tisups
I*ve sver seen -- troops were marching in the ditches alongsids the
roady we had ong battalion on one side, and another battslion in
single file, at night, and sometimes the BPs had nesver heard of

the unit that they wers supposed ip direct to a certain ares, and

we got into our position I think two or thres days before the attack,
4311 night marches up in the forward ares. and we Jumped off in the
morning. Maj. Williams, svidently jokingly, told me that when our
battalion paseed through the leading bstitaslion I would preceds the
battalion 1000 yarde and keep him informed on the ensmy situaticn,

I thought the man was serious. Ue had all our contects, we had men
wp with the leading bettalion. %o whsn we got ready to pass through
I got ready to move out, because an order is en order, and he laughed

and he said, "No, we won't do that how.”

fis That would be with the scout company.

Epsking: Ue had & platoon of scouts in the Bka batialion headquarters,’

and I was what they called the scout officer.
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is That was vary much like what Gen., Thomas did, I think.
Erskine: T don't know what Jearry was doing.

Gt I think he was @ sergeanty scout in Johnny-tha-Heard Hughses®
. ] s
battalion. Did yagf%aj. ar {Lt, Col. Hughes?
Erskine: Yes. I didn't know him ton well., 1 was a lisutenant,
and I don't think meny lisutensnts knew Jehnny very well. He
ssamed to be a pretiy tough customer to most of the junior officers.

He had s good sutfit, though, as I vemembar. The men sort of gave

me the imprsssion that if you served with Johnny Hughes and survived

you were all right.

s Hat You were wounded again, I understand, on the 1&th,
Erskine: That was in $t; Bihisl,

1y This was pretty bad I am told.

Erskine: I got 2 pretty severe wound., e had gone through and
gbtten our objective and we were sort ef in a resdarve position
Just outside ef Thiscourt. 1 wae sent on numerous patrols therse
at night <~ I gusss wes were there four or five days. Ue wers
ordored to go up -~ I think it wss the 3rd Battalion of the 6th
flavrings in line, and Maj. Williams wes not the best map reader in

the world, and he didn't listen to his junior officess vepry much,
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I thought 1 knew the ground very, very well, having bheen on night
patrol svery night I'd been thsre. Thers was a little stresm theat
1'1] nevsr forget, called fup ~ de~flad. 1 knew this battalion
waa Jjust south of that stresam -« there was a little bridge scroes.

1 crossad that bridge a couple of times, Uhen he started oul he
gpave very sksichy erders, snd as 1 remember the batialion wag lined
up, you might say, in & column of squads, one right behind the other
xighixkt down through this road and acrues this bridgs.

I had & pretty good idea of the Front lines because I'd passed
through them seviiié times st night, and I'd watched them in the
daylight, And t#a%éé-g§}
his horse. Hp sluays expected me to keep up with him, and run

“doun on this road, and the fajor was on

half 3 mile around the countryside and come back angd keep him posted

on what was going on.
53w,

Teey got douwn and I saw they wers going te hesd for this bridge,
and I acked the Major if 9Ru)E8mes going to cross the bridgs, end he
sgid Yes. I said, "8y fod, that's right in the middle of te man's
land. 1've been out thers on patrol.® He said, "Yob don't know
what You are talking eabout,® Sp he kept marching, and we had a
little edvancs guard, we didn't have much. e had mostly guides
from the eother battalion. Uhy the guides let these people go there,
I don't know.

This bit of action is written up, I believe, in the 2Znd
ffivision's history as sort of a specisl operation. &@111 it
was special. I kept pulling at the Major's leg whils he was
riding sleng and tslling him, “You ars going right in thévmiﬁdls
of no mants land.™ Finaslly he stopped and halisd ithe outfit doun
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the road. IHUY got off and took his flashlight and said, “Come
here and show me where you think we ave. I know whers I am.®

I said, "No, sir, the place is full of Germens right up there.
I've besen thsre, I koow, 1 am not coming near that flashlight,®
He finally guve me a tongue lashing, got on his herss and started
the march and we hadn't gone 50 yards before it seemad like svery
mashing gun in the world spened up. Ue had what I guess they call
now an SOP -~ Standsid Opersting Procedures e thtt ot oo evee

surprised thet the lseding unit would continue to go ahsad, the

second would go to the right, the third to the left, and ~ — /n <ach
é@f%q/@vr:v~ _ and the fourth would be in reserve.

g bad four companies in the battzlion at the time,

They just broke right out without any orders ~~ 8o Far as

| | Lprdunately

know, I neuar-heard an arder. Bugﬂthiﬁ maghine gun Fire was too
high and it missed, We didn't have many people hurt in this
particular thing: as I romember we only had about 190 cesualties
altpgether.

But in this situation we kept moving forward. I weni outl
with 2 cﬂupla;af my éamuta,k And Bill Uhlrichy who'B8s the aargéant
ma jor of the ﬁa%talimn ét that time, went with me. Tom Uirt was
also in my scout alaﬁﬁ@na He is rgtirad now as & colepal, 1 think
he is in'mashingﬁﬂn harm'sﬁme place, He was a brand new 2nd lieutenant
then. It was Jjust before daylight, an§ i‘thaught I gaw aﬁma'mavamsntn‘
I lay down and 1 saw ény number, I thought, nP.Carmanvsmldiérs, |

mﬁuiﬁg\ﬁaﬁkward, mbviﬁg away frmm ua,‘ﬁﬁmghﬁwgilintﬁ 8 little

woods. 5o I went back and told the Major about this right avay,

and he séid, "wﬁlig goddamn it,; take 2 coupls of people and go
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down there and capiture them." S0 I took Bill Uhlrich, Tom Wirt,
and some place along the line we picked up a soldiep in that night
magch, and ha}gitachnd himeself to ue. There werse sbout 10 of us
altogether. e rushed down this plsce and we saw a few Germans in
this little woovds, just aboul dawn, so we rushed in and I told Bill,
who could speak German, to tell them that they were surrounded and
to surrender. For a moement sverything was sort of guist, and some
of theom threw down their arms. Theore must have been 150 or 200
people in this wopds., Uy started cellscting them, and I put Uhlrich
iﬂdfygécaua@ he could speak German in chargs of thess prisoners, and 1
think they were 40-008 wAXXAXXXXXXXRXXAxxx Prisoners that we
got out of there with.

Finelly some wise German figured they were besing fooled, so
they steried shooting,and we started firving back; and for soms
reason they started withdrewing and goding up the hiii;ykﬁﬁkziirtaé
running after them, and taking the helmets off and ziimbing
over the head with our pistols tc disarm them, and thought we
would get some more prisoners. And &a‘gut'up te the top of this
hill, and thers was a resecrve machine gun position up there.

On the way up;wa passed g house and threw some grenadss in
thers, and I don't know how many mébgat, but about 15 or 20 came

out, but I know there &ara some that stayed in,

I saw Tom Wirt, hs got hit, I think in the y& hand. He had
to go back., The first thing we knsw we were inside the German
,1inés, | | |

I had some people ahead of me and I kept trying to stop my

peoplae from chasing these Germans. ¥Finally there uwere two men §
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just ahead of me and got their sttention, “Come ob back, let's get
out,; you go around that side of this woods, and [ gu around this
side.” Well, as I started arocund ~-

{h, before that I got to this little pateh of woods, then a
solumnn of Germans started coming up. All I had was my pisteol, end
I got & feu of them, The sthers sort of dispersed. I uwas hiding
in these bushes, then I ran out inte the open to try to get down
under soms gover, but two machine guns opened on me and caught me
in the leg and busted it up pretty badly, and I lay there until
10 o'eleck, I guess. I managed to put a tourniguet om. In the
meantime they'd teke potshots at me, but I had just enough cover

80 that they couldn®t get me. They hit my canteen., But I was so

Flattensd out they couldn't really get me.

Then about 10 eo'cleck I heard some voices coming and 1 pushed
my helmet up with wmy hend and the Germens fired at it and then
pretty soon I heard & lot of firing all earound me. These voices
kept going pight up the hill: it was not & very steep hill, it was
peally a little slope. Finally one big husky guy cems up and
grabbed me by the arm and started pulling me to the rear. Uhen

we gobt back under some cover I sald, “dhat's your name?" He said,

'"My pame is Pyt, Yale." & neme 1711 nevey forgeg. I sald, "I think

you probably seved my life, and what in the world cen ! sver do for
, .. "itve wanbed a b0~
you?" He saild, ﬁxixwmwﬂka/g%tpiatol pugr sincg I've been in this
outfit. You can agive me that gun.® 5So 1 gave him my gun,
e finally got back down in the woods where these A88 4fwodd
pfismnars wore copralsd, I guess it wes Bill Hhlrich who detailed

two of these prisoners with an improvised streicher to teke me to
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the rear. So that's how I got out pf thers, I Ffinelly got back

to the sick bay, and our regimental surgeon gave me Firet aid and
fixed me up, and I really credit him now with axyrsmixdapixwf having
really saved my leg, because both benes werse broken right at the
ankle, and the upper part was sbticking out about six inches.

From thers I went back to the Arey surgicael team ~-~ 8 gpecial
unit. The doctor took & look at me eng he said, "I think I am
geing to have to take it off.” And there was s very nice nurss
there, and she looked at him and she looked at me and she said o=
I remomber this so clearly «- "He ig so young, try to do whal you
gan, Doctor.” He said, "We don't have tims, we have so many
thousands, we don’t have the faeilities.”™ She gald, "OGh please,
Doctur.” And this went on for a few minutes. Then he salid,

"All reght.” S0 he fixed it up, and from thers I was evacusted
to an evacuation hospital.® Finally I think I went back to Paris
for a brief period of time, and From thers 1 was sent ta Bovdeaux,

I think it was.

tis Hrest is wphere you sailed from.
Eeskine: liags it Brest?

s VYessir.

Erskine: Well, I guess it was. I came back and landed et Portsmouth

Neval Hospltal., That was in Norfolk.
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is They had you in thres hospitals ~- HBase Hespital No. 116, Base
Hospltal Hp., 22, and Base Hospital No. B. Then they ssnt you back
down to Brest. You wers embarked on the USS fladswaski.

Erskins: VYes. 1 landed at Hempton Roaeds, I belisve it was, and
1 went to the Portsmouth Naval Hospital where I was for quits a
whila, The wound didn®t heal completely. I asked Torp duty -- I
was s0 tired of being in the hospitsl -~ and they ist me gg to duty
at the Marine Barracks in NMorfolk., And it didn't hesl there, I had
to have dressings almest every dey. Then I ssked for duty in Haiti,

énd I was sent to Haiti.
Qs Was the lag still in bad shape?

Erskine: VYas, it would break eopen every once in a whils, snd some
of the shattered bone would come out. I think they said I also had
ostoomyelitis, which was a diecass of the bone, Houwsver, I went ts
Haeiti and they sent wme pight sut in the middle of the country teo
Hinche. 1 took command of the S4th Company, I think it was. #fp
the 59th?

(s Let's see, 1've got it vight here. (Pause) HNo, I don': have

what company you wers vommanding.

Erskina: 1 think it was the ﬁdth”ﬁmmpany¢ Uio had kmw two companise
located at Hinche, under command of Baj. Robert Vosth, V.0.EsTuHe,

and a third company was located at’ & plece called Maisad, which was
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about 5 or 6 miles away. In the m@ahtina I had reverted to lst
lisutenant. We did quits s bit of petrolling there, mainly
pacification patrols., We mwy never had a aingle combat in my
prganization as long as we were there., As long as I was thare.

Then while thers 1 was ordersd home for some reason 0 organize
the Guard of Honor for the Unknown Seldier and go abeoard ths Qlympils
and pick up the body.

No. 1 landed in Norfolkz8¥d 2nd Col. William fcKelvsy uwas
in command there. He wes a littls excited. “How are we geing to
do this overnight?? 1 just had sbout one night there and he made
sverybody svailable that he could to help. The old ship didnt®
have any regular guarters, they hadn't had any flarinss on therse

for a long time, and we didn't have very much in ths way of

facilitisgs.
, Daweg's . ;
s $% muzExuEnN old flagship.

Erskine: VYes. %o we took off and we hag a pretty rough trip over.
e went first to Plymouth and spent several ﬁaya up there, and made
auite a number of ealls. g of course had & reception from %hw
British naval pecple there. Then we went dgdown to Brest,

One of the reascns I think I was @saignaﬂ this job was that
I was supposed to spéak Ftehchfﬁégiymeilu s a mattér of fact I
grew up in Louisiana and for four years I had three Frenchmen as
my roommates and I studied French for four yeers, and I had an
average of 85, and I could do pretty well with it, but I hadn’t

had any practice. %o my Fpench wes just practicelly gone, and I
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found that when the body was to be turned over I was suppossed Lo
tranalate, And I made s pretty poor job of that, but I think it
got ovver all right. Adm. Chandler was the senior officer present,
ang he was a wonderful eid man. I em trying ko think of the
captain's name, whom I liked very much, he waes o real twofisted
peagoing guy. I%i)l think of it before we Finish this sessiogn,

ZBh, Capt. Byman. Henpy Uyman, I think it was. He was ths skipper

of the Olympia st that time.

{{x You brought back thres bodies?

Erskines No, one.

s That®s right, three hed been ghosen, and they had alresady made
| ot the cametany -
the choice thezeﬁ i tho Sdrete

Ervskines s %3% one body turped aver to us. The Captaln didn't

want ty put it down in the held for fesr that somsthing might happen

to it. He wanted it kspt under surwéillancs;th@ mﬁtiravtims, and
8% S0On ag we 0ot out of the harbor in Brest we took this casket

up to the signal bridge «- the ﬁlﬂAﬂlgmgia had two bridgaég_the

fmw forward bridge gas for tha'nauigatienlaﬁdvthé‘apasatinnlwf the
ship, and the after bridge wes whers they geve all the signaling,
all the signal 1ighta were ﬁhera;4 e 1aahaﬂ‘this Fallam'dumn with
gvarything that mé gould tie onm bimg berzuxe we haa aaha very rough
weathar émming home; and thore weré timéﬁ wﬁén'wa'thmught~m@ ﬁighﬁ
not make it home. s hed a very famous cha@légn wavhéﬂ picked up ‘

1 think when we were at p&ym@utbg tu’hringfhamﬁs it was so bad
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Far several days that me couldn't eat at the table., You Just sab
down with sandwiches and coffes, and you'd hold on %@&h somathing
Wil one hand and grabbed your sanduich with the other. In the wards

roam we bad at least four iﬁéh&& of water most of the tims. The
ghaplaln and the captain goi tsgethsi and he held a epecial sarvice,

praving tp God that the ship wouldn'it aink.
iy Of course the Qlympis wes quite old by then,

Erskine: 5She was protty old, she was just long snough to pick up
the long onss and shori enocugh to pick up the short ones. Hany times

the waves would go up to the bridge. Ue had & real rough trip back.

fi: They choss the Qlympia For . « .

Epskine: 1 think for sentimental reasons, As I remember the Qlympis
was the oldest ship in the Navy at the time too. Aftsr this she made
a midshlpman's gruise., fo, I stayed on, shs went down as Flagship
of the Train of tha Atlantic Fleet, and I was nrﬁgraﬂ.aécaxd with
written orders, by golly I think it vas six meaks\maximmg time, then
I was ta go back to Haiti. | |
| B0 the six vesks was up and i dzdn’t gat any @%ﬁ@gﬁiw gat off,
I went to see the capbain and the atimizal and they aaidﬁ Bihat
are you kicking about? Ue want you to sbay on here.” 1 had haﬁ
| anmugh s duty, and I wasn't iaaking for any more wea duty.
Sftar I guess @ wesk we were in ﬁh@-&avy Va@d hers in %aahxngtaﬁ

and I hed %o go down to the cee the Lommandant of the farine Corps
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about this thing, It wes Gen. Lejeuns. While I was in London there
was a gentleman over thare who knew the Quartermaster General of the
flarine Corps, he wes sn old friend, and he asked me if I'd fake him
back a bottle of good Scotch. This wes in Prehibition days. I
finally agreed to it, and I had this bottls of Scoteh that I hed
snuggled back abosrd the ship and swmuggled off ths ship, and I wes
akep on my way to Gon. HeCawley's office tak give him this guard

of whiskay'ﬁﬁi went up the steps, Gan, Lejoune walked out of his
office and saw me and he seid, "Hey, come heps, coms in and tell

me about your trip.® Well, I sal there and I thought, "My Godl

it's bed enough getting naught with a quart of whisksey here, but

to be caught by the Commandant is something.” 1 guess he kept me
there 40 minutes, telking sbout the trip over and the trip back

and sverything, Finally I brought up the subject ﬁ? getting é?f

the ship, and he said, "Uell, the Admiral has asked that you stay

pn thers ulth your Rarines, x§§ sald you did a good job, and I

am just going to Forget about itaﬁ

Sp that was that. Ue suiled late in January, I think, down

‘to Guantanamo, as the Tlanship of the At;anﬁia flast Train‘

This was 1922,

o

Erskine: That's about it. Adm. Chandletr hod bsen relisved and
Adm. De Steiger had taken over, end Da Steiger assignad me twe 5—
inch ggﬁ%@g& for wy farine detachment in his cabin. Hut he wouldni®t

let us man those guns half the time because it disturbed him!

e never fired woghot ss lorg as I was on bogrd.

i
I
j
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‘Qs Ob really? Thse breach and loading apparatus and everything

was in his cabin?

Erskina: Yes.

[
i H ASea Cabin?

Erskiney cabin. He hed fwo guns in his cabin on the
starboard side. 1 think actually that the ship was sp pld thst
had wa fired thosa gun%hgg would have jumped off the barbeties.
We never got sny gunnery practice. Bub we did o lot of éggg;?ﬂ
g sbuff. 1 enjoyed my time on that cruise, bubt I must say the

vrulse across the Abtlanbic and back disabused me of 1life at 883

Qs You did get deteched in Mlay 1922 and went up to tha Marine

Barracks at Philadelphia for a period of aboui /learfg S/ K manths .

Erskines VYas, we weve ordered off the ship, so the ship could

make a midshipran's cruise. Ue got off in Philadelphia, and I

was sord of a spare file arvound thers at the time, and 1 was

waiting to go back fé Haiti. In the meantims I got appendicitis,
‘and 1 guess they got tired of waiting for me to go back to Haitl,

0 they evidently regiabad‘ma. - The next thing I knew I got orders

tp qu tu“Santw_Qnmingm, 2nd Brigada@ and while I wes on hoard ship =-
1 waﬁ»gaing dﬁwn on the old Kittery, I fhink, |

&t The Henderson,
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Erskiney That waes a real luxury orulse compared to the Kidtery.
I was detailed to be the guartermastsr, and I've always sbtributed
that to the fact that while I wes convalescing we had two buoks,

ong was flarine Corps Urders & Regulations, and the other one was

System of Accountability. 1I'd never read the System of Accpuntability

and 1 thought while I was getting over this appendsctomy that I would
read it. And I always felt that somebody found out about that and

so I was quartesrmaster! I arrived doun therée & depot guartermastsr,
and I spent ths next two years there, commissary officar and depot

guartermaster for the Brigads.
gy What was duty like down in Sante Dominge?

Erskine:s I liked it very much, 1 thought it was very pleasant duby.
1 liked the penpleJdugn there, I spemed to geit along with them all
right. ﬁfﬁ%?ﬁ:ﬁ ':Lﬁgggggcﬁézbﬁéﬁﬁaﬁgaqﬂarwmaater/%),ﬂ e fj-eifs i
I gwent through tha.gggggﬁgéggam pf the tropops and maé;§1;§;s§;<”
to be the last man to leave the island, but at the last minute
something came up and orders came down for the brigade quartermaster,
who then was Eddie Banker, to go to Haiti. He was to drive across
country and go to Haiti, so he stayed over and took care of thae

very last minute things.
¢ Uho was the brigade commander at this time?

Eyekines Gen. Lee, Herry Lee. But the brigade steff had gone and

they gradually started gutting down and cutting down. As the troops
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moved out me'gmt some of the supplisgs out, and some want to Haiti,
some went Lo the Virgin Islends, some came back homs, and some we
just seld, OF course we had a numhsy of insteslletions there, we'd
built & couple of camps and put in wells and pumps. e couldn't
very well pull a8 well out and take it home, so I had to try my best
to sell thess things. And I did, 1 eold most everything ws could
srx sell douwn there. Then we took down ths barracks and shipped
aome of these portable buildings. 1 think they went to Guantanamo,

and ong shipload to the Virgin Isleands.

s 1 imagine it wmust have been some trip for Banker from Santo

Domingo to Haiti.

Erekines It was pld dirt road, but we had those old Wedel T Fords,
and;%gﬁ flodel T could do most anything, vou know. But some of the
people had made the trip while I was there, you kuow ~§ta§a§ sopt of
vacation to go to Hoiti; s4s¥8¥%s supposed to be a real humdinger of

a tri@ «

1z Then you went up to Guantice in 1924 a8 . . .

Erskines Depot ﬂuartérmastar~ I was there ebout two years as 1 recall,

it VYessirp, this was during the raignVGf‘ﬁmmdlay'autlar@

Erskings No, Smedley left just before I got there, and E11i Kelly
Cole wee in command when 1 was there, and the post guartermaster,

who was the overall guartermsster, was Walter E. Noah. I remember
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sy well, he was 8 lisutenant colonel at that time, and ~= I think

it was the 12th Marines thers, the asrtillery reglnsnt anyway -~

flaj. Hoses heppened te be in command ab that tims, esnd one morning . .

wa had HMarine telephone vperatours, and this thing really happened.
fla j, Moses called up the past guartsrmaster and ho enswsered

and said, "This is Noah." And Mosss sald, "Thie is Moses.” And

the operator couldn*t hold it any lenger and he said, VYJlesus Christ!®

{laughter)

s This was Mink fouses.

Erskine: 1 don't know whether they called him Mink or not.
4: Emile P,

Erskine: I think se, ves., £.P. Yoses. Anyuny it made Noah mad

- have - .
and he wanted to-meke the operator disciplined, but mmxmra nothing
sver happened, except that people laughed about it,

i What went on st Huantico during this time?

Erskine: Ue had a good bit of construction going on, Bne of the
things I ramembar that they werse bullding -~ and this was zil being
‘ - : . @(’ cadse. X remembde—
dane hy post labor, they sven cut out the Htmnamelﬁi had to buy for
them == for the first time I kmew we had diemond saws to cut the
stons mith for ths baaamantﬁ 1 think it's used ss g club now.

The Harry Lse Hall,
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Bs Harine laber built that?

| qes .
Erskine: Hh—wh., 1 don't know whether they finished it all or not.
That thing was under construction for & bumbsr of ysers, Uhen they
could spare the people and @ad the monay they'd do a little building,
As I remember they had alljtha bassment put in, and up alwost to
what would be ths sscond floor. Of course as the yaargﬁ?ﬁgsﬁd there

was a lot of remodsling there. But whsther they did it by gontract oe

i: Had the stadium been builit already?
Erskings Yes. Bptler bullt the stadium.
s In '22 or '23%, 1 guess. 1%t had te be. Yeou ke got there in *24,

Ersking: They were still doing @« little work on it when I aprived,
but the real job had been done when I arrived.

I snjoyed my tour there very much, From there I talked myself
into guing to Fort Benning. 1 wanted to go to Fort Benuing and I
made my application @ couple of times. In those days the Pesling
was a little bit strong between the services, and various senior
officars would tell me what a demn fopl I wes for wanting te go to
anh Arzmy schoel. Well, I had alwaye wented to go to an Army echaol,
because I thought the Army hod a damn good school system as such.
I hed only one experisnce in the flarine Corpé Schosl’, and that wes
the one I described before. I had snough of it ip & Tew weeks und

wapnted to get outd And incidentally, 1 have never gone as a student
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tiz QDuring your whple carser?

Erskine: During my whols carser, except those few wesks thers.

S0 finally T got assighed to Fort Benning, snd ! thought it
was a hell of a good scheeol, and I still think it wes one of the
outstanding military schopls in this country at thet time. A1l of
it was so practical, you had to do everything; you'd meke imspectlions,
and -~ 1 don't want to go into e great desl of detail, but I must say
that they are pretty demn thorough in their instruction,

Then I came back as an instructer in the Marine Corps Scljools.
@it VUWere thers any other Marines down there with you?
Erskine: VYes, Jim Bainms and Auffper, and a man who beceme quarter-
master later. I think there wsre Four of us altogether -« two in
the company schoel and two in the advanced school. I went to the
gompany school.
{t: Did you sver go to Leavenworth later?
Epskines Yes.

ke This wes much later though.

Erekinetr VYas, & good desl. I csme bock to Huantico and was assighed

ng aft inebructor in the Mapine Corps Schogle.  #nd we didntt Finish
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that yeap ==

The pother Marine who was there was named Jacobsen,
GGt Dr, Arnold Jacobsen.

Erskine: Yes, {Pause)} Dur yvear didn't g through. The school
wag breken up and we were seni down to Wiceragus. Thay wers forming
- gome unite of the llth Hlarines, as I remember, and agein I wes called
to post headqguarters ahid ¢old to organize the 61st Machine Gun and
Howitzer Gompany, And as we brought them in thsy'd be erciving on
the trains.

e had what they callz? Plan A in those days, in which sach

Ui S

post would send over the bemkx they had out, to get rid of them,

YGU kiiow,

Mt

g
yoet
s AExpsditinnary force.

Epskine: Yes, expaditionary duty., Henry Larsen was the battslion
commander of this battalion that had been arganized. e stayed up
all night long. Ve dreuw @ astkgf maching gune out of the depot in
fluantico., When I ended up I héghjmw men in sy company who had svey
had any machine gun experiefnce. 0Ope was 2Znd Lt. Dawsen; who later
became an aviator, and he had been in the Basic SHchool ahd had had
some instruciion. Anvther one was & sergeant. But I had about a
dozen people who had been wess cooks, and I locked forward to

having » very good mess, including the machineg gun side of it.
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I think we were deleyed one day, This was almost an overnight thing.
And this Weshingten boat that uesd to run to Norfelk came by and
picked up mywmcompany and took us down to Norfolk, and we stayed at
the flarine Barracks thers for & coupls of days. s were suppossd
to sail within 48 hours., But we were thers ssverzl days.

In the meantime 1 managed to drew another set of mechins guns.
I checked thess guns which were old and pretty badly worn, so I
gnded up sctually with two sets of machine guns, and I don't know
how many rounds of ammunition we maneged ko pick up thare.

From there we smbarked on the old USS QOglala, and on the way
down we managed to get in a good bit of meching gun instruction,
nomenclature and functioning and so fmrtﬁ. finally we reached the
stage where we could throw boxes ocver the side and fire. So we did
a gobd bit of firing on the way down, e hed a prstty good outfit.

e got down to Nicaragua and we were sent up t0 Lson and put
in billet in some of the vld buildings, and we started our training
schedule -~ a pretty tough treainimg schedule there. It wasn't long
before I had some good gunners. 0One of the best shots I had for a
machine gunner in the company was & hospital corpsman. I nad

Lisutenants Dawson, Frisbie,
s Julien Frisbise,

Erskine: Julian Frisbie and Bill Uheling. 8ill khaling wes g maruel,i
he was an Dlympic pistol shot, an Olympic skselt shot and an (lympic
rifle shot, but he didn't know anything aboui mrchine guns and didn'i

sapm to cars a hell of & lot about them.




Erskine - 81

Shortly after we landed -- oh, I don't know, ii waes ssveral
months -- I wes assigned to the Guardia Nacional. José Monceda
was running for President at that time, and they had a tsmporary
President by the name of Diaz, hs was sort of an intsrim President.
I had met Moncada, and I had also met Somoza, who was thga§§§ag§ of
the Leon Province. We got to be vary good friends; as a matter of
Fact 38 used to come out and fire machine guns with us in our range
once in a while. I think that's how I happensd to be assigned up
there. 1 was ordered right over to be Toncads's aide us soon as
he was slected -~ bodybBuard -~ and organize the Presidential Guard.

Somoza was the secretary to the Presidant, and wass Minister
ef Navy, Minister of Army, but he had nu army and he had no navy,
because we ran all that under our supervision. I den't know whesthsr

he drew pay fopr those jobs or not., Anyway ths pay wasn't so much,

I am sure of that,.

i: You said this was aﬁﬁ%chins qunt and Howitzer company. What

were the Houwitzers?

Erskine: The Houwitzer was sn 81 nm meriar -« light stuff,. The
company wae finally sort of split up, as I remember, and we never
had much chance to use these guns. There was a hsavy Browning gun
at that time, snd £k§§ didn't have much mobility to go around on
mule patrols. I didn't have much chance te find gut really what
happened to this company in the asnd. They didn't function as @

machine gun and Howitzer company ag such. Exikink
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G: They probably went to the Quasrdias alss, to help staff the Guardia.
Erskine: No. Uell, a few of the personnel might have gone to the
Guardia. But I waes pretiy busy then, gi%ggtha inauvgurstion and

going around with the old man: he wouldn't go any place unless I

was with him, even when he danced on the flogy -« it wes guite a

Job to keep an eye on the girlis and to dance <~ I had to pick up

2 girl and dance right alongside of him.

e took a trip down to Leon oneg time. He aluways carried tuo
pistols, and I carried one, and he always ingisted when we were in
his automobile that 1 have my kard pistol in my hand. Hg had a
very small one that he carried in a large vest pucket; and then
he had another one, & 38. It was quite an expsriencs.

I started sut -~ I went up to see the chief of the Guardia
Macional. I think he held the rank of genaral, maybe, in the

Nicaraguan Army. But hs was a lisutenant calunal.<é;«w

-~

45 \tol. Beadle.

Ergkine: He was to give me all the assistance in the world, and
impressed on me that I was responsibis fpr segurity at the socalled
palace, everything., 5o I storted looking around for good nopcommise—
sioned officara; and 1 got damplete cooperation frowm Guérdia Head-
quarters$ Une day the President called me in and he sald, “1 am

sorry, but you cannot have Sgt So-and-so, and 3p-and-so, and ﬁa»andwﬁoq
“ﬁhy? He's got a reputation of baihg gine of the best noncommissioned |
officers in the whole Guardia Negional," "No, his father, his grand- !
|

|
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Father and he are conserxvatives,? They had two parties, the Liberal
Party end the Conservative Party, and he would not let wme have any-
body whose ms far beck as a grandfather had been in the opposite
party. And I tried to explain to him that we were trying to teach
these people that it made np difference whe the hell the peoliticians
were, they worked foer theilr countzy and their country alone. But he
would have none of this, and 1 had ong hell of a Lime getting a
good command togethsr that 1 felt I could trust.

Ye finally gnt it formed; I think mg we had ebaut 80 or some
pdd in this cutfit, and it turned gut to bs a pretty good group
of peopla. I had to have breakfast almost svery morning wilth ths
President. Sometimes I'd spend the whole night thesre in this so-
called palace. He wouldn't go in the ald palacs, you know -- he
rented a new place. .Ha sent me up to take over the sutomobiles
and soms of the office propsrby. For instance they had silver
blottesrs that had a little %i&%s handle on, and he wouldn't let
that come into his palace at all, because that was the color of
the oppasing peoliticel party. He gave me all of that stuff, and
1 don't know what happened to it.

Ha called me in one day and said, "I understand you get aide's
pay in your servica.™ I said, "Ves." He suid, "Yob are my chiaf
aide, How much do they pay in youy service?" I sald, "I think it's

4160 a ysar. I've never been an aide.’ He sald, "All right, thet's

pood." The first thing I knsew sumebody brought me Lhe Bxmkie Gazette

in which he gave me U188 a month. HAnd I went i snd told him sbout
this, and I seid, "You nmust have misunderstood me, or I didn*t make

it clsar to you.® He said, "Oh, that's all pight, I think you'll
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need it.?
s It helped nut in your captain's pay.

Erskine: VYesg, I had a house down in town, and he came over to the
house one afternoon to have a drink -- which was quite HEsguwrwis
frequent with him -- and he said, "I don't think you shauld liva
in thip house and bs my aide.” 1 salidy, "Uhere am I going?" The
Nicaraguan Government had & place just outside of the city on thae
shore of a lske called, @ think, Kintaniﬁaw I believe it had a
7-hole golf courss, & very nics house, which they used as a placs
to receive foreign dignitaries, ard he sald, “You move out to
ﬁintanina."} Then he gave me & bodyguard of about 30 people, and
abput three asutomebiles and two horses, That wes all what you

call fringe benefits,
tis Vaery pood. day I turn this tape over now, sir?

Eraekines BT, y2§*

End of Side 1, Tape 1, Bession II,
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Session I1 continued

Side 2, Tape 1

¢ 1 was golng to ask you & question about the CGuardiz, but it
slipped my mind. 58 we'll go on te what we were discussing «~~- your

guarters at Kintanina,

Erskinesy The President would come out ond sit, There were blg
wicker ehairs sutside under 2 pgreat big tree -~ lote of palm trees
and lots of eavocados. He'd come out there somebimes Jjust to relax

and git by himself with ms thers.
§: Wers any attempts made onh his lifs during the course of your tour?

Erskingy No. Thers probably were times when I think we menaged to
find out things and we'd put the guy in jail if he was suspected of
anything like that, 1 was authorized by Prebidential decrse to pick
up anyens, zd and not put him in the loeal jail but in the
penitentisry. One of the first things he gave me to do was to

go out and find Gen. Delgado, (Gen. Delgade had BRARERExKRRLAEYernment
troops against him dupirng tﬁé revolution) and to put him in the
penitentiary. ﬁ%ﬂ% could put a man in the pen for seven days and

if k%gg didn't have a specifie charge within seven days you hed to
lat him out. But you were supposed to charge him when you first
put him in the pen. %o I asked the President what the charge

would be, Xﬁﬁg said he was & bad many no good. 1 said, *That's

- not 8 criminal charge, that's somebody's opinion,® He sald,

*I am the President, and you pui him in jail.¥ I knew where
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Gen. Delgado lived, end I tuok s couple of Buardise and went up to
his house, and stationsd one behind the hguse and one in front, and
I want in the door, and asked for Gen. Delgedo. His wife answered
the door, and she said -- she started to cry, becesuse we wore this
armband w?%g?tﬁgdsﬁ en it, "Guardia Presidencial® an cur left arm,

and she was certain that that was the end of her husband.

iy With blue? You said he didn't like blus. Was it a diffevent

shade of blus?
Erskiner It was a hsavy blus,

8: 1In other words it waen't the same blue as that of the opposing

party.

Erskines Np, it was & dégilingy blue with & white GP on it.

I asked if the General was in and she said yes. I asked if
I could see him and he came out and said, "I guess you have come
to take me to be executed.® I eaid, "No, that®s not right. Ths
President has orderad me to take you to the penitentisry. 5o will
you pack youy bag, and let's get put and go.” Hs wes very calm
about, he went and packed his bag and finally came out and said,
"I am ready.” I put him in the car with me and the Guardias, and
we took him up to the penitentiary. Ny friend Avnold Gladden was
in cemmand of the penitentiary at thaet time, Hs asked me what
the charge was and I said, "ell, we don't have a specific charge."

But he hsd to lock him up for ssven days st leassi.
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I beliesve it wes close to the end of the seven days whan the
Presidant sent fur me and he said, "The seven days is about up.
Wetll lock him up on anothsr charge now.” After donsiderable
discussion with the old man 1 told him I would be responsible
for Deigado because he impressed me as beipg o pretiy decent sort
of gent, and I said, "Just because he fought you in the war?”%u it
488 his duty to his country, as it's your duby now, to protect the
country.” Finally he saild, ®*#l1 right, we'll get him out,”

%0 1 went up to get Delgade and I've never ssen a man gho wes
mors grateful.

But we had a number of things like that down there.  Anyone
he suspected, he called me in and I'd have to go. But I don't
think we ever remlly preferred charges of any seriocus nature
against any of these people, But I had Lo travel with him every

place he went,

G: That was 2 pretty responsible position, VYou were what, 23 or 247
Erakinss:s I don't know. I think I was older than that. Uhen wes that?
ir This gas 1828, I guess you were over 30 at thig tima.

Erskines Pretty close; yes,

¥ But you still had a very importani position as almost the primary

Presidantial adviser.
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frskines Well, I was with him a great deal. 1 remember one trip
ws made. It was over %Re holiday ~~ I think it wes around Easter,
a religious holiday, when it's customary in thet country that no
whesls can move, not even s wheelbarrow or a bicyele, The psople
will stone you. Theye ie just no locomotion, you gan ride & burrp
or a mule, byt nothing with whesls. And this goes, I think, from
Friday through Bunday. I think it's the Laster ssason.

He called me one morning and said, "I am golng this weskend
te the Yasachapa Beach" =-"Which is a beautiful bsach, hs said,

tand you'll enjoy it more than Atlantic City.”
s He spoke English?

Erskine: He spoke pretty good English, but he wouldn't when he
pould find somebody who could understand Spanish. 1 told Somoza
gbout it and Somoza said, “Yes, we are goeing down thers.” 1 said,
"i{g it like Atlantic City?" Somoza was sducated in pur country,
Hg saild, "Well, not exactly."

50 we packed up two trucks. [ guess they wers about bne-ton
trucks, and I left all of this to Somoza, he was geing to have all
the supplies and everything down there. I gave the trucks drivers
orders, then I went in the car with my wife and with the President
and Mre. Sewmoze, and Somosza drove the cars Thers were pretiy bad
roads, and several times we had to get out find with ths tools that
he had in the trunk of this car dig a place for the gar io go through.

W& finally got down te the beach around 9 o'clock at night.

I had a guard that was sent down shead; and I had & guard with us

in Ren trucks.
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hen we got down thers, the first thing I did wss, I looked
around for this Atlantic City boaxdwalk, and thers was no such thing,
nu buildings or anything on the beach, They had just put up 2 lot
of shacks out of poles they had cut out of the jungle there, and
there was s 1dt of cactus.

But it wams beautiful sandy besach, there is np guestion about that.
{ gusss there was a couple of miles of beautiful beach.

Algo accompanying us was the band of the High Powers, which
has a status down thers like the Marine Corps band here, and they
had somg resl good musiclans. We didn't have the whole band, but
we had about half of thsm, And the President had a great, big, wide
Panema hat, and sowmsbody had sold him a ladies' bathing cep, and he
had very loud colors on the next morning. But the night 1 arrived
hs took along with him one of his misiresses, and we had quite a
time. MNrs. Somoza is g very Fine lady and vame from a very fine
family, end the Ppesident insisted that wikk these tws women
and my wife sleep in 2 room aﬁjamsn%uwhsr@ he was slgeping, and I
wes to sleep in the room with him. I vetoed that rigﬁt of f the
bat, I zaid No. I didn®t say why st the moment, but I wasp't
going to.

So I found the two truck drivers and the guard, and gach of
them dead drunk. I alst found that SHomoza 2%?% agpmgbody else make
up the provisions we were to have for the weekend down there, and
thers wasn't a single piece of pread or any Food of any kKind., But
we had two truckloads of ligueor and icel

I Finally took one of the trucks. There wae a very graduasl
slope oun ths beachs I drove it out and got apway from thers and

posted gentrigg who were sober, and wse unloaded this truck, and |
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my wife and I put a cot in there and thet's where we spent the night.

The next morning I heard what sounded like water up against
my truck. I locksd oubt and we were at least 150 yvards at sea. The
tides haed come in., So I waded out and went in, and the President was
alrsady up. He had a big hammock that he had strung up in his place.
The royal barber was there shaving him, he was lying in the hammock,

I said, "ihat are we going to have for breskfast?” He said,
"Send a guardia ouwut to shoot soms ducks.® I said, "They'll be too
strong; you can't sat those things.® He sgid, "0Oh yes, that's all
we have to gat. Somebidy didn't give us any food ahd ws can't gand
the truck any place, you know, No wheels can turn.”

S0 after he had his shava, the band came down and they sfarted
to play some bsautiful music and he said, "You get ip and gst
shaved.” %o I got in his hammock and was shaved! And uwe had a
few drinks, This was about 8 or 9 o'cluck in the morning. And
he said, "I think we'd hetier go get soms food.” I ssid, "Uhere?"
He sald, "We'll buy =@ cow.® 5o he end I wenbt off Lo find this couw,
ta marched about a mile and we came to a little fincae, and they had
a very nice little yeariing there and he paid 5 dellars for this
ysarling, He was in his bathing sult and I was in my bathing suit.
The band stayed behind, And we walked back, we were both barsfoeted,
andhy that time the rocks were getting so hot they just blistered
your feel.,

Sp we went back; he led the steer Bnd I went aleng bshind him,
He called in the Guardias and they took this little cow out and had
him butchared in no time, they built a fire and that’s all we had,

by God, the whole weskend down thers,
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The Guardias did shoot some of those ducks. I was surprised,
with those old Krag riflss,bg§ by God, they went out and they
raglly hit them end brought them in.

fis Uhat did these ducks taste like?

Erskines Just as fishy aa could bs and =0 teugh you know., Thay
boiled one, then they tried to brpil thew andi%ebgll kinds of things
with them. 1 tried that as a kid, you know. But you gan't sat
those things.

So weo %kw spent -~ I guess you eould vall it & very pleasant
weekend there in a pretiy primitive way. After we had the cow
butchered he put on his blg sombrero gnd some farales , which

Hhe undoe
I guess functioned as the ireasury --

they waie dressed in a sert of blue ézzg;;]ﬂutﬁit with a big sombrero,
e rifle, and the traditional bandolessrs of ammunition <~ showed up
to gregt the President and fired & couple of shets in the airp.
I digdn't know what the hell was géing on, I went out there and I
disarmad them, and the President was very much put out. Hp sald,
"They are my friends, that's a salute to me.® S0 I said, "All right.”
And I gave them back their rifles! I wanted to get the hell out
of there. Byt they didn't go, they stayed arocund. The cld man
was s0 sentimental about things 1ike that thet I let them stay,
but they were aluways firing off shots somewhers.

4 number of people had come down %o this beach and were camping
out in theee little shacks, They were not quite as luxuriogus as

the President's, but . . .
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He had an eys for kikiwmkirgxygmizx good-looking geals,
HWd gn elong and the band would go aleng behind him, playing

sweet music, This wae really something to sss.
G I cen imagine! (laughter)

Erskine: #nd we would walk by and he would take off his hat te
any beautiful lady and find some sxcuse £0 go and x¥ get in the
gonversation. Ye had & boy carrying a bottle of brandy and soms
glasses, and we'd have & drink of brandy with the peoplg, and uwe
wvould spend the whole morning going sround this way, and endsed up
around 11 o'clock at some place where the peopls had gathered soms
7 muésels. It's like an oyster, but pretty coaree meat, And we had
s little session thers; we had, I guess, ebout & dozen oysters 5
piece, end 1 don't know how many drinks of brandy, and I felt my
stomach going a littls the wrong way, and I teld him. 1 said,
fetd better guit eating those oysters.” 1 wasn't guite certsin
hiow gwbd they were. But he didn't, he kept an. He was really a
pratty hardy guy.

Ue went back and we had some of this bolled beef for lunch,
and thén zome more whiskey, and this went on for the whele deay.
And the band was there playing all the time, and they sesemed io
be enjoying this 100%,

tie spent the weekend down there, then we came back.,

Somehow ~~ who was the brigads commander down thers? He
managad to get down thare to call on the President at that time,
gnd I don't know how he got there. bhether he landed on the heach

in & plane or « + .
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Gy (Was Gt brigade commander?

Epskine: No, our Hllarine brigade commander at thet time. Was it

Feland? 1 belisve it wag Gen, feland.
Gs Yes., Xm

traskine: Anyway he dropped in for a couple of hﬁura thers to see
the President., It was 8rig. Gen., Feland, I think,

in mﬁndayvmmxning we packed up and came back, and I stayed
with the President for lunch and dinner that day. It was 8 little

different from what we'd had down et thes bsach.
d: How old = mah was he?

Erskine: I think he was pretty close te 60, beceuse at my age I
théught he was prettiy old, Now that I am over 60, looking back

I think I might have besn wrong about some of these things!
f: He was 2 pretty lusty 60,

Erskine: Yes, Hony times he'd be driving to the country and he
sluways had brandy in ths tar -~ Napoleor, he mouldn't drink anything
that didn't have the name Napoleon on it. This is sort of @ side
retiark nows whso I wos Pirst essigned to him I sald, "dhet shall I
call yeu? Shall I call you General or #iz. Presidsnt?? Hs said,
"Call me Gengsral, because anyhedy can be a President, but damn few

peppls can be & general.”
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Q: How did you kesep comnunication with what was going on in the

rast of the country while you wers on the beach?
Eprskine: Ye didn't bother about it. It wes very simple.

i1y Kind of s mafana existence?

. ~  and a grapsvine. . -
Erskines Yes, o mananha existencs, /And as I look back, it uas

protiy damn ef'fective! You see, the militery situation was controlled

entirely by the Harines at that time,
In a disgussion with Somoza oneg day 1 realized he was guits
ambitious, and we were very close Frignds, He said, "I am going
to be President some day here." He Tirst sterted out by saying,
"Erskine, you Americens are a hunch of damp fools." I said, Fean
donit ot e\ mghd St
sobly © A”What gtimulates you to bring this up now?”  He said, "Chasing
Sandins. You've got 5000 Marines down here and you are just not
getting shead, you'll nevey get Dandino &E.% Then he said,
"Some day I will be President,.” andhg said, "You don't understand
the Centrzl American way or the Latin American way of doing things."”
I sald, "All right, how would you do it%" He said, "It'd be very
Ty [ wonly | e e
gimplae: getwoFeat declers an arvmlstice, I would invite Sandlino
iny and wa'd'haue some drinks, a good dinner, and when he went
oyt one of my gen would shpet him,Y That's exactly what happsned,
He became President, he invited Sgndino in, they had a big soirde
up at the palace, 2@%% went nut, and he was shut. Yhen we were
discua@ing this he said, "That's the way to do it. Look at ths
trmu'ta'lg you save, and all the men end all the money you save. That's
what you went 4o get him For anyway, to shoot fim, so why noi shoot J

himon



Erakine - 96
s Moncade ended his rénims peacefully. He wasn't deposed, was ha?

Erakine: No, he survived. I didn't stay with him the whole time.

I oot a little worn out there, and I wanted teo go out with the

troops anyway, From there I think I was sent to CEranada, the

capital of Granada Province. I was in charge of the police and

the Buardias in Grenada end Masaya Depasriments., Granads was ons

of the best towns over thers, I think. I mean in Nicaragua. They

had & very high type of people living in the Gresnade Department,

and some of the wealthisst people lived pver there. MHosaya wes
dominated by the Mesayvan Indiang of course -~ with an Indian strain --
and they wers the meanest devils that I ran inte in all Nicaragua.

You see, MNicaragua ~- &s I remember the history -- is made up
of 13 separate Indian teribes, andtggygtill remm retained, at that
time, some of their earlier charscteristics of dealing with prople
angd amongst themselves, snd in some of the places they had different
customs than those yeu'd find in anather provines, to some degres.
flot cowpletely integreted, I'd say. Bub it wss peally very intereating
work over there,

One thing about the peeple in CGranada; though: the young bucks
would net put and roise eouin, and the police would pick them up.
They thought all you hed to do is let them lowse. You nevar put
a first-class eitizen in jail. I sald, "You are gonna go to jail
down here while I am here if you don®t behave yourself."

Vell, that same night they had a big dance and some of these
hoys kicked one of my Guardiag and I locked the whols crowd up,

and they staved in the Jjeil. And T went down Por the trisl.
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They got all finsd 5% dollars -~ that's a big fine doun thers.
You ses, in a way it was a sort of a feudal system out in
the countryside. Somsbody was sittikng on top, and his fFanily
had bgsen on top, and his Ffemily cuned the proparty, and they
pwned the land, #And theze people wggg peocns, and my God, they

ware almost in a status of slavery in many of thess places.

s I think the history of thz governmont of Nicarague -~ %hm the

Sonoz hays .
‘@gmﬁgﬂgﬁmﬂ besn in and out of power, and other names In Nicaraguan

history have hesn in and out., There have been a couple of famillilss

that have heen very . . .

Erskine: Somoza's femily I don't think was very prominent until
Jo Diiambh ~~T Fhake i Ferrs ——
he ceme into the picture. He tosk me out one da%, ¢ went horse-
back riding together and he showed me the house in which he was born
and &% it didn't have a floor in it, sight on the corner of this
little street in this little village. But he was z swari fellow,
and the sovernment sent him to the States for sducation. I think
it was Pierce ﬁmlleg%,hﬁ»w&nt to, in Philedelphis. 1 aluways felt
that he wae a vary ﬁggz—gmeriﬁan, he apoke £nglish beautifully,
He married the daughter of one of the most pimminsnt douctore in

all South America, =2nd that family wes a family with greot prestige.

Erakine: Mo, Debayle. Dr. Cebayle. 1 think thatfs zicht. Sn the

main plaza in Leen the Debayles had » hewe, one of the most impoging
|
|
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houses in the wheols ares down thers. I'd been over there nesny, many
times, Mrs, Somoza was @ emell givl, when I was thers. And Somoza
was yeuin younger than I, 1 think. WNo, I beg your parden, Homoza

‘ was married and had two children, end one is now the wife ef the

: dean of the Diplomatic Corpse here, Sacasa. 1 remambgr I had s lot

of fun @t the Sacases. He is a very serious kind of a diplomast

gvar

namg was Lillian,
/ He was telling me that =211 his 11 children were born in the

United Stetes, thaet he'd been here long encugh for that, and what

@ great cirl Lillian was, and Y ocaid, “You don't have to tell me
what & nice lady she ic, I had her in my arms a long time befors

you did,” #nd he almwost dropped pight there. He said, "UHAT?®

And I repeated it, and he yelled, "LILLIAMN, Lillian, come hsrel®
Sp Lillisn cams. He gald, "Thils man hers says he had you in his
arms & long time hefore I did, What about thalt??" SHe said,
"That's eight, ke I remember he used to come and bring me candy
at my father's house.” And I did that, at Somozed, when I was
doun in Leon, mrd he was the Governor and I spent guite a bit of
ime with him, and whenever I'd 5o to the house 1'd take candy

pp something I could pick up:%%x the kids, and she sat on my kneg =«

autiful little girl. Se that wzs my joks with Sacesy herse, when

S ]

, ba
& asksd ra A . - , .
 aake }ga wﬁgd; "Yga, thatts exactly right.® {lsughter) He osaid,

/

o

“Dor't you ¢o it agalni®
1y You finally let him on te what'd happened.

Erukines Oh vos, us btold him,

(- sunva,/axdm &’were at his housa for a cockbail party, His wife's
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B¢ Did he appreciate it?
Erskine: He laughed!

s You were down thers for a littls more than twe years, I guesas,.

H

Erskineg: Closs to two and & half yesrs. I don't rsmembsr the exact
dates now. 1 asked to bs relieved down there at the guard, because
as I say I wgs worn out -- going to parties svery night, the old man
wanted me to drink more than I wented to drink, and starfééFF with
hot mnhw champagne Ffor breakfaat, and go on through the day. 50 I
told him, I said, "I went to get out in the fiesld and get some
experience while 1 am down here.?®

I left there and went cver to Lranada and stayed over there

a while, and from Granade 1 went to Jinoteqga.
s That's right, vou wars axXacutive officer.

Erskinz: Yes, executive officer of this <« mobile battalien 1 think

it was called.
G Uho had thab?

Erskines Plug Lowell, 1 think he wae a colonel in the Guardis, but
he was only a major in the Merine Corps. I don't remember his Firat '

name .

i3 UWhe were some of the gther flarine officers who were down thare

with you at this time?
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Ergkine: I romember lynne. Wynne came up when Plug went home,
Plug got sick and was svacuated home. Hannsken was there, and

I had Leuls Puller there with me. That's aboub the limit o
commisaionsd officers. The others were noncommissioned officers
hut held commissions in the Guardies Necional. Puller actuaslly
ralieved Hanneksn, éégzgiauliar was a lisutenant in the Marine
Corps, and he was thes supply officexr up thers, Hp was slusys
griemng about his job., So when I went up and reported, Plug
Lowell was the moet likeable man, I think, that I ever rzn intoy
vayy likemable, but he was s prstiy hspd drinker, and he sort of
want alowng with the old Marine Corps idea about being rouch and
tough and thet's about a8ll you need to do. But ] always looked

at it a little differently, I thought ths more I could isarn
about my profession, the better I could rveally do my Jjob and
undarstand what my Job was. 4&nd I had besen to Benniog, which
asctually was a black mark againsi me in the minds of 2 graal many
of those oldbtimers. #nd Iid been in the Harine lorps ichoolg,

As a wabter of fact Plug hed been an instructor in the Larine Corps
Schools himself, end the day I reportad he was feelihy pretiy high
and he said, YAll pighty ypu sre @ sprt ¢f schoolisacher kind of s
fellow. You think you know ell the answers, don't you? Now you
grs the executive officer, and you pun this place, and 1 don't
want to hove « goddamn thing go wrong sround hare.®  And with that
he plcked up and went on patrol, and he was gune about 10 days.
And Aitimirans, one of the big bandit leaders around thers, happensd

to moke o swesp around that tiwe, and there was g bridgs thot they

had to cross -= we bhought -~ to get back into hie ares in the Jjungle. .

|
}
|
|
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He had a little radio with him, and we had & littls radic down at
our plece, He stopped over at one of our posts, Corinte Finca,
which was a coffes plantetien, I sent him 2 messaga that Altimirana
was on the wey down and the genersl dirsction thaet we understood he
was following, so he said, “lesus orders.”" 50 I did, 1 issusd him
Ofdirin go up and lay an ambush et this little bridge they had to cross
to got ecross this river. They didn't come through there, but they
came doun, and some of our boys wiCHe¥°EEER te bs a 1ittle mors
aggressive there, when they heard the bandite wers thers instead
of sitting on their pants sround thes post te defsnd the post, they
would get out of there and ambush them, goddammit, you are all the
same people. . +Wﬂwkmé,
%o they gave the old guy a pretity rough timeﬁ Groups of thres
or four lay in ambush and fired a few shots into this crowd and

tock off.
s Uhat wm&ﬁewie puller 1ike at this tine, General?

Erskines He was about the same kind of a Fellow that he finally

turned out %o be.
it Really?

Epskine:s Yes! He wes, I'd say, a rather smart officer, I mean in”

appearance and mentally. He smoked a pipe all the time, I neveyp ;
had teo get aFterfLewie @ﬂ:a than once or twicge, We had an unwritten |

law: never lay a hand on one of these Luardias bmcausethey resentad it;

f
\
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and we har a number of people who were shobt, and when you investigated
you Pound out that it probably had stemmed from some tims when thisg
man had slapped him or pushed him or did something like ithaet, and
this guy Jjust resented it. And to theiyr way of thinking i$ was the
onily way out.
L e,

Finally when Hanneken went home we geve Louis this W Company
which was s nobile sutfit, and spent g lat of time out in the Jungle.
Ang 1'd watch égaige@han he'd go make his inspection, and when he
first stavted off making his inspechtion withg his pipe in his mouth.
S0 I gave him a little talk on that one, "You just don't do those
things, whether you ave in the Lysrdis Nacional or the flarine Corps
er any other place, it's a damn pour sxample, & pretiy sloppy uay
af daimg things, and you don't do it here,” Well, I never say him
dao that again, Then one day he was meking an inspection, and some-
thing was wrong with this boy ~- I deontt know what it was, but I
saw him give nim = big slap in the face, 89 1 had guite a 1i;tla
Issture with him on that. H#Ag Far as I could see hie men reslly
thought the waorld of him. And he get into several combeis doun
there and distinguished himself sach time. I thought he was &

hell of a good eoldier man, as @ young officer.
B A good small uhit leader.
Erskines Yes, and with the yesrs he beceme a very fine large unit

loader, Hg bad s great desire to be a topside Marine -« a grest

parsonal desire -+ and kiw the Warine LCorps wes his religlon and
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his 1ife, even as a young officer. He never tried to bég ovut on
L&,U.'\e,
anything. If a job nesded doing I could mluays depend on teuds

to get the job done, one way or another.
i+ He stepped on g lot of peaﬁla'a tuss.

Erskines Yes, he was pretty blunt, but the thing I liked about him
éew/@
in that respect was that you didn't have to guess what Heuis was

thinking -- he told you, and he did it so simply you could understand.

is In later years, when you wepre chief of staff at FHFfPac, did

this problem aver cvome up?

Z_ a2
Erskings: With Lessis?

s VYessir,

Cewsi &
Erskine: I wasn't with tewds io the same wnit, I don't think, at

any time.

Ge¢ ¥ don¥t think you were either,

Erakines No. He was in command of the Barracks at Pearl Harbor
when we had our headduarters loceted there Por a time, and he was

begging and bagging te get out of that job 80 he could go to war.

% During Kores or World War II7?
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Erskine: World War II.

Ot He was at ths Barracks then. UOf course he was at the Barracks

when Kores broke out aslso,
Erasking: At Pearl Herbor?
fls Yess, sir.

Epskine: Maybe hae got a second tour out there. 1 don't know how
he did thatj thet was supposed Lo be one of the juicy jobs in ths
flarine Corps.
Gy He was C0D of the Barracks. He had had the Ressrve District
down in New Orlsans, &nd tHen he got assigned out te Pearl Harber,
and he was there when Korsa bioke oub,

} _ , (e,
Erskine: I guess that's right. 1 don't remembsr where teuvis was
during Yorld War 11, becasuss I went over and revieuwsd these troops

ons time -~ I told you part of thai etory the other day.
tis About the shoes, vesy sir.

Erskiney I was deputy commander of the Fleet Marine Force Pacific
and I was also ip command of the let Marine Divigion and I was in
command of lamp Pendleton at the seme time, and thls is how this

happsned. Tommy latsen was in compsind out in Hawaili of the Flaat
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Bapring Force Pacific, I was the depllty but I was baek in Camp
Pendleton, and he became ill and I was to go out there for 10
days and then come home For 10 daye. This went on for guite a

while until Tomwmy finally rstired.
fts Terrible Tommy Watson?

Erskines Well, 1 don't know, I gusss I've heard him called that.

Terrible Tommy.

iz Puller wpas with the lst Bivision, I think, from its formation,

He was in the 7th Marines, on Guadslesnal and at Cepe Gloucester.

Erskine: Uh uh.
O« And he took over the lst Marines st Peleliu.

Erskines Yes, I know he was in Peleliu. My memory of courss is a
little vaguse on a 1pt of these tﬁings, and I hesitzite sometimes to
aay, ﬁ?his was a'faetw when as a matter of fect it was s pretty wekk
wpogs widespread orgenization out there, and it's sasy to get mixed

up on it,

e Well, I om going to really dig in when we get te FEFRac and the
formation of the Amphibicus Foree ﬂﬁlanﬁim Fleet at the beginning
‘:EF the war. But this will come. This ls an ares on which there is
so little documentation and so many personalities weré involved.

fif course the major personality here was Heolland Smith.
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Erskinas Uh ugh,

Gy I don't want Lo, NOW +« «

]

‘ - I'm tryin
Epskine: Well, Ixkpy

ﬁg follow that » little bit chronologically.
{s Yessir, we ars getting off of it.

Erskines 1 think Nicarsgua gave me more practical expesrisnce over
a long period of time than I'd received up to thet time. I spent

a lot of time out on the trail wiith the troopa. e had a lot of
things happen down there. Ue actually had ngo rulss for the G@vern-
ment of the Guardia approved by the Nivaraguan Congress or Chamber
of Ueputies or anything like that, so we published the articlss

for the Government of the Navy, translated them intoc Spanish and
tried to btrain the people aleng that line. As far as they knsw,
that was the law, but you still didn't change some of their
philosephy or their way of 1life in meny respects. The sverage
soldier had no conception of being on time for something, He

Just hadn't been brought up that way. They'd leave it Lo mahana.
CAnd of course we tralhed just in ths opposite veln, After a while
¥8xu you could get them, buf you had to punish sowe of these guys
two oz three times tu get them to realize that if you said 8 o'cluck
it was 8 o'clock, oot 9, They were s little lackadaisicsl in that
‘reapect. But I found #haaa fellows ocut on the traii to be damn
‘good wmen. Thaey hed s simple life, sverything was simple, and if
you troated themn decently and got into their family or tribe ...

Avtuglly it wes s tribal feeling.
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s Clannish,

Erskines Yes, I trisd to explain sometimes to these people that
I had & bpge in Managua. That's all right, but “As fay as we are
concerned you are the boss.? I said, "This is against the rules.®
They didn't give a damn about the rules, you werg his chief, and

that's what they called you, the Jgfe.

s How do you say Rocks & Shoals in Spanish?

Erskines I don't know, They didn't pay muah attention anyway,

They rarely asked a question about it. They had it in the back of
their mind, "This is what the Jefe wantg, this is what I am geing
to do.® fr, “wégéstggtﬂgfa wantsy; I am not going to de." Either

one or the other.

7

¢ VYour tour was up on April 30, when ymu‘wsnt up to Basic School

to become an instructor at Philadslphis.

£rskine: Yes, 1 went up there as exscutive officer, snd Baj.

pulty Smith was in pommand of the school, and I was his exec thers.
I think I stayed there about two years,

s Who had the Barracks, Allie Horex?

Epskinet No, it was Zol., -= he died owt in China, in Peking, a

great blg Pellow.

iz Bay?
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Erskines No, Bay was down in Shanghai. As a matter of fact he died
Just before I went to Peking, because I know I was meking an
inspectifin oput there one morning and I ven into his casket which

was awaiting shipment back to the States, in ona of those storerooms
in the Tarter Wall. I cen't think of his neme at the moment. {Peusse)

Gulick!
i+ Dh yes., Luther?

Epskine: No. U, had another Gulick who wes paymaster in the

flarine Corps,
{Is That pas Roy Gulick, I believe.
Erskine: Yes. I'va Porgottern the old wan's first pame, G.U.L.I.C.K.

gt I think he was an uncle 0 Hoy + « « I think it was Luther
Gulick, but I may bs wreng.

4

Epskine: I can't remember his first name right now. It might come,

ﬂ/gg?’i}ﬁ ;)

0: You krow this other men I was talking about -- Allis &L . , very

dapper, with a moustachs,
Erskines Oh yes, and he had black syvebrows.

G: Yessiy.
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Epskines I knew him very wsll too, and 1 egan't think of his name.
He was down in Shanghai, He wmight have basen on a visit up te

Peking, but he was never there sn . . .

s No, I am talking sbout Basie School, I thau%zz éth@Vféféb”T”’KJ
4 /7 .
’ (G < ///

(cross talk) ar ladelph s »

Erskines Oh . . . Raorex.

it Rorex.

£rskine: HRorex, hs had command of the Basic Sghool, and 1 think

fhie preceded Dulty Smith,

s Allie Rovex -~ I've heard that name, % Very smartly turned

out skdkire all the time.

Erskins: VYes. I think he was finally inspsctbr gensral, wasn't he?

Of the Warine Corps, I mean. He was in thet office, I know,
s A & 17

Epskines Yos.

fr It had to be A & I becauss the first inspeckor generasl was

after the war when Gen. Del Valls becams the Maprine Corps' first

inspector genersl.
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Erskines Yos? Anyway he was out making an inspection., I don't
know whether he was in charge. I don't remember whether he was
in charge; I think he was for a pariod of time. He had begen in
there before, and 1 knew him. He was aleo down in Santo Dowmingo

when 1 was in Santo Demingo.

s Rorex was,

Erskine: Horex.

i+ General, I think you have & timg factor heve, and . , &

Erskines Yes, by golly.

G: I've beep watching it For you. We'll start off our next session

with the Basic Scghuol at Philedelphis and your tour thers.

Erokine: Yes, Some of my boye turned out all right. Wally Graene

was ona.
it Yes, he was?! Brute Krulak?

Erxskine: No, I think Brute went through ahead of Uelly, before 1

wag there.

End of Side 2, Taps 1, End of Session II.




Erskine - 111

gession I1I - 22 October 1969

Tape 1, Side 1

G: e ended laet time, General, when you finished vour tour of

duty in Nicsragua, with ths Guardis Nacionml. We spoke about your
duty as aide to President Monceda. Then the next tour of duty was
at the Basic School in Philadelphia. You joined there on Juns 23,

1930. %o lst's telk about Basic School, if vou will.

Epskine: Well, Maj. Dulty SBmith was the commandant of the School
at this time, A very nice gentleman, and I was his exscutive
officer, I was alse instructor in »® ssouting end patrolling,
machine guns, and another ane or two subjecte. One was customs
of the serviem, but at the mement I don’f{ remsmbaer what else I
did have., But it was a full scheduls, belisve me.

iz You would havs had ths class of 1930 from the Academy there,
Erskines VYes.

iz Gens Greene was probably thers.

Erskiness Cer. Greane was one of the 2nd lieutenants at that time,

gnd he wes a very Fine =tudsnt,

{1+ Who were gome of the ovthers, do you remember?
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Epsking: 1 think Whitey Lloyd, Bausr, who latay went into sviation

and was killed in the Pacific,

{t+ Harold Bauer?

Erskines Bauer. UWieseman, who is now a lisutenant gensral. It's

hard at the mement to remembsy the names of all those peopls. Thers

was a 2nd Lt. Pottinger whom I remember guite well, and ﬁgﬁ§§g5%my.
I was trying te think of the sther fesllow, who had & fight with
fahoney. I theught I'd never forget. Wac Somebody, He retired
as @ brigadier general, that I know. (Pause)} My memory is not
good on names anyway. 8ut I ecan see the faces of almest every

ong of those rascals,

G: Bauer -- I guoss theykcalled him Indien Joe Bauerz.

Erskine: Right.

Bz He was part Indian?

Erskineé I think so. A big tall fellow, he'd been & football star

at the Apademy.
s ﬂh, he was an Academy graduate?
Erakines Yes.

@ You m were there for Lwo years.
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Erxskiney 1 was there tuo years, and from there 1 went to Cpmmand

& Gensral Staff Schosl at Leavenwbrth.

iz Ues there anything outstanding during your tour at the Basic

School that stands out in youpr amind?

Erskines Well, it was quite a thrillimg thing for ma to be invplusd
with those g%ﬁ%gak officers. You ses, as soen as they graduated
from the Acadsmy they were sent douwn to Basic Schoel, which was

then located in Philadelphia. They were all commissionsd, and I
falt that they had an sttitude of, ¥I am already an officer and

I don't have to work too hard at this damn stuff anyway.”™ find it

was quite a job sometimes to really get them deeply interested.

Gt was there eny discernible difference in the guality of the
Academy graduates as opposed to the men who were commissioned

from a givilian collegs®

Ersking: e haed no civilian college men at thet time at the
Basic Schoel. We had & few who had come up From the ranks.

I am tyying to think of the namas. The fellows from ths ranks
werr wore much more sarious mr in trying to make gradesm -- it
appearad to me -~ than the Scademy psople did. They were all a
fine group of fellows. UWe had, of course, = few disciplinary

troubles frem time to time, but nothing very seritus.
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f: Wasn't this the time when the services sustained a cut in pay,
and it appearsd that Pgpesident Hoover was trying to get pid of

the Marine Corps?

Epskinet VYes, yss. There was a greet deal of rivalry between

the services,

AHWK/
' ™ ,
3 masﬂtarmy Si@@s thars at this time?

Erskine: Ho, I don't think so, I don't remembar him being in the

sthool at that time.
i+ Or 3Jerry Thomas?

Erskine: Jerry Thomsas was -~ much senier.

These wers asll brand new 2Znd lisutenants
G: I nean on the staff of the schosol.

Erskinss No, Jsrry was not on the staff at that time, e had

Johnny #Halker. Yright, whose firet name I don't remember.
iz Heymond Uright, who later became paymaster?

Exskine: No, he was a line officer; he was alsg an Academy graduste
and he was killed in an automobile socident during the time that he
was at the school., HAnother student I remember now is Heyward. |

Dick Heyward. |
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G: His brother was the admiral,
Erskine: That's right,
f1s Had you put in foyr Fort Leavenunrth?

Erskines VYese, I think I requested it twice. And I remember I wmas
él./ Sevtral seivoe '_’JMC 028 o;/,ééq 7’/{¢y beard g_éa“']é,'7l

given 1achureaﬂabmut what a damn fool 1 was for wanhting to go to

an Army school. Thers was a grest deal of rivalry bstwssn the

schools at that tims., Fpankly 1 didn't think & great deal of ocur

pwn school system, and I'd slusys thought the Army hed a pretiy

goond gschool system becauge they had been at it for guite a lung

time. 1 don't suppose they had too many applicents ~- mayvbe that's

why I was assigned.

iz iho were sume of the other studentg «» Marins officers -- in

your class at Leavenworkh?

Ereskine: We had & flier ., I think Ruffner was there, I can't

think of this Rxfxx flier's name at the moment.
G It wasn't Wallece, was 1t9

Erekine: No, it wazant't {allace.

Gs Huleashy?

Erskina¢ HNo, Oh, he made wonderful gredes st the school, but

somshow hg didntt lagt out in the Werine Corps, (Pause)
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3: Was this @ tuo-yssr course?
Erakines This wes 2 twi-year COUDSE.

3 Houw about some of the Army officers who later became prominent?

S o e (-['o;_sjake'ad ofme ) Char ] e
Erskine: UWell, Joe Collins) Johnny Bolte was in the class ahead

of me. Mark Clari wae in the class behind me when I WEé a second
yeay studenty Delos Emmons was my section leader throughout thae
whole perindg of twe years, e were cepieinsg and me jors mostly, a

few lisuterant colonsls. Therse was @& Capt. grggggiggga?ater bacamne

a major general in the Apmy and commesnded a division, I thimk, in
blorlid War II., 1In our sscond year we had a Germen, allegedly captain,
but the rumor was he was actBally s mejor general of the German Army,
Uan_%égfenbergm; I belisve Umnf%@i?anberg suparvisad the dive

bombing hy the Germans against the British in driving them back

to the sea.
fiv A% Dunkirk.
Erskine: At Dunkirk. {Pauss)

G1 What was the attitude of the Army instructurs regarding

i

amphibious warfere, or the roles of the Mavine Corps at this time?

Erskine: It was my impression that they thought the Marine Corps

was completsly wrong, because we insisted in all of our doctrine
LAP N
of rigidity of formation. 1 remember & lecture was given by = 1‘
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Cel. Lene which I'11 nsver forget. He was a very gifted speaker,
and he had quits a number of slides. He really took the Merine
Corps apart in this by saying, "All you had to do was get your men
ashors; %émxm wasn't a guestion of lining up and going in in weves,
Jjust put them in the beoats and send them ashore to a ceriaio beach.,m
And 1 took quite a ribbing as a result of this lecturs, becausse

Lang had guite a reputation gs a smart Army officer end a good
instructor. But they didn't think much of the #arine Corps way

of doing things.

sy UYere the flarines able to hpold their oun thera?

Erakine: U0Oh yes, I think we did pretiy well at Leavenworth,
Evans was ths name of thai sviator who was out thers with us.
Capt. Evanz: he made very fine grades all the way through?

I might say I didn't distinguish myself onh grades becausgse instead
of trying to 6G-2 the instructor I tried to soulve the problems the
pay I thought they should be solved.

r Thie wasn't Khaki Evans, was it9

Erskines No, Khaki Zvans is another Evans,

s How do you think this two-~yesr tour of schooling at Leavenuorth

helpad you later?
Erokinsy I think it was most valuable. T weht Lo Fort Benning too.

ti1t Yeusips; sarlior.
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Eprskine: Yes, before I went cut there, and before 1 bsgame an
instructor in the Marine Corps Schocls, 1 think Fort Beanihg was
the most practigal school I've gver besen to, or thet I know of,

At teavenworth the first vesr we were limited more or less
to the division level, and the second year went into corps, arpmy,
and groups of armies. I thoroughly enjoyed the course, and I think
it did me a world of good. I think it wmas the best military school

in the Unlted States.

fis They call it the Command & 5taff School, Hhere was the greatest

emphasis placed, on conmand or sta???-ﬂbnc%aws 7

Erskines 1 think command. You'd get guite = lot in staff
funciioning. We had problesms called troops lesding, in whigh
yoeu'd have a given situstion and you'd have te work out all the
staff work and recite on peper how each une of the staff officers
operated) almost by the minute; so you had to visualize this thing
pretty cearsfully. And the same thing for the commander. They
weres ssparate reguirements, of course, but I thought those troop
leading problems vere wonderful, It ¥2f gave me & diffsrent
insight from anything that I had ever seen in the ferine Corps,

I can tell you that.

s OF courss it's been said that -~,from the people I've interviewsd |

who had gone on to Leasvenwnrth, that the {larins Corps st that time
really had no concept of true steff functioning, that thelr exposure

to the Army schooling gave them for the first time . + .
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Erskiney VYes, and they raesisted it. The Harine Corps didn't
visualiza anything bigger than a sepsrats cowmmand and a reinforced
regimont st that time. And they thought we wers wasting our time
gning into division and golng into the higher echaelons of command «-
it was just o waste of time. It might guxuskixkexkrRmuxkek be well
to know how to read the Asmy history, but that wes sbout all.

And Frankly I think it was & matter of absplute mental lazinaess

on the part of many of our ssnior off'icers.

G: Of course up to this point the selection systsm had hot come

into effect, st there was no resl spirit . . .

Frokine: 1 think the selaction system came in around that time,

s 1933 1 bslieve it uag,

Erskines Was it 18337

G: That's right: '33-134,

Erskiney I didn't leamve Lsavenwarth in "534, did 17

{: December of '34.

Epoking: 1 remember some of the senior officers when the selection

eystem was put into effect. PFrior te that they were talking sbout

thiz zelpction system ze bsing the Finest thing in the world to get
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rid of a lot of dead wood that we had in the Marine Corps. &nd 1
could -~ but I won't ~- recall the names of some of thess senior
fellows who were passed over by the first board, and some of the

fallows whe had resisted ths selection board idee who yere promoted!

3 Du dng the time that y.ou were at Leavenworth, the Flest Marine
Furce had come into being, and the students et GQuantico under, I
guess,the direction of Charlie Harrett -- certeinly Ellis Bell
Miller was there -- were working omn the nee concept of ths amphiblous
warfare doctrina.

Hagd any of their thinking, had any of their saschievements come
to you? Did yeu know what was geing on? UWere you aware of what

was going on?

Erskine: VYee, I was aware of what waes going on, and alseo in the
little WMarine Corps Schaols that we had at that time in Guantico,
theras were ssveral peopls who had been to Leavenworth and who were

instryctors on the staff, I think Charlise Price was ong.
Ges Yes, I think he uwes,

Erskines Charlie wes a real sharp fellow. The others I dontt
remember. T can ses them but ] don't remember their names right now.
They had injected into the course there problgms dealing with the
division., This was in the Senior Schoel, fAnd that was the first

|

time, I think, that we sver got up to the division lavel. Buk the

RMarine Corps did not snvisiaon having a division, The division concept

|
|
|
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was not popular at all/

it Actually thers probably was no reason %o think of this, unless

they ware really farsighted thinkers,

Erskines I gusss that's right. It's pretty difficult to get peocple
to changs their ideas and lock to the future. Ue feught Uorld fsr I
in order to make the world safe for democracy, and they were thinking
more in terms of banane wars and things like that. Ue never got into
a banana war that was big gnough to have s divisign, so nobedy sould
ever donceive of getting into one thst sizs, The Mlarine Corps
wanted to be small, it wvanted to be good, but § must say that I
didn't fesl even then as a young officer that they were looking
to the future in the proper way of being prepared and thinking
about these things before we got into a situation and have so feuw
people with any background that cpuld understand the magnitude of
the operation.

I remember the Maerine Corps Schools when I was there, 11 had
the Uperations Section for one yeasr, maybe two years, and when I
looked over the schedule for the courses I really thought it was
very ppor, there was no continuity in the teaching effort. For
instance, one day you'd have a problem in defense and the next
day it may be advance guard, and you'd finslly get sround to the
offensiva. 1 thought you left the student with the impression
that when you had to defend you'd have to go back and think what
you did in the school problem. ﬁnd‘I thought the way to do this
thing was to start right out as vou would in 2 campaign -~ let's

visualize the whole campaign from the beginning, sven the
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mobilization, get into the positions, start our march to our
objsctive, and have 2 mesting sngagement with the snemy. #And
if wmnd whan we were forcad on the defensive we asgsumed the
defensive to givBJe complete picture to the student es ppssible
of how ocur cempaign would be conductsd, instead of one day have
defaense, the next day offgnse and so on -~ they didn't gst the
plcture in betwesn.

S0 the first thing I did was scrap all those little problems.
We spent the whole summar working on this project problem, which

wasn't too popular with the instructors I had, I can assure you.

s 1 can imagine. We'll talk a little bit more about that later,

bescausg this is an important ares.
Is it possible, conszidering the thinking of the senior officaers
in the early 30s, say '"33~'34, regarding the future of the farins

Corpa, that their concepts uf the future of the Marine Corps

- yis-a~vis ancther war, were based primarily on theilr expsriences

in World Wayr I, as being & brigade within ap army unit, within an
army division.

For instence, Gen. Shepherd mentioned the fact that he always
folt, ﬁe always remambered his experisnce with the 4th Brigades
within the 2Znd Army Division, and he always was convinesd that he
never was going to #llow his unit to bs broken up and replaced

them with the Army, or have a brigade within an Army division or

- Lopps.

Erskine: 1 don®t know how much damage it did to the Marine Corps

to have had the 4th Urigade as a part of the 2nd Merine Division.
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Az a matter of fact 1 think it wae one of the greatest thinge the
Marine Corps sver did. They went in there and they did a wonderful
job, and I didn't find snything too bsd that the Army did to us in
World War I. We went aver, and we had a fMsrine briyadier general
in command of this brigade, and after o period of time he uwas
rellieved by Gan. Harbord who was then a brigadier generval, and I
don't think we sver had any better commander then Gen. Harbord,

Angd incidentally, I've alweys fek: felt that the Marine Corps
contributed a great deal Lo Gen. Harbord’s carseer, I thought

hs wss a good commander. ! don't remember ~~ nNow st lsast, anyway =~-
any dirty desls we got from the Army. OFf course there was slways
great discussion about the publicity the Marine Corps got, end the
Army I think did feel that the flarine Corps smphasized a great many
things in the public eye much more than thes Army, when some of the
Army units end efficers fglt thet the Army had done just as well,

maybe hetter.

fis VYss, Of course that was always ~~ has been down to the present
S des
time -- a thorn in the minds of many senior Army general officers.

Erskine: Yes, I think it still exists to z considerable degres.

e 0Of course the Harine Corps, @8 you recall, was not responsible
Flogd G ibhond -
for that. The Army were the ones who allowed s—given story to get

through the censcors and get publicized.

Erskines Yas.
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{: Pid you have to take eguitetion as the other officere did st

Fort Leavenworth?

Erskines bOh yes, we had an sguitation course thers, But most pf

gur figld exercises -+ the physical exerciss requirements, were

like this: we would have fisld problems and you'd ride the whole

day, sometimes ynu'd ride as much ssg 20 miles & day to cover the
field problem, And that went through the winter. And I can remember
some of those Kansas winters were pretty cold. It was very difficult
te figure eut the weather; you might go out in the morning and it
ssemed mild, and it'd be down 30 degrses end freeze you to death

before you got in that aftsrnoon.

Gig OF course the Ecogle de (uerre -~ the tourse at the Ecole de
Buerre is well known for having these military rides, these voyages

and stasges., Gen. 0.P, Smith was telling me about them. I am

wondering if the influence of the Ecols de fuerrze was what led

Leavenworth to instituts these rides.

Erskine: It could, but the Apmy then was very fond of horsesg;

aven the in?antr??dpmle teams., The infantry had a polo team as

well as the cavalry., The horse was a very impertant item in the

Army in those days.

i+ The cavalry probably was the suprasme arm of the Apmy at this time,

Erskinss Uell, they thought they were. The ceavalry was a pretly

prous outfit. They had some good officers in the cayalry, too, |
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f: WNow, fellowing your graduation fFrom Lesvanworth, vou were
detached in Juns of 'J4, and you went Lo Marine Corps Schools

for about six months. {hat did vou do there?
Epskines 1 was an instructor., UWhere did I go after that?

it You went to China, to Peking., This was 2 rether sheort tour

as an instrusctor,.

Erskine: 1 started thinking back, end it looked to me like I'd
been in &he school longer than the average officer should be,
and I wae assigned there =23 an instructor, and I key think I

started off with Intelligencs,
is Yes, F~1 and f-2 gsctions.

Erskine: -1 and F-2, Btaff Operations & Procedures, Iptelligence,
It geemed to me that I had either been teaching in school -« the
Basie¢ Schowl, Fort Benning, the flarine Lorps Schools -« so I felt
I was getting a little bit overeducated and yndertrained.
S0 1 went to Washington, and Gen, Holecomb had juét bean made
a brigedier gensral, and he had been gelected to gane dbwn:aa the
new commandant of the Schools. So 1 went to Gen, Holcomb and I
told him that I felt I was heing overeducated end uﬁd@rtﬂaihaﬂ,
and I wanted to get out and go with some line unit, He fook a
rather dim view of this end he said, "That's no¥ = very good thing |

fr=c S
to do, to come up here and ask me, who heve bsen selected to go
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down as comnmandant of Harine Corps Schools, and you want to get out."
I said, "Usll, 1 just feel that way and I foel it's time for me to
get out., It's better for me, I think, and it would be better for
the Marine Corps, maybe." He finally sgreed, and I was assigned to
Peking. 1 went out to Peking st that time.

1+ He was very strong on sducetion, ! understand.

Erskine: VYes, very strong, and I think he was a preotty well darn

educated officer.
s 1 think he was ons pf the sarliiest language officers.

Erskinse VYes, he was in China fop guite & while as a language

is What wes duty in Lhina like st this time, Genoral?

Epskine: I gusssy you must go back to the ald days to exblain that.

. | i who had been there
In Peking we had a guard of bstwesh 400 and 500 pauplaﬁznut the same

strength all the time) since theAﬁax@r Rebellion. This guara‘mas
one of several fTorsign gusrds. They had the British,”thay had the
Italdan,; they had the French and they had the Dapanaaa; the Rumsian
guard was no longer there, the Duieh guard was no longer thers, and
those compounds had been pretty much tlosed up, ar at least they

had no guard. Trese upits were organized into intesnational unit,

angd by gentleman's agreement the American commandant would command
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the internatiensl guerd in cese of trouble, end he supervised the

sovalled planning for the defense of the Diplomatic Corps.
i1 Against ghom?

Erskina: Against anybody, Probably Chinese, or insurgents, o
anyons else, And around the guards' areas in the Diplomatic Lorps,
outside, they had cleared out all the buildingsfﬁ”r think $Exems
100 meters, to give us fields of fire in case we needed it, because
the diplematic section of Peking $8s surrounded by a wall known es
the Tartar Yall, and they have a ssparats police Force within the
main city, which is also walled,.

hen I arrived over there I was replacing Lt. Cel. Sullivan,
i went over as a magjor and was made lisutenant eploenel soon afisp-

Wax‘ds, I think.
fl: You wers made lisutenant cplonel in July of '36,

Epskine: I thought the military training end so forth had got to
a pretty low level, one ﬁhmt I didn't think wes befitting to the
Marine Corps, and as Uparations offices I went to Lol. Rixey and
told hiwm that, and he more or less agreed at the time, Ve ﬁad a
good bit of sicknass, it was sold weothar, it was Hanuary anhd darn
cold in Peking at that time of the yeasp. HAnd we had several men
die fyrom pneumonia,; and I stiributed thie to the fact that they
hed too much time to drink b@er.and tot little time for éxarciaa

out in the fisld. 1 am not exsctly surs of this, but svery afficer
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in the guard except mysalf and Sullivan, had been pasced over by
the Selection Board. Col. Rixsy had also been passed over For
promotion. Hg said, "I more or lsss agree with ybu, and you take
tha bull by the horns and straighten this thing out.®

Ve set up a pretiy stiff training schedule, which included
hikes in this cold weather, and muskelry exercvises out at the
rifle range which was 4 or 5 miles awey., OF courss we were gulite
limited in the arsss we could use down there, =0 we had to march
to the rifle rangs and use as much of the rifle range as possible
for Firiﬁg prablsma{dﬂ,

Sur death rataﬂdrmppea to zero, and our people improved
tromendously. UOur rifle team had lost svery match, I think,
in the Asistic Quadrangle {hvt for 5 or 6 years. So we
concentrated on this., Actuglly what I really did was to take
®RR some of thess professsicnal oldtime shots off the team and
put some youngsters who were expert riflemen and had some promisea,
and I had a very good coach by the name of Otho Wiggs. And by fod
they won the next championship, and I think we won the succsseding
thres. e were really out to get it, And they did it.

Life thers as an officer -- there wers so many parties going
on that the average officer didn't heve time to do his duty, For
instance, #8MEtimes you'd start in the morning, there’d be some
sort of a reception at 10 ofclocks You might go to the ltalian
Embassy at 10 e'clock, and over thers you would drink and end up
with champagne. You had about all you needed for a whole day
there, but then thie was followsd by somgthing over at the British

Embassy -~ you ware invited i{here. dnd it seemed that 1If you
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daclined these invitations, the person who invited you would have
his feslings hurt. It was not an excuss. So we'd go to the British
Embagsy and drink gin until you were so tight you could hardly eat
your lunch, Then from there we had s cocktail hour, maybe, and

that was followsd by a dinner which kept you up st least till
midnight. &0 therse was no time, really, for an officer to gst

down to business, Thare was a lot of pretty damn hard drinking
while I was there,

But pur training schedule did bring some of these fellows
back to a normal 1ife again. Finally sll these peopls who yere
passad sver were transferred and other people came in, and I
thought we had & darn good little outfit thars. I had my personal

problems making these people work.

G: 1 wsae always under the impression that duty in China stations,

especislly at Peking, wes pretty choice duty at this tims.

Erskings It wes supposed to be, but so far as the performance of
people as flarines, and be prepsred to carry out the Functioms
that thay'mare thare to perform, I thought the level of training
had dropped to a prétty low level. The rveason it was consideryad
to he choice duty way the soeial activities that were involved.
filso, service was chesp, lLiving was thesp, and families could
‘snjoy life more there thﬁn they could, on their pay, in any other

areay of the world.

i+ Especially in the States during the Daepression,
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Epskines Oh yss.

{: The rsason -- er -~ iP the duty haed besn that chpice it would
sasm to me that a lot of peopls probably weuld put in for it, and
if Haadquartara had the responsibliity to piek and choose, it would
Q2%§ﬁ§§§%ﬁgﬁdths topnoteh pmupla?rmaybs undaer the buddy-huddy

systum, those who were more in faver with the Dstail Ssotion,

‘ g% in tops
actuéﬁI&”@gig%/4

Frank

y hlohts

(a@ ve sentegcs
5 ’ e what ir.

part
\ i B ed

Erskines 1 thbk your essumptisn ig perfectly corrsct. 3But I am
just telling you what 1 found when I went there.

osat cgiing withe Ly
Gs Well, ng, I didn™—=—8r -~ it just seemed incongrubus that
the situation was as bad if the assignment was so0 choice, becouse
I know that 2 lot of the people st this time -~ and perhaps serlisr,
Gen, Vandegrift and some of the other Harines who attained high
rank, Gen, Thomas, bLorton and a number of other paaﬁia - WODE

outstanding individuals who wers sent thave,

Ergkings Yes. WMell. Soon after I wes there we had a noticommissionsd
officers schoel, thrse times o wesk, @ thinks. And I gen dinto some
of these socalled periods of instruction. I think some of the
officers who were tesching the noursse didn't know & hell of & lot
about it themselves. Sok § decided to have svery noncommnissioned

of ficer in the guard teke the correspondence 2nd lieutensnt's courss,
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aven though he was a corporal. Well, that raised the protests of
a lot of people, that it wasn't necessary and sc forth, but they
gid it, and I sssigned certain officers to certain subjects, and
when these people reached those subjects they'd first give you a
lecture on the subjecthk and then teeck the sxamination that was
gent out from the Marine Corps Instlitute.

Then I looked the papers over befors they were sent in, ang
of course many peopls didn't have too wvuch sducetion, but they got
along, angjg man who feeded help we had somebedy tutor him to
bring him up to standards. And 1 think thai was one of the best
things we did the whole time I was in Peking.

wérld tiar II came amleng, and I found any numbey of those
fellows who had been in the Peking guard, who came Lo me and they
had the rank of captain or lisutenant colonel. 1 remember one was
Lt. Col., Thompson, he was an putetanding gunnery sergesnt over
there, and he was 2 lisutenant colonel in the Pacifiec, And any
number of these people. 1 think ocne of thﬁqﬂ*JWkSJMJMP would get
busted sbout every three months, he was a good soldiers, but
cauiﬁn‘t stay wpximxRigxbuzis away from his hmﬁnge/m&$1%§>
my sergeasnt major in the 3rd Marine Division when I first arrived.
I had been on his neck so much that ths firat time I sent for him
ha eame in trembling and said, “What aboot A@M€j:ﬂ%ﬁ%/unouszag?”

i saldy "I just want to know who made you the sergsant major.
You must have improved & hell of a lot!" Hewxs He said, "I have,
I have improved.” He got along and he turned out to be a darnp

auod sargeant major,
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Gy During the time that all this partying wae guing on, what were
the snlisted Marines duoing? lers they pretty much thrown on their

oun?

Erskine: No, we had clubs there, and that was really a hoadeghe
in many ways. e had a noncommissionad officers! club and a
private's club,end we tried to keep thess pecple in the B2 club
as much as possible. I also wes assigned the job of supervising
these clubs, that is;#%%ancialﬁbg setup shd otherwise. The clubs
were places where they could go and drink. They couldn't bring
women into the club axcept for a drink, It ween't the kind of
club that spme people may think it was,s vou kﬁmw.‘

There was sntirely to0 much drinking and eonce in a while
in the privates' club psrticularly, somebbdy would break inte
the sipt machine and things like that. They had Chinsse servants
in all these clubs. Ag a»matﬁer of fect we had Chinese cooks in
pur ness in Peking, with the result that the Marines sort of

forget how Lo run thelr own mess,
¢ Every man had hie ouwn seprvant?

Exrskines e had all the time I was there, but they did restrict

to ~~ su many Chinese servants to a sguad. The Marine was really
living on the cream of the land wver there: he would have this boy
cleah his rifle, look after his clothes, shine his shoes and evaery-
thing 1like that, A1l the Merines had to do was come oubt and stand

at attention., I remember several times when I made an inspection
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of a boy and would find bim with a dirty rifle ,or aomething like
that he would say, "My Chinese boy didn't fix it." Boy, I'd let
him have a3 piece of my mind right there. Net only that, maybe he
had a little extra duty until he found out how to do it, and no
Chinese bay in the meaniime.

That was pask sort of the way things went. The food was aluays

goad, the rations were plentiful, and the Chinsse did a good job

of preparing it.

B: dho were some of the officers out thers at this time in the

Embassy, do you recall? Ip the Embassy Luard.

Erskine: Lt. Col. Buckley was the sxecutive officer for about, 1
guess, & or 9 wmonths, after I arrived, then I was made éxaa BXEC
plus Opegrations and Iptelligence, CLarvel Hall was paymaster, I
think Dave Shoup was there as a lst lisutgnent. I forget the pbames
of the cpmpany commanders exesptvmne‘ It wes Lloyd Pugh for part

of the time., Ue bad @ young Capt. Humphray.
B: Was Griffith out there at this time?

Erskine: Sem Griffith came out and was with us for a while, then
he put in for the language course and he became a lenguege student.
ig had e very fine locking young lieubtenant by the name of Ty Lobb.
He got in a little jam in Uorld liar I1. I had & letter from him

the other day, down in HNexico, . ;

fis Was Banks Holeom«b out there st this time?
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Erakine: Banks Holcomb wes there but he was alse with the naval

attache,
s He was studying Chinese,

Erskine: Well, he studied Chinese, but he spent pert of his life
out there and he could spesak Chinese so well that this course was
nothing to him, As o matter of fact he PExxBitiedxE8xBryxdex
actaed on the Chinsss stage out there, on many cccasions, and was

billed as #Mr. Ho.

s Mr. Ho.o That's pight, he was born and paised out there until

high school agey, 1 belisve.

Epokiney I think he was born there, but I think he spent 8 periocd

of time back in the States and then went back out.
B¢ He went to the Naval Academy.

Erekine: VYes. I hed met him in the Basic School when I was there.
He was a hell of g good vifle shot, but he pever procesded to be
a team shooter. Another men who was there was Larsen, retired

recently as major general.

it Gus Larson. |
L

Ersking: VYes. Hg was a fine shot, I siso taught rifle markamaashipj

and pletol mgrksmanship in the Basic Schopl. |
|
J
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fagill, Freddie Megill was in Peking with us as a 2nd lieutenant

And Ramsay, I FPorget hig first nams.

iz Frod Remasay?

Erskines VYes.

i I think his father was a retired Marine officer.
Erskine: That's right. He had the mounted dstachment,

8+ Tiny Fraser wasn't out there at this time, or was he out theors

later?

Erskiney 1 don't think Fraser was there then, I don't remember him
being there thsen.

fz UYas the mounted detachmant an aptual part of the 7@?

Erskine: Uell, it staried out =~ You aaai”honsa racing in Paking,
they uge 1little ponigs they get Ffrom up in Mongolis. HAnd it's

Plao MpCH UG

guite a thing out thers; they have a rece horsse out at
Pino pp Cwipn G- o
33T HeAs i is the way I think it's spelled, I am not sure.

It was outside the pity, This was sort of dominated by the Sritish,

But we had participation of all of the foreign colony ia this thing.

The peppls would buy their horses #nd rade them. If khey didn't

turn out fo be a good race horse, they would turn them over to the
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Guayd for consideration of one dollar, UFf course we had te have
special dispensation from Headguariters Marine Corps to buy the
foody the equipment, the saddles and so forth, but people preferred
to turn their horses over to the Guard because they knsw they would
ge get good treatment. I guess we had 30 or 40, and we also used
those horses foy polo. Ug had 2 pole team from the command thare,
and we participatadin that. We bhad a tough little feliocw ~-
sometimes you could pub on a rein and change your dizection,

and he'd break ths rein, I had that happen to me sevaral times,
sspecially playing polo, beczuse they become ball crazy, and they
Just keep geing after that ball and vou have & hell of a time

changing his mind about it.

s Uhen did you bscomg interested in polo, Genersl?

Erekines The first vesr I was oubt thers they prevailed upon me

to come out and try sut, They'd give 8 gup to the best §§§§§%E -
that'se the first vear polo man. So @ won the Griffin Cup the

first year and miss also made the first team the First year, as

number 4,
fis Very goodt

Erskines I played, and ws won. Peking hadn't won g Narth China

champlonship in polo for guite 2 while, But we won, Tientsin was

the main competitor, the lSHan%hﬂﬁj s in Tientsin.
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s Yéa, I was going to ask you sbout them, They were called the
Chocolate Candy Soldiars or something? They'd been thers so long

that th&y 5 e

Erskines I don't remsmber hearing that myself, but it could be.
They had better horses and bigger horses than we had, I think
their horses were ouwned by the Army, and had been purchased for
the Army. Of courss polo was a very importaent sport in the Azmy
at that time, But the fiprst year that I played we won the North
China chempionship, and the secsnd year we won the North China

championship, For the first time io, I think, gix years.

§: This wes a Zpuyx two~year tour, generaily?

Erskines Yes, but I was there almost two and a half yesrs. I

think it was two and & half ysars by the time I got home. #As I
) Ton A, ‘

remonber I arrived in Januspy in ¢65Lg, and ths port wes Fillaed

with ice. God, it was a misorable time, And I think I left in

fis méy, You were debached.

Erskine: May. And went home through Jepan,

§¢ On the President Lincoln.
Exskine: Did 17

@y Yessire
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Eyaskine: 1 guess that'e right,

r You sailed from Kohse.

Erskine: No, I sailed back home from Yekohama. I went ever, I think
gn ong of the President lings. I don't remember whather it waes the
L@ncoln or not. But we lended in Kobe, and from Kobe we took a

, ) Tong kL
Japanese ship and went down to Fonkus,

fis That's right. President Johnson., You went on the Choan Maru

from Kobe.

Erskine: That's going over.

{1 Going over. Then you came back on the . . .

Erskines Uh uvh. 1 had about 10 days in Japsn on my way home.

Gs UWhat wers your relations like with the other forsign military,

with the Japangse, for instande?

Erskines I got along mexms beautifully with the Japanese. They

had a liaison officer by the name of Kishinami, who would always

come down ta me when we had any difficulty beétween our twe guards,

and we would settle these things very well. It was difficult for j

ocur people to sort of stay out of troubls with the Jupaness,. {

{1y lias there aglweys conflict with the Japanese? |
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Epsking: The Japanese would go on liberty by sguad, and have a
noencommissionsd of ficer in the equad in charge ef the group.

Or occasionally you'd see two Japs, but they always had to have

at least tuwo together, #F course the question of pex out thare ==

I don't know whether you want to get into this.

1 Sure.

Epskine: It's a very important thing, Venersal dissesss is alsp
an important thing, z0 one of the solutions to it wes to set aside
a certain saction of the gity where the Rkxz Americans would go,
that is the red light district. The Japsnsse had a section Lhst
their people went to. And when somebody weuld invsde the other
side you had some sort of a Fight on your hands. The Bpitish

came intc pur sector, and the Italiens 1 don't think respected

any ssctor. 8But the way this thing was run ~~ and | mads saveral
inspections through thesre -- they had a doctor who wes empdoyed
to inspect 21l of the girls, and he did this I think twice a veek.
And éeverygne found with any sort of ap infection would be seni out.
I was eurnriﬁéd that most of these people were under 24U vears old,

At least they seemed to me to be.

i+ ALl Chinese glrls?

Epskines Qecasiopally you'd find a8 Jap, but not many.

{11 What about the Uhite Hussian prxizes princesses socalled?
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Erskine: They were more or less on their own., UUp had guite a lot
of White Russians out thers, and some quite gifted people who had
left Russia. As a matter of fact, before 1 moved into the Cuard I
lived in a part of the old Russian Legatlion which was then under
the supervision of Lt. Gen, Horvath, who was a former Govsrnor
General of flanchuria. He had also participated Iin World War 1/
as a cavalry commander -- a very fine looking fellow, about 6 fest 6
tall, He was & very accomplished artist and musician. 1t was
pitiful to ses the way they had to live. I think he had leassd
this vld building and it was a gorgsous plapge -- or had been, at
pna time, of course the fwr furnishings were pretty sparse because
the Russiansg when they left there took sverything of any value,
I think I paid about %60 a menth for a very nices apartment, and
he lived in the apartment down below me. I got to know the old
man pretty well: he hed o long white beerd that came almost down
to his waist, he W28 a very regal loogking gent, and ho walked
like =2 ramrod. e had spachpus ground azound thie building, part
of the old Russian compound. And the Japanese used {o taunt ds
by sending up their peaplefgﬁ training in the grounds, and they
had ho right, they mever asked anybody'sz permission, and they'd
gend them cver there and they'd have drills and physicsl exercise.
One day when 1 was coming home in a rickshaw they had a signal
group out there and they had wire scattersd all across the path
that came up to the door. They velled at me and I didn?t do any«
thing except get nut and toke my knife and just cut the wire, and
hiyld my knife in my hand. That stopped that ons.
Thaey came over for phsy physics! sxercise, I had ane of thuse

old Bilibad chairs, you know.
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iy Yas.

Erskine: &nd we had quite a little porch out in front of the main
building. And while they uwers putting on this exerciss like a
buneh of monkeys ocut thars, I had my number one boy ip his white
suite get down my Bilibed chair end put it on the front of the
porech while they were dolng all thie pight there, and stand there
with a selizer bettle and a bhottie of Scotch, and then he would
pour me a Scotch and I'd deink i%“ghgggnthey would finish one
exercise I would spplaud and thank them very much for putting on
this demonstration for me every day. And they damn soon guid.

(iaughter)

Qs How about the relations with the British military?

Epskings We were very close to the Brikish.
¢ HOw sbout the enlisted men?

trskines They gmt along very wsil. ie had very few éaﬁsm there
of friction with the ﬁtiti&h, and v$§y few cases of Friction with
the Italiana. The French had some ﬁﬁnamitas,and they had to be
controlled proity much by the Fpench dwmménaant; e did have
soveral little ingidents with them ~- nothing too bad, feuding
and fighting down in the red light district or something like that.
But I think the worst case we had =~ aﬁllaast I thought it was
gaing to be the worst »- was « . » Lot mg go back and explain the

way ths rangse were laid out,
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There was a certain asres, and we had the butts built up,

I guess 280 feet high, and there wase a mud wall down eech ¢f thass
rangas, e had the British range, the Japanese rangs. I gusss
e had asround 185 targets on each range. And ths Italian rangs -
all with a mud wall betwesn sach one.

Ua wgﬁlﬂ/ﬁgég our psopls out to shoot in a truck. The Japanese
always hiked ﬁut -~ they didn't have much ammunition: I wes told
over thers that they only had ?iue rounds per year for training.
fAnd they wers not very gnod shots. Then one dey whsn our people
in ths truck were geing out to the ratgs, scme of the Jeps uwere
going alongside the road -~ this was a pretty narrow road -~ and
ane of ocur boys leaned aver and gpsiied slepped ons of these Japs,
& Japeonese officer, and knocked him down, and I think the truck
ran over hisg hat. @Well, Kishinami wae over to see me sbout this,
and I could hardly beslisve it. Gen. Yandegrift was then in
command of the Gyard and he told me, "You go find who did that
and you bring him to me.”

They brought this young officer over, and he still had the
finger marks on his fape wvhere he'd heen slapped, so there uas

plenty of evidence. And I had Kishinami sit with me while I

questioned svery man who was in that truck,; and of course nobody

knew anything about it?higgmistypical, fFinally I said to Kishinami,

"i'll gb over and call dgigﬁa Commandant, and if my Commandant says
it's worthuwhile, and explain to kim that you heard me question these
and you didn't have any extra guestions. 1 Jjusi don't see any way
we can solve ity nsbady will edmit it. And nons of my peopls is

going to tell on the other, Don'it you think that's s pretty good
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trait emong soldiers?" Yes, he thought it wss good., 1 said,
"If it had happsned teo us, I am sure your people would do the
sang thing." And I ﬁrimko build up thsir integrity a little bit,

Gen, Vandegrift finally told me, "You go with Kishinami and
gxplain it to the Japansse commendant," Which I did, and he said,
"A3l right, we'll drop it thers."

1 thought that was really going to develop into something.
g It could have.

Erskines It could have, yss. Toward the end of my tour -~ I anm
trying to think of the name of the new commandant ~- there was a
lieutenant colonel commandant, a grest blg husky fellow; he'd baen
to German military schools; and acted very German in his manner.
He was religved by ~~ I can®t think of the man's name at the moment ==
a full colenel who was senior xxxxxx L0 our commandant, #And that
was contrary to the gentleman's agreement for the command of the
International Guard,

There wass much discussion sgbout that, Hut he was there, and

he was the semior officer. Uhen ha arvived, I went in to see then

Lol., Vandegrift and told him about it, and he was pretty furious,

In other words this man had usurped his conmand. He went cver to

see the Ambasssdor -- I don't know what transpired there w- and

“thsy came beck gnd I said, "lHs got to buckle on ouvr swords and go

pay an officiazl call on this gent.” He sald, "I am not goling to

do it, I am not going o call on any Jap."
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This went on I think wmost of the day, and I remindsd him two

or three times. The next day he buckled on . . . .

End of Sids 1, Taps 1, Session 111,
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Session 11T continued

Side 2, Teps 1

s I em sorry, General, that we ended abruptly, You were saying

that Gen. Vandegrift did agree to . . .

Erskiney Yes, he galled and he found this fellow to be a prettiy
affable gent. He wanted to participate more in the activities of
the Guesrpds. e had an athletlic svent sech veasr, and ws slesg had
an internpationel compebition with saall wesapons. The Japanssa had
always refused to participate in any ef these things, they couldn't
stand defeat, OF course we always won the rifle championship, the
small %Sgééfahampinnahip, and we won the athletic competitions,
Durp stiffest competitor in the athletic competitions were slways
the Italiasnes., They would send down Lo Tientsin or even back home
and get athlestes to participats in this thing, to be assigned to
the Guard just for & short peried of time, They did the same
thing in the rifle competition,

The old colonel spid he would like to participate more, and
I brought up the guestion of the small ﬁéﬁéﬁLaompstition. 1
thought you'd have less physicel contaect there then you yould
by bringing them intu the ethletic competitions. #And he said yas,
he'd like very much to do that. They had been saying that the
Jap wes so nearsighted he couldn't shoot. He bad no rifle, he
had no ammunition, he didn't have any Qﬁ1zoﬁ/, | ‘and didn't

know the rules, ho sald.
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1 said, *"I'11 taks care OF thaty I'1l1l give you the rifles,
the same kind of rifles, for the periocd of the competitiony I'l1
give you my second best ceasch -~ I won't give you my best coach -
and I'11l give you the smmunition you nesd, and I'll give you a
place to practice over in our Buard.” I thought that would bring
us closer together, particularly since he was the senior commandant.

I forfiet whom I assigned as coach, {tho liiggs coached ocur team.
This disproved the theory that the Jepensse couldn't shoot.
Usually the thing went off with the Americans winning, sithsr
the British or the Iltalians second, the French down some place
below. But this time in their first competition, ws took the
competition, bul they ware number 2, And the old commandant uas
s happy aboui this he went back and got a small truckload of sak®
ahd brought it ovsr, because aftesr this compstition we always had
g dinner at our place for wll the compeatitors. And he zrrived
himassl? to present this sak& to the tesw. As I remember he wented
to go in and eat with the team. 1 think we slways had brpilsed
chicken on this day -- half e chicken -~ pr a beefsitsak, I don't
know, but aﬁyway we had a good meal.

1 spoks to Col. Vandegrift and told him what was transpiring
and he saiﬁ, "No, we cannot turh bLhose people loose up there.

They pan have heer and that's sll, 1 am not going to sixxg let

~them start drinking sak€ up here in the mese hall.® Ue didn't

do it, but ws kept the sak®, I forget what we did with it.
Originally we put it in the sick bay, and I think it wes eventually

percelled out here and there among some of the old noncons.
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G: I've hmard & story -- I don't recall who told me, somsons wsho
must have been out there at this time, when this new Japansse
commandant came ocut and made the statement that well, if the
Amsricanes sent someone sgnior to him he hed in the safe a warrant
for promotion to general., 1 don't know if thie has pcourred here

gr down in . o .

Erskine: That was » common statement, not only relating to the
Jgpaness, but Tor the 8ritish also. 1've heard it many times,
but nobedy could ever say that they knew it to be a fact «-
that in case of real hostilities they could reach in and this

colonel would become a general.
This colonel finally, at the beginnipng of the war, went back
to Japan and he became @lisutenant geperal, end commanded Japanese

forces in Burma,. His name slips my mind.

1+ las this Tominags?

Erskine: It doesn't ¥ike sound like it.

&3 Gen. Tominaga? He T think was =z senior sar Japansse officer

at aither Tientsin or Peking when war broke out.
Erskine: It dogen't sound like the pname to me.
£ You mentioned the fact that when this nsw Japansss commandant

wanted to perticipate in an athletic event you were goncerhed sboub

th@ T )
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Erskine: He never got into athletics, but he did want to get

into the rifie shooting,

43 You said there wes some fear about body wmntaatf. iag thers
an attitude of “here is our coming snemy"™, or a prejudice sgainst

the Japaness, or something liks that?

Erakines I think everybody felt that way, and the Japaness were
pratty cocky at that time. You'd ses in the vity almost svery

day one or mors Japanese officers with a2 briefcase, a camera and

a pair of field glasses; bthey would sctually walk upon pur ssetien
of the Tartar Wall and loek over and make pictures and everything
elss, But I had something that I'll tell you about later when I
went back through Japan -- aboui how cocky they wers.

They had already seized Jehol and had occupied it, end a
short time after that they had a big sukiyaki party, over et the
Japaness Embasey: I think it was in the commandant’s quarters
over there. And we were all invited te it. And they had round
tablea with charcoal braziers in the venter. SRpxPExEhrsxdzpaanss
sfRixsruxhed They had about two Amsricans at sach table and the
rest wers Jepenese. They would copk your feod there for vou.

e had a hell of & lot to drink there that night, The whole

plece was decorated with Jehol flage sirung across the room and
around the walls. ©Quring the divner, one of the Japanwse officers
gave to each Americen a R Jehol flag, and the one who gave it to
me mald, "This is our little brother Jehol, pleass be good to him."
I etill have the flag around some place, I don't know where it is

. wa?
right now. Butb hhatnpuraly propaganda.
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Toward the snd of this period over there -~ the period that
1 was over there -~ they had s ecavalry brigade sitting on Chinese
soil, I think only about 10 or 12 miles putside of Peking. And
the Chinese gsneral who was in command had some 90,000 soldiers
around the city, in barracks outside the city. I was invited to
lunch at his place in the city -~ 8% tiffin they call it over thers.
And we got in a conversation toward théd end of the measl, and I
saked him what he wes going to dop the Japanese were already
invading China, and Poi Hara was meking quite a number of visits
baek and forth, and he was referred to by the Japanese ovegr thare
as being the Lawrence of Arable FProm Japan.

I met Doi Hapa on several ocuasions. e were having a drink
at one of the cocktail parties ovep thers, and he was present one
time, and I said, "Just what are you doing over hers? You sszen
to make a lot of vieits.® Well, he had gohe to fanchuria to
present a Plag to a certain Japanese vrganization, and he thought
he'd come by China and see what the situetion wes in Chima, and
what the Americans were doing in China. He was a very outspoken
fellow. I said, "liell, what do you think now that you've bsen
down here?® He said, "I think old lady Chine sick old lady.

I speak in parable sbout China,” he said. "8he do not need
Uncle Sam, but what she need is Doctor Japan.” I said, "That
spunds like . pratiy ﬁﬁé}ght doectrine.” He said, "It is. It
is o good dpctrine.® I've never forgotten that,

Anyway this Chinese general whose namse 9lips my mind -« yeb
I have a picturs of him here some place with his chop on it, but

I don't know wghere any of my things are, reslly.
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it I hope you fing thess things.

Erskinss Hg said, "He can't do anything.” 1 said, ™y God,

you've got 90,000 trpops around this city, I understand." He said,
"Yes, maybe mors,." I said, "There are only about 10,000 Japaness,
why don't you go out there and beat the hell out of them?" He
sald, *Oh no, that won't work.”® 1 said, “dasll, if you have that
attitude, the Jepasnese sre going to take over China," Ha saild,
“Oh, not for long,” I said, "What do you mean by not for long?®"
He said, "Two or three hundred years.” 1 saild, "But if thay move

in what are you going to do in the meantime?? They'll just take

gver." He said, "9sll, you don't understand the Chiness ghilosophy.

Let the Japs come in and tske over China. In twe or 288%years thay
will all be Chinsse. They pnly have 90 millien Japs, snd we have
600 million Lhiness, The Chingse wam%&}%aka Chinese out of tha%}l
and in 200 op 300 years there will bs no Japen.?

That was, I think, the philosophy of ths Chinase at that time,
i3 lag this gensral a war lond?

Erskine: I think at one time he had been & wey lord, He wes the
gan&ral who moved in after Chang Chen moved out. Cheng Chen was
yery close to Chisng Kal-shek, and 1 think when things began to
gat more tenss up North Lhex ~~($an;.ﬁn was Mfinister of Defensse;
they had a very large defense buildimg with I don't know how many
people working in it right in Peking, But I understand they alse

had snother one in Chunking) -- they had & meeting -- I am oot clear

right now as to where this mesting was -- in which Jspan made certain

|

|
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demands (! believe they were strong demands) on the Chiness, and of
“°"§%ﬁa Chinese didn't egree with this, Gan. Ho -~ who was ons of
the representetives -- came back to Peking (he was then living in
Peking) and the Japs a few days later flew up soms bombing planes,
they loocked like about 100 pound bombs, snd thay flew right over
our guard compound Ltime after time, I'd say no more than 200 feet
high. And they flew over Ho's house.

Gen., Ho cleared out of there and waent down to the other
Defense Department in Chunking.

How they worked it out I don't know, but anywsy the Japansss
were showing them that they were rsady to do business, and also
they were evidently showing us that they had equipment over thers

fgailable that we didn't have. e knpw they had the bombers, but
we didn't think they’d s be 30 brazen as to fly time and time

again over our compound and actually circle it,
i+ This wasn't Chang Tso-lipn, was it?

Erskineg: Ne. It's something like Loo. He came from Shansi, I
believe. He movsd in there from Shansi into the Peking ares.

I fergot & lot of the things é- I used to know the terryain pretty
well, but it's slipped my mind now.

They had a big review, They hed a large Field, 1 think it
was south of Peking; he went through tﬁs sbuth gate to get thsre,
anyway. The rsview gwas outside the city, and of ceursa almost all
of the forelgn colony wes invited to come out and see this thinhg. d
He had a resvisuing stanﬁ, gquite large: I yuess seebte went up 20 deep.j

)
|
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tots of flags flying. 1% wss several wiles from the gate up to
this camp, and he had troops stationed about every 20 yards apart
on both sides of the road, and as you drove out in your car they
all ceme to a "present arms". This was & real shouw: when they
put on a show, they put en & good one.

e arrived thers at a specified time, which I think wag 10
pleclock in the morning. Then they fired a salute: instead of
firing 20-~0dd guns like we dg, they fired 101 guns, Then on a
signal -~ these troops wors grey~blue uniforms, and thay blended
inte the buckground so you could hardly see them. This was a
terrific flat arsa out there -~ he gave a signal {they had e bsnd,
it didn't keep much time but anyway it was music) and all of those
troops started double timing toward the rsviewing stand, And I
thought, "dhat a hell of a2 mess they are going to be in new! lho
is going to stop them?" They evidently had practieed this a lot:
they stoppsd in perfsct formation, he made s talk, then he gavse
another signal, and they all double timed back to their place.
Nobddy fell down, nobody £§§§ over sach other, and there must
have been 100,000 thers. A tromendous crpwd.

Then the parade started. I think it was five or six hours,
going by the reviewing stand, It wes led by this single band.
The bandleader instead of carrying s bston had & sword, and he
moved out in front after passing the reviewing stand, just like
our bands do, and he'd use his sword to give the diraﬂtioné and
the signals ta the band., And they played and played and played
antd played, Uhen o fellow would get tired he'd just put his horn
down and sit down., And when the bandleader gopt tired, he's d
stick hig sword in the ground and sit down. S0 you can see how

much divsetion they had.
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1 never saw such poor equipment in all my 1ife. They had no
modern egquipment., Hany of the troops had riflesy they had one
outfit celled the signal outfit; they had a few pieces of wirsy
they bhad ane group that came through with what amounted tn e 37

millimeter gun on steel wheels that were about the vintage of

thﬂ * * -
i+ Russo~Japaness War.

Erxskina: Chinese, wasn't it? Way back. The Russo-Chirese War.
But they had any number of battaliens of broad-sword soldiers,
and all they carried was a big broad sword, plus their sleseping
sguipment and things like that. Then their train came through,
ang they had spare rifles, nok in boxes, just threwn in into
thess carts, and many pf these cartes were pulled by men, not
animals, They had a cavalry detachment that was zfraid of the
band -- they had a hell of & time getting it by the band, The
band finally had to stop playing. They had these littls NMgngolian
poniss. Bui it wes one of the most interesting shows ['ve sesn
in my life, Bng I thought then, "There is nothing truer than the
fact that a Chinamanh's life i$.warth nothing," because they would
launch theee people into battlé, and against modern wespons they
eouldn't do a dampn thing. They'd get slaughtered., They could

probably overrun you because they had so many.

it Weren't the Lermans advising the Chiness Army at thié tima?
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Epskines They had German eguipment, and I think yes, they had
some German advisers, Not all German equipment. But everything
they hed was ancient. They had German péﬁﬁs s+ and they used
to march through the stresets of Peking, =znd as part of their
march discipline they would quite frequently sing, Thay'd have

a whole regiment coming down, mayhe 2-3000 people, coming through

the city, and they'd be singing & hymn, "Onward Christian Soldisrs.®

And the band would probably be playing Alsxander's Ragbime Band,

G: Hat But this is an interssting point about the regiment
singing., Gen. Yorten wes saying that as far as this type of spirit
goss, Warld lar I wes the last romantic wer, where the Marines
would sing. And Yorld Har I was a little mors cynical, and of
course the songs were somewhal mors obscane and vulgar. Then of

course in Korea I don't think there was too much singing.

Erskines No, I never hsard much sbout it., And some of the big
funerals in Peking were reslly sights to see. Sometimes it'd
take & cpuple of hours for ithe procession to pmss. Usuvally the
people who sent Flowers wnuldvsaﬁé flowers in little tubs -~ the
whole bush, blooming: I've seen it in the wintertime. And thers
would be maybe 100 of these tubs, with coolies verrying them.
And the blg casket was mounted, and spmetimes you'd have 100
people carrying it. How they ever figured it out to sqgualize
that lead, I never will know, because they had a series couple
of long poles that went underneath the casket, and from that

they rigged poles with two men.

e o
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it A crossbar type thing.

Ersking: Yes. And they would bring this thing down the streeb.
Preceding the casket would be the heir, who usually was cerried
under a3 sort of a white canapy with several psople accompanying
him, and he always had to look very sad. There would be people
poming along with paper money, with sireamers with Chinese
characters on tham telling about the life of this man, this great
man, and so Forth. Tren freguently, in a little carriage coming
aleng there would be paper méche repdoductions of his mistresses,
and the band would be playing anything from Y0Over Thers" -« Ilve
heard them sctuslly playing "Over There, somebody had given them
the music, I guess, if was the only music they had maybe -« to
"Alexander's Regtime Band," I've got 3 lot of movies I've made

of all these thinge that I haven't loocked st for ysars.

1t You know what we'd like to do? (Turns off tape) (Interruption)
Getting back to Chine, was there snything else that sticks out
in your mind as being of particular interest? Anything outstanding

duping thig tour? Personalities, problems, involvemenis?

Erskine:s I was there with three commandants. 1 was there at the
tail pnd of Cpl. Rixey's tour, thrnughﬁut'andagiift‘s tour, and
staved on a while with Col. #arston, Lntepr Haj. Gan. marstan -

dohn Marston. {Pause) I can't think of anything., 1 was vaery proud

of that guard when I left it. We had some good men, and I ren into

|
I

many of these people later in World uar i1, and I think the itraining
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program that we had there was very beneficisl te the individusls,

13 Now, when vou left China you were assigned ta the Marins Corps
Schools, and you remained thers from June '37 to May of '40. This
was three yearsfilled with fantastic changes as far as the Harine
Corps was concarned -~ a5 far as instruction, as far as the flest
landing exercises, the Flexes, were concerned, as far as curriculum
was cancernad. I know that you wepe very much involved with the
Guam problem, ths Roebling Swamp Budgy came up, As a matter of
fact 1 was told sbout the fact that you raised all serts of hell
with vour Buam problem, in the sense that vou'd figuxsd inserted
the use of the LVT, the Amtrac, into the problem, which Jjust threw

put the previsus schoel solution,
Erskine: VYes.
1y But I'd like, if you will, without my {interrupting vou) . . »

Erskiney I left there and I went Lo Japan, and a Japanese colons)
gave me letters of introduction te a couple of people. fGns of my
pegignments while I was in Peking was Intelligence officer ashors
For the Asiatic Flset. They didn't give any money, they didn't
give me any staff; I was just supposed to Pind out things, They
had a naval attachés I never saw him, [ saw must of his reports,
but he never Found out anything that was of particular intersst

to me.
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By Uime C.C. Brown there at this time?

Erskines C.C. 8pown wae there, and $chockK, I believe, ums the

naval attaché,

{11 And Horien « » .
(cross talk)

Ersking: Col. 5ti§%ﬁall was the Army attachs, and he had saveral
language students there with him plus a Capt. Barrett, who I think
was his sessistant. 1 had very little to do, zne they had nothing
to dao anything with, 1 would fellow through en certain things,
The only thing ! ever saw the naval attaché's office put aut
that was of any particulsy intersst was maybe thes location -~ orp
rather the suspected location -~ of Japanese fleek units,
I dantt know whether this is classified or not, but we had
g big radio tower, and this was to assist the Ambassador ig getting
his messages through. A&t the sawe time we had & crew there that
was a handpicked craw -~ gl} Mgvy, there might heve besn one or

twe Harines in it ~- and they hed their own defensive wsspons,

fir lias kmxsw Lesswell out theare at thise time?

Erskine: No, Lasswell was in Shanghai, I think.

§: How about Rochefort -~ Jos Rochefort -- this commander. They

were both later involved with MAGIC,
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Erskine: I don't know.

fis+ QDkay.

Exskine: s would pick up -~ we cuncentrated on picking up snd
intercepting Japanese navel communications, and 1 wes designated
as tha only officer who could go into this thing, end my Jjob there
was malnly te ceollect this intsroepted stuff, bundle 1t up and get
it back to Naval Intelligsence by courier, Wg had no reguler
aauriar,aait Just happened that some naval uFFic$?9was being
ordered home would come to Peking Por e big ringding, and I'd

find ocut absut it and get him and detailed him as courier, end
give him a sulicess full of this stuff to take home! (laughs)

But I understand that what wes collected waes guite valuable.
Gz I think Zachariaz was the braing of this at this time theres,

Erskine: Yes. {Pause) That's about all I can think of now about
Peking. It was a very pleasant duby. There is one stopry I'11
never Forget. You know, when you did go there in those days you

took sver the house and you took over the servants thet your

pradecsssor had. You shouldn't go out end hire somsbody. Thers

wasd this little organization that they had thers smong ths people,
afd they pme per practicelly decided vho'd wopk ?wrvyau. So 1 took
over the people that Sulliven had., This pld fellow who was my
number one boy wzs really cheating me in every way. Uhen he

dresved up he looked like 3 banker when he went down the sirest.
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After coneiderable time I finally gat rid of him, and I hiredé
bay who I think was half Nongolian, a fine looking fellow, he
had a crew rcut: he could be very polite and he could bs very ﬁﬁgﬁﬁxu.
He was inw one of his bad mogds one day. He always ussed te bring
in a menu because we bought certain fhings outside for so much,
and give him the money and he'd buy that, on a daily basis.

He brought the menu in one day to my wife, and she called
me and said, “Eg%g is in one 55 his bad® moods agsin.” She said,
"lLook what he's given me as a menu,." 1 looked at it, and the
main pimww itom was fried mice, and 1 ssid, "Hu, do you mean
Prisd rice?" “HNo, fried mice. ™o you know what mice means??
*Bh, yes, rates.” 1 said, "Vgu mean to tell me that you were
going to buy some little rats and cook them for us? You kuow
goddamn well that Americens don't sat thinks like that,.® He said,
"ipry fine food, very fine food. Tinest peeple sat fried mice.*

I was a litile perturbed, so I gave him a good scolding.

I played gk polo, and I Trequently got my clothes pretiy
well messed up, and my boots wereé all messed up, and 1'd get
home from the office and wanted te play pole, and he'd have
sverything laid out for me -- wy helmet, my mallet, and everything,
antg g pair of clagg?%QQUSera.

I cvame home this afternoon, and be had muddy trousers,
muddy boots -- he hadn't touched them. 1 sent for him. By that
time 1 was reslly Furicus, so I called him end I said, "Look at
thigl Why haven't you cleaned it?" Hg ssid, "No reason.”

I said, "You can be a good sszvant vhen youw want to be, but whén
you are ornery yeu can be the loublest son of 2 biteh I've ever

kwwx
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known, Bometims you ave going to make me mad and I am goona grab
you by the neck and put your head betwasn my knses (I had a riding
crop in my hand) and I am gonna whip you like & small child until
¥ou sry.” He never moved & muscle or changed his sxpression. Hs
bowed and said, “aster, a gentleman naver loses his temper.®
{laughter)

Ue never had this happensg apain.
{{r ©h gosh! They are funny people tg desl with, I guess,

Erskine: Well, they think differently. Aand you sre wasting yourx
efforts if you btry to change thewm. They've been doing this for

centuries.
§: Did you go back to China after World far II?

Ersking: No, I haven't bsan back to Chima, I've been to Japab

a number af times.
s You seld something happened when you went through Japen.

Erskings Oh, when I arrived there, I finelly got down to the
address where 1 was supposed to present this letter of introduction,
and I hau & hell of & time getting the santry to toke it upstairs -
he was down in the defense building., He finally took it up, and |
then another soldiepr came down and escortad me up. I can'i think
af His name now but he waa‘thé G~2 of the Japanese imperial staff.

Ha sﬁake axaallwnt'ﬁnglish, he welcomed me to Japan and so fopth
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end so on, end he said, "Do you have any Ffriends hers that I might
gat you in touch with?" And I sald, "I think #aj. Eishinami, who
ig lialson officer in Peking, is probably in . . . He said,
"Ygs, he is in my office.® He called one of his boys and within
thrae minutes Kishinaml was there. He said, "I am going to assign
Kishinami to you ass a oompanion, to teke care of you while you are
here. What would you like to du? But before you answer I want to
tell you something., I was attachéd in Washington, and 1 was yeiryg
to go dogn to the WMarins Corps Schools to deliver s lecture on the
Japanese capture of Tsingtao in World Wer I.* (They did a good
job pver there an that one) And he said, "I kept being delayed
angd delayed and delayed.® I said, "I can't understand that,®

He said, "0Oh, I de, very well. Thsy vould not let me come douwn
and visit the Schools until they took the maps of Japan off the

wall." Sp hs gave the lscture douwn there.

g When was this, 2ir, deo you knouw?

Erskiney B8efore World War Il. I can't think of his name now,
Anyway he said, "lhere would you like ko go ,and what would you
like to do? I know you are in the Intelligence businees, and 1'd
like for you to get sll kinds of valuable information while you

are hers.® 1 said, "Frankly I'd like to go out to the Navy Yard,
and po aboard some of your ships, I'd like to go &8 your

college, I'd like to go to the Naval Academy, the Nilitary Academy,
things like that. 1%d like te go see them.™ And he lgoked at me

with a half smile and he sald, "You esre only going %o be here iten
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days. It will take me longer than that to take the maps of the
United States off the walll* (laughter) What could be plainer?

I said, "Gh I don't think so. Of course on a quick vislt the only
thing I could v do is pick up what's in sight, because I dontt
think anybody is going to tell me anything cver here that you
don't want to be told to me."

tell, I didn't gst vary far with him, but he said, "1 am
giving you a bilg Bulck automebile, and a chauffer and all the
maps that you can ever use, If you ever need them in the future
in Japan . . . &nd sgain he had a blg roll of maps and it turned
out they were all proad mape,

S0 I spent my 10 days there, and Kishinami went with me
svery placs, I saw the museums, I saw the temples, I saw all
kinds of things, but damn little of any military valus. And the
night before 1 was leaving they had a sukivaki party for me.

I guess there were a dozen of 15 Japanese officers BEYERE"army
and Navy present. It was s beautiful roomn and there were
baeutiful geisha girls, and they hed == I still remember -~ great
big black sushions embroidersd in gold for yeu te sit on. 8nd
the geisha girl cooked your food and sven put it in your mouth,
and brought you your drinks. e were drinking both saek€ and
Sooteh, After a while sverybody was feeling pretty geod, and
this colonel ~- I think he wes a coleonel, he might have bean =
genaral, (I was only a ligutensnt colonel at the time, so I don't
imagine there was anybody over the rank of colonel there) -- said
to me, "You know, you have good friends here in Japan, I knouw

Kishinami here, he is an old friend of mins, we wers schovl matese,
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then I am in command oen the West Cosst, if you have sny trouble
you come sep ma or contact me, and I'll sae that you are all right
and that you are teken care ef.” That prompted another guy o
say, "When I am in command in New Yerk, you do the sams thing
with me,® The this paval officer spoke up and said, "I am going
to be in the Los Angsles area, 1 think, and you come snd see me
if you have any difficuldy.* And 1 said,"Wlell, that's all vargy
nice. hat is your name, again? I want to remember this San
Pisgo fellow.® It was Saito.

Then we had a few nmore drinks and then Saite spoke up, and
I wes pretty goddemn furious et this point. I didn't know sxactly
what to say, and 1 thought saving noething would be the best,

Saito then said to me, "Now if this all faile, what are
you going to do Por us?* I couldn't think of anything decent

to say, apd I said, "I'1l give you a military funeral.®

fi2 0h oht! Uhat wae the reaction ts that?

Epskines 1t was, "Oh ho, ho, ho, hot" Then they told me that
they had copled the British Navy because it was the best navy in
the world and the American Navy was no demn good; and they had

adopted the German treotics end the German squipment to an extent

because the Germans had the best arny in the world, and how superior

they wers in all respects, I thought this was going to be o gooad
going away party, but it left me in a pretiy bad mood, anhd meybse

somg of thoss fellows didn't fesl too well.
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¥ell, things went aleng, They got put %o $ai9an,§e%$§fﬁ
comnand of thét araa an%glmaaﬁed his Headquarters on Salpan -
Saito.

After the island was Just about ovsrrun and they'd made their
banzei attack and failed, Ssito committed hara-kiri. And 1 hadn't
realized that this wmight be the same Saito, and 1 started checking
back, and it's slipped my mind, 1 started thinking back and I
looked through some ald files and sverything we had, and I thought
we established pretty well that it was the same 5aito: he was a
vicg-adnipral at this point. I remembered my promisse to Saite,
and I sent a patrol out to get his body, and we buried him, fired
three volleys, and we cepitured a lot of Japuness flags owt there
in one of the warkhousgs, and we spread this big Japaness flag

guer him, Thase Merines who werse arpund there Just thought I had

gobs completely nuts. Byt I felt like I should cerry out my promisa.

s Do you think he had any idea that you were thers?

Epskinss It's quite possibla.

fis Did you ever run into Kishinami after the war?

Erskine: No, but I had & note from bim aftar the war? What I had
wanted to go was to go bhack and re~sstablish this evening with ths

names of the people who were thers.

Gs And find out where they'd gona.
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Erskine: And I got the m Jepanese military attachd here on one
ﬂccaﬁiun;(l}gat him down here at Fort McMair) and 1 asked him if
he knegw Kishinami, and he didn't, but he said he would go back
with my letiter and find oui.

I finally got from him s little brief history on Kishinami.
T have in the files around hers some place. Then I had a little
note from Kishinami, congratulsiing me on surviving the war, and
he told me how happy he was about it, I dida't follow up. 1 always
have 80 many irons in the fire I couldn't follow it upy it didn't

geem important at the time.

s Of course a lot of people who have done duty in China -~ Shenghail

or Peking -- have come acroes and made scguaintances and some
friendshipe with some ©f the Japanese. Did you have to work up
a real personal gnimosity sgainst the Japanessj when we got into

the war and you hecame division commender and so on?
Erskine: VYpu said, "Did ypu have tp% %7

G2 VYessir, did you have to, or was it & natural reaction; or
did the memories . . ,» I ouess you were pretiy good friends with

Kishinami,

Erskine: Well, I don't think you had to work up eny particular
animosity -« I didn't. As far ag I was condernsd they were ensmies,
ang to me that was a cold blooded deal = you oy me, or my people.

1 didn't give a damn how good a frisnd you were ysars ago. You
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are going to get hurt iF I can hurt you. After ws got in the war

i must confess that I didn't feel guilty of helping to kill anybody
or anything like that. It was my duty to do this, and I fipally
sort of developed a fesling, I guess you'd call it, Jjust like
shooting rats. And 1'd Rexi8 go to the battlefisld sometimes and
they were just stacked up there, and I had no Tesling about that
whatsoever, axcept, Good God, how many more we are goling to have

o kill,
G: Thers was no feeling of sad regret, that this had come to pasa?

Epekine: No., I never had any sad regretx. 1 donyt heve it today.
As long as he 1s an enamy of the United States and he's killed

fmericans, Marines,; there is no feeling on my part.
B lYas there any Tesling of sympathy?

Epskines Well, in & way I sympathized wpith some of their families
on account of what I consilered to be idiocy in the way they treated
their people. But I figured if they were thers on ths battlefield
they'd bs just like thig guy. Now for instasnce 1 think one of the
things that made the Japanese soldisr Fight absgolutely tu the end
was that if he were capbured in his name and his rpsal namg came out
this immediate Temily lost their property bsck keeg home. And there
were @ number of othey punishments like that. 5o this poor fellow
figured it was better for his fPanily andg probably for himpelf to

gu shead and dis.
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s I think that wexs wes Lthe preveiling attitude, bscsuse I fael
based op the studiss I have done on this, that the Japansse -~
that's why American powsYSER troateo so poaorly, the Japanese uers
treating them ss they expected a Japanese POU would bes trested,
They were surprised that they gave up ~« they should heve died,

The Amgricans should heve died.

Epslkines ¥ Well, the old Samureil gpirit was like that toa.

s Yes,.

Epakiner They go in there and if Lthey get killed th:uy go ta hsaven,

thay get en a cloud, they had »® a lot of good looking gals around

and somg saké.

fis Something along that line, (Rimde Pause) Ygu know, Genaral,
1 think we've pretty well axhaust§§§§§ well, we haven't exhausted,
it, I am sure there is a lot »R more that ws probably could ged

into, but I think we’vs couvsred it fairly well. Pgrhaps at this

point, rether than sterbting out on fuantico «« I have a lot to ask

you on that, as I mentionsd -~ we should start on thét with the

next session, that is, if you ﬂra‘agreaahla, Sire

Epskines Leat me take a look at my book and sse how I stand

here next week,

End of Side 2, Taps 1, End of Session I1%,
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Session IV ~ 28 Ootobey 15969

Taps 1, Side 1

s In our last session, General, we talked about your tour of
duty in China. I think we wenl through it}prstty completely,
although 1 don't know if we 8xhauated everything, I am sure thsre
are many storiss and incidents and enecdotes which just by the
vary naturs of this program you couldn't reczll or couldn't call
to mind., They might come up during the rest of the interview
sessions, Bul we snter a very interesting period, I think -« both
for the Marine Corps apd for you -- with your assigmment to the
Marine Corps Schools.

I have on the record here that vou joined there on 21 June
1937, end you were the chief of the F-l and F-2 sections. This
wgs for the senicr course, or for beth the senior course and the

Junior ecourse?

Epsikine: It was for the senigr course, I héd F-1 and f-2, The
F=1 consisted mwin&y in teaphing sﬁa?f”npératimﬁsland pfocaduraa,
and § followed prntty much the system of the ganeral $taff, uhach
I had learned pretty well out at quVenworth.‘ The F-2 semtian We s
practicwlly nothing when I stuorted with it. I hdd sean gﬁma of
this instruction before I went fo China, =Zre uhen I haﬂ a hrief
tour of the Schools, and it consisted ma¢n1y uf a series of lectures
on the nrganizatiun of ng val intelligence in Hashinqtan, ‘with not
one bit of the instruction that I ever found pertaining £u Y .

and evaluation of intelligenc-& as far as troops in‘the fiald ware
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soncsrned. &0 1 loeoked this over and I thought it wes pretiy sad,
and I took every damn bit of it and dumped it in the dump and sst
it on fipe. And I started out wiik and wrote a pamphlet which was
the basis for the courss of instruction that I hed set up, and I
got & Few extra hours allaowed far the intelligsnce section, and
tried to get douwn to ths combat intelligence vperation procsdurss.
This book was based largely on cunaapta and theorigs that were
being taught at Leavenworth at thet time. WHaj. Schwisn was one of
the intelligence instructers et Leavenworth and he had written a

book called Combat Intelligence, which impressed me very much,

and I found in later years that he had some pretty sound principles.
Prior to that, in most of the soculled intalligence estimates
which didn?t amount to vepy much, they tried to determine the
grel snemy's intentions, which no one can do with any degres of
agcuracy, if ypu have a smart enemy., But the chénge in concept
was that we would try to determine FProm the information availshle «=-
and also From the background that you may have on the enemy himself
and his nature ~« the enemy's capabilities, so that you could be
prepared;when you mades your decision,to meet more than one
cepability instead of trying to focus on the enedy's intentions.
I must say that I think our intelligence concapt up to that
time was pretty, pretty astd, e had roglly ne intelligencs
training that was affective. flost evary commandsr dnkeraired
made a decision @s o result of what little he knew, he had verpy
little 4intelligences collection, he dependgesd on cutpost, and at
that time of course some asrial observation. He had also patrolsa,
Byt our commuynications were very poor, and most of the reports

N
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were late in getting in. I finelly made, I thought, 8 very
comprehensive course in Intelligence, and a large pert of the
officers in the senior class were senior to me, and when I gave
them an unseatisfactory report or mark on the little tests and
examinations that we had, belisve me thay came around and let

me kKnow where I stood in the Marine Corps! (laughs) That didn't

9REEL me one damn bit -- I just made it tougher for them the next time.

Anyway 1 think we got over a few points on the collection and

gvaluation and determination of cepabilities, instead of intentions,

iz I think -- hadn't the Naval lar College in their curriculum --
8r » . + of courss they had intelligence . +
Well, weren't the naval commanders more concerned with

intentions than capabilitiss?

Erskines 1 think until about that time sven the Army -« the Apmy
in my mind has always beSh %Réaaﬁﬁﬁfiﬁ%éfiﬁgénce techniques, and
I think the Apmy tuoday is probably shead of »pmexsf the other
services, bnd 1 had close contact with them during my last feuw
years of service; and the Army's technigues are gnﬂ% there is no
doubt about it.,

The Navy had one thing in mind, engd that wes navgl warfare.
And of course the diarine Corps wss so.rt of a second thought in
their mind. The big sea battle is what they locked forward to.
Possibly a naval intelligence was beiter for the Navy thon it was
for the WMerine Corps, but it wasn't worth a gaddamn for the Harine

Corps, 1 can tell you, up to the middle of Yorld War II.
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iz e had a number of people who had primarily besn esssigned to
intelligence jobs., 1 think Worton may have besn one, and sseveral
others who during their cersers had been doing this sort of thing.
Gen. Omar Bradliey lo his book mentioned the fact that when
the war broke out and reserves ashd civiliang came in and were
asasigned to these intelligence billets, the pegulsr service really
had no % concapt of what intelligesnce could do, of what & smart
intelligence officer could do, and unfortunately during peacetims
situations, and sven in the serly years of the war, the intslligence

billets were filled by socalled odds and sods.

traekines That's incorrect in my opinion. Uhenever an officer studied

ekszked to gualify in 2 {oreign lenguage hs was pretiy sure of belng

assigned as an intelligence officer. It's always bgen my concept
that you had to be a good operations officer before you could be a
good intelligence officer, becaus®R if you don't know how to handle
your own troops, I'd just like to Rnow how vou are gpoing te figure
out whet the dispositions or the intentions or the capebilities of
the enemy Lroops ares %o I think you should be groundad first in

operations before you are assigned to an intslligence job,

{1t 1t seems to me that hers you ?ind tha chickesn and the sgg |
concepts which comes first, the chicken or the egg? -+ where you have
commanders reluctent to accept what thelr intelligence officers
gave them because they kney -~ were just reluctant to accept any
information they got from their intelligence officers peried, or |
the fact ihaﬁ the intelligence officers gsnarally;waﬁﬁ such 3 sorry j

lot that commanders were rsluctent to accept any intelligence
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Epskine: Fpom the time I was in the Marine Corps Schools until

I left the service with the Secretary of Defense, I devoted a great
deal of sffort to getting the status of the intelligence officer
appreciested more, not enly in his own command but in promotions

and so forth, becauss if you look back and lepk through the records
you'll find that many officers were penalized simply because thay
had written on their record that they were intelligence officers
here or there. 1 have been on selsstion board’ and I've hesrd
senior officers say,.“This guy here has no cpsrations egxperience;
he is one of thasa?gzzl gazers.®™ And that didn't Egﬁﬁ him much

with the resst of the bgard.

1t then you became chief of staff for FIFPac and its predecessar
command, and later became commanding genaral of the 3rd Division,
what was your attituds concerning your intelligence officers?
How willingly did you acpept -~ how willingly did Gen, Holland
Smith accept -+ what intelligence he got?

Erskines 1 think Gen., Helland Smith accepied the inteslligencs
because he knew that I had had some experisence in it and that 1
had besn teaching %% the technigues, 1§ don't think we ever had
p difference on gur intelligence reports.

it's ancther thing when I was in command of the 3rd Marine
Division., s had a pretty thorough intelligents organization

there, But this was after the war had been.geing on for some time,
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and it seems to me that sometimes the militery peeple have to get
hurt before they really learn, It's like geing to schoel. In the
garly days, if you weni to school some of the officera thought that
you were just one of those boys who were not out for hard work,
looking for s better job, usually a staff assignment some placs,

becausse many of the people who went to school did go to the staff

agaignments., I puess I was pretiy tough on my intelligence officers

hecayse when thsy gave me an estimate they had to know what the
hell they were talking about, because I would guestion them very
carefully on why you think this and whak why you think that, and
why didn't you cellset this other information, why didn't you get
some information on this point or tﬁat point; what's a good reason?

And I think all in all we had a vsry good intelligence section,

is Perhaps & conparisen bstween the integlligence you received at
FiifPac and the intslligence you recsived as division commander was
differsnt. As division commander you were a teciioal commandsr,
an oparational commander, and while at FNiFPac you had to depand

on LinCPac, for instance, or on the JICPOH, for intalligenca,

Epskines That's trus, When we first went on to Pearl Harbor |
and took cur staff out thers -~ which vasg pretty much of a skeleton
- staff at the time -« the intelligence ws got through thé Néuy was
practically of no uvse vhabtscever to us. It dealt with things that
were not of criticsl importance to the landing ferce. They had a8
serigs of monogrephs which had been made up by-%—$r%, ONT

ne of our prohlems that ma»prasented at the Naval iar Lollege

wag on Saipan, and I presented the intelligence up thers, and I had




Exskine ~ 174

a hell of a time finding sven a decent map of Saipan. Well, we
didn't heve one at that tims. OF course we had nho amphibious
tracttrs in those days. UWell, we did have a Pew but ws hadn't

dold the concept that the amphibian tractor was ong of the critical
things that we needsd in an amphibious landing, particularly out
ghere you had areas surrounded by reefs,

Most of the information that I got from the Navy ~-,1 remember
so clearly, I felt so badly asbout it -- was thess monggraphs, which
had been made by certain navael officers who had goneg out, and I
think one or two Marine officers from time to time had written
these things up, They dealt with the incidence of disenss, malnly
gonorrhea, syphilis, the number of whorehguses in the town op an
the island, and things like that. 1 remembsr on the island of
Saipan in particularz they showad one heavy gun pn top ef NMount
Tapotchau, and this thing was kept in & safe that wap double locksd
and gverything, and they didn't gven wént me to take s look at it.

Well, if you studied even the hachured maps, you could figure
that a big gun on top of Mount Tapotchau wouldn't be sble to hit
a boat or & ship within possibly five miles of the bsach bscause
it couldn't depress; it you depregsed it that low it'd jump off
its barbetts. &and uben we got there thers wss no gun up thers.

And there had never besn a gun thers. #And I doubt that any of
thess people who wrotée this report sver went up to the fLop of
flount Tapotchau; because the Japanese kept them pretiy well

restrictad when they were in those arsas.

I don*t think they ever went there -- any Americens, I mean.

£
it 2
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Epskines VYes, a couple had been thers. At lemst they claimed
they had been there, Then thers was another battsry of -~ suppusedly
I think ~- 8 ipnch guns down at Nafuten Point shown on these records.
ell, we got there and thegy did have tkem a battery there, but I
goubt that this battery was there when this report was written
beceuss the Japs were still in the process of installing some
heavy guns, and this looked like = falrly new installation on
Nafutan Point.

then we Pirst went out to Pearl Harbor we had & serious
deficisncy of intelligence. I don't know whether it was JICPOA
or the other command in Pearl Harbor, but we complained so bitterly
about this that they got busy and they mads a lot of photographs of
srean that we were going to. Some of these photographs wers in

grausé

color and they'mera sxceilant,(thay showed up the reefs much battsrs

)
than the biakesx black-and-whits. And one of the gregtest things
they did, I think, was to put an R&r fArmy officer in chargs of fhia
intelligence, His name was Brig. Gen. Twitty, end in my mind he
brought that ocubfit right up to strength as Ffar as I wes concerned
bacsuse he was oriented fowards

the land apgraticn more than the Navy. fng hes evidently satisfied
the Navy because he had g choice organization thers, He stayed on
therg guite a while, and I think he did & marvelous Jjob., That was

my impression.

G: He wes head of the Jpint Intalligmnee Center, iRpxPxlxd

of the POA, Pacific Oceéan HArsa.

Erskine: VYes.
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i+ As a result of your revigion of the intelligence courss ai the
Schools, in the senior course, could you asse that it bore any kawik

Frult? You mentionsd the Pact that some of the sonior officers . « »

Erskines Of course I don't liks to say that I was respunsible Forw
it, but 1 think &t did, I'1l give you an example of what happened
to me. I was so concernad about this businass that I decilded that
yau didn't hava to go to all these places to get the information,
and whan you went to a place, the average man -~- unlesas hs was
really deeply interested in the subjsct -~ didn't get the things -
ang he had to be a good operations officer to konow what the troops
wanted and what ths commander wanted.

I started out -~ wse had o school problem sach ysar, and they
tried to being in a new one, And I was told by the chief of staff
of the school, who at that time was Col. Clapp, to pick out an
islangd for @ project problem, and to work up an intelligence study.
Ang they had been fiddling with little islands and thinking in
terms of reinforced regiments and things like that. So I picked
oubt the islaend of Martiniqus, and everybody was shocked, "It's too
big. The Marine Corps is npoi going to go in there and do this or
that, and so forth,® But 1 inngtad that we try it anvwsy. There
was not a map available in—gigi;-an fMarbinique. lhen T asked why,
they erid, YThat's one of our friendly eountries, it's & French
colony,® 1 seid, ®# "Uell, Boddamn it, you may fight the French
some dav.™ That was unbelievable in thossg days, and probably still ig
Sp they had no information op #Martinique, and I wrote to the Furness |

Line, which ran ships into Bartinique, and told them that I was
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contemplating » trip to Hertindoue, and would they tell me sbout
thig or that, could I kake an asutomnbile with ms, what wers the
compunications, wers the reads good enough -- I asked s long seriss
of guestions, and I got pretty good answers back, and once in a
while they'd send me 8 little fplder. This started me off on quite
a tack, and I worked sometimes until 2 o'clock in the morning,
sollecting data by writing to people. 17d get the name of some
fipm and I'd write them and ask if they had some kind of fpolish
thing like 2 certsin kihd of x fish bait, ¥When I Finished with
this study I had four draver files full of data, snd I had an
opportunity to have some of thet checksd. But we still didn't
have & good map. The Atlantic Fleet was having maneuvers doun
in the Caribbesn, and some of oupr officers from the Schocls were
assigned to go on these mapsuvers. And Col. Sam Woods -~ I guess
Sam was z major at that time ~- had talked to me a lot about this
project I was working ony, and I asked Sam to szee if he couldn't
$tsa{«a map while he was down thare of Martininue. I had gotten
%éiigLiu write Lo Paris to see if they could find & map in Paris.
They did finally get me an old chart, but it had seehuyred hachured
.marks\an it and topographical work for tacticsl pperations.

50 1 gave Sem a rundouwn and he errangsd with the skipper wi
vﬂF hig wship =- which was opne of the battleships which was golrng
in to Martinigue to pay a call -« and the naval officers thai
went ashore were given an sssignment to check put certain parts,

maybe you Follow this rosd up here end ses how accurats this

i theater is; you go to thie gas station and ses how much gasoline

they have, end soc forth and so on. And everything I had in there -~
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and this repressnted a year or two yeaps' wcrgyﬁg year anyway == @yas
gcorrecht, except that I had made 2 mistake on the width of some of
the rosds: the roads were a little better than 1 had contemplatsd,
Jjust from writing letters,

I continued this thing. 1 rsmembar when Adm, Robert was in
charge, and thay had this French varrier there with soms planes,
andiggﬁaat very excited ouvsr this., I was then chief of staff on
the East Coast with Holland Smith at Quantico, with whet was celled
the Amphiblous Force Atlantic -- they changed the name of this
comnand several times, One timefhsy made it secret and tried to
send us orders, and nobody knew who we were, and Adm. King did that

ane,
fi* And youw worked for Adm. King.

Erskine: Db yves, fdm. King was commander in chisf of the flest
at that time., But before he was commandey in chisf of the Tleet
is when we had this trouble with Martinigque, and Adm. Ellis wes
-gommander in chief of the flset.

1 wanteg to tell you thet Sam Uoods bought @ map off the
post office walls -- just a small mep, & topographic map -- for
£1.50. He brought it back tp me snd I gave him [1.50, and 1
congidered that to be my map, and that's the map that I used
in making up the schopl studies. But I thdught 1 would be smart
and chenge some of the things, so that if enything did come up

and the Fgench found out about this thing, I'd be en the safe side.
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I changed & ;Bt of the hydrographic information, the depths
of the water, the slant of the bsaches, and things like that,

Uhen this thigéﬁggme up, Gen., Halland 3mith and I zheughkk
brought it up to New Yorks (At lsast he waes ordered up and he
tock we with him) to go abpard the ship and talk to sdm. Ellis,
They wers thinking about landing a Marine brigade or some force

in Martinigus at that tims.
s This had to be about '40~'41,

Erskines VYes, Houwever -- I am getting =y ahsad of myself here
a little bit ~« I kept on writing douwn there, and Bob Blake -~ who
had been one of the instructors at the sgchool -~ gave me the name
of a Ford dealsr im Martiniquse, »hm whom he had met some place,
o I wrote to this Ford dealer -« I was getting pretty bold st
hat time -~ and asked me to take me some pilcturss of certain
beaches, my reason being that I wanted to bring my family douwn
for a vacation, and 1 just wanted to select the beach, end I gave
him certain locaticng, and sach ene was what 1 suspected to he a2
pretiy fair landing beach.

i¢hen the letter got down to Martinigue, this fallow was zway,
and 1 was not aware that he had & partnsr -- a native partner,
and the native partner -~ or @ Frenchman, I am nof sure which it
was ~- took it up to Adm. Hobert. Adm, Robert went right back to
Vichy with it. Vichy cams right‘ﬁhggmgh ouy State Departmsnt.
Guf State Department went rvight to Secretary Knox of the Navy:

he never said one damn word to me, he just wrote me a letbter of
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reprimand, They were s8ll se furious that I chould embarreses them
by doing such a thing. Well, I had no compunction sbout gathering
information, I don't give a damn where it is or who it is, You
may need it sometimes., It turned cut that right at this time we
needed it.

50 we arrived aboard the ship im N.w York. Adm. E£llis during
pur conversation asked me if this study -- bhe had a copy of our
schonl study -- if the deta in there was correct., I said No, some
of it is incorrect, He said, "Uhy?" I told him my reason for
changing it, aﬁd also to make a decent school program out of it.
He said, "I want you to sit down and correct all of these thinga,"
I said, "I decline to do it." He sald, "You mean you refuse an
arder from the commander in chief %o make the corrections, and
you know the corrections?" I said, "That is correct." And Helland
Smith had apoplexy! He said, "What in hsll do you mean?* I said,
I mean just that, I got a letter of reprimand for getting that
stuff. VYou get the letter of reprimand off mywerecord, and Exk
I'11 changs it, and 1'11 change the map.?” They did, Now masn't

that a fagt one?

s That's almost like Henry Stimson's old saying in the early 30s
when he togk over as Seeretary of State, T guess it mas, end
O’iw')

. : ¢ Roow
abolished the State Department so-called Black "Gentlemen don't read

gentleman's mail,”

ul
@8
[~

Erekings That's right. I can tell you enother s gr??&tan e

further an.
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o I mede the corrections. Adm. Ellis wms soon relipved and
Adm. King took over. I remember when Adm. King toock over, Holland
Smith was again ordersd that same morning to ceme up -~ to get
thare befors noon -~ to Newport, to have a cenference with Adm. King.
e got in a couple of observetion planas.
Field Harrls flew with Gen, Smith, and I flew in another plane.
I forget the name of the pilot, I think it was an enlisted man,
We got up to Guonset Point and lsnded in a field, a cow pasture.
There was no ploece there tu land at this time. ¥Field did a good.
Jjob of jumping over = fence and landing up there, and we got douwn
to Quonset Point and we learned that the ghip Adm. King was on,
which was & cruiser, wes out For some irials. So we got a boat
in fuonset point and went out, and she was coming down the streem
and they never stopped, they just slowed down a little bit and
got the ladder over the side and said, "Climb Ebﬁard.“ e got
on board, end there wss Adm. King waliting for usy he seemed Lo

be very nice. You know King was a pretty herd taskmaster.

«@

Oh yes, he was.

Erekines He used to try Lo scare the hell out of people, but

it pever worried me! (laughs) Anyway we had a long conference.
hz 1 remember YREZ«NEE Adm. Lowse, who I belisve was his opsration
officer, and Bill Réley was the Marine officer on board et that
time. Thia wes just bafore lunch., King laid it ocut on a chart
and said, “We are going to land the brigade here énd.yuu are

going to send up & regiment here and a regiment there, znd s
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regiment here, and so forth.,¥ The lst Marine Division had just
been formed and had Jjust sbout completed its organization doun

in Cuba st that time,
ft:  That would be February-Rarch of %41,

Erskine: VYegs, arocund that time. I could sese Holland Smith getting
ready to sxplode. He drew himgelf up, and usually when he was real
mad he wyould stert breathing very heavily, and I could see it coming.
He finally exploded at King end told him he was going to lssue the
orders snd he would determine the schems of maneuvers for any
operation, that no admiral was golng to give crders to the flarines
and tell them how to go and Fight., That was his job., aAnd King
said, "I sm commander in chief of the fleest.™ And 1 noticed =
junior officer starting to get out of the room, hut I steaysd in
s cornepr and listened to this thing.

King made & siatemant at one time -~ he szid, ®1'11 have you
relieved." He said, "Relieved or not, =2 long 8% 1 am in command
T am geing to command.” He stood right up to old Adm. King.

By lunchtime I think King had realized that he'd gohe too
fapr on this thing. Hy and the old man were welking arm in amm
a0 the cusrterdeck.

Byt situstions like this one happened meny times, because
King would try tc tske right over. He told Hulland Smith, he

id, "You know, I commended ¥ a2 regiment of midshipmen at the

g

52
Naval Needemy. then you gusstion my ability to commend ground

forces, then « . .% The old of man surt of. laughed and snickered.
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I furget now what the reply was, but he gave him one fhat was quitse
appropriaste to what he had said, But I heurd King make that

statament,

i+ 1 think luter on ~- we are gedting shead wgain -- when Kelly
Turner fried to pull the same stuff on Vandegrift out 2%t Suadalcanal,
when Holcomb made his trip out, if you recall, @nd they had
confersnces at Noumea, the gecision aboul the responsibility

and assigoment of the landing ferce coummender of the post of the
landing, the emphibiocus force commandsr, was pratiy well zprelizd
spelled put ~- it went sll the wey up threough Mimitz, to King,

and then he ehdorsed it. This division,waxxkrxks zccording to
FTP-167 and everything else, was Lo be observed. The amphibious
Force coumander would command the amphibicus force, and shen the

landing force had lendsd the landing force commander would take over.

Lrekines e had many asrguments on that, even in the development
of the doctrine down in the Jarine Copps Schools, 1 also had
many argunents with Kelly Tupner, and I am one of the fellows
whowrthink a hell of a lot of Kelly Turner. I think he uwas a
wonderful admiral in every way. He may have had his faults,

but neverthelevs Kelly would make #» decisien: it might not be
axactly whalt you wanted, but he'd make it, and I think thet's
ohie of bthe grestest cocamplishments of o commander, angther
thing ~- Kelly cidn't back off From o bad situation that 1 ever
saw, I had lots of dealings with him, shd be used to Taizy roise
merry hell with me, and Ifd nob back of 7 one inch. It uvounlly

gnded up hy us having a martini. That's the kind of guy he was.
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He was a threp star admiral when ! was still sbrigadier genaral.
I remember one night ~~ I am getting ahead of myself -« we were
having a hell of an argumant over the command of the amitracs.
The Navy was trying to take this over. Kelly called me up about
10 o'clock at night, and I thought he sounded o little tight.

He didn't cell Len. Smith, he called me. He had & house -~ ohe
of the old housses -~ in Pearl Harber Navy Yard. &nd I went over
and ha had this opsraticns plan (which hadn't been approved, but
it was in the process of being completed ) scattersd all ovsr,

up the stairway, all around, all over the place.
Gt was this for Taraua?

Erskine: I think it was another place, but I don't remember.

I think it was Saipan, B8up he said, "W§3g33§§ the goddamn Tellow
whe is causing all this trouble about the amtrace,” I said,
*ifhy do you think sp?" He said, "By God, you just keep oppopsing
it and you stang up, and you don't have to stand up and oppose it,"
1 said, "If 1 oppose it, it doesn't matisr whether I am standing
or sitting, doss it?"  find we got in & hell of an argument, and
he was pretty tight st ths time. He seid, "I am going to have
you reliesved.® I said, "You may run a hell of a 1ot of people
in the Navy, but you don't run anybedy in the farine Corps.”
That snded the discussion. Finally he said; "You have no damn
reason in the wnrld;'thase things are in the same tategory as

hoats and we command the bpoats and we should command the ambracs,?
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1 said, "To hell with that, it's a tectical vehicle in my mind,"

and I still fesl that it's a tacticsl vehicle. ME¥XE Nost of our
peuple call it a logistic vehiele, But what I wented to ses this
amtrac do -~ aend I belisve it's in the operations wurders for

Saipan -~ was not to stop at the water's edge, but go as far as

they could inland, even though we lost a good many of them. At least
§gﬁgcby this defense zone if possible, then capture them From hehind,

That was the intentien, 1 know, for the Hth Division in Saipan.

12 The Pirst operation of the 5th was in lwe, so it haed %o bs

gither the 3prd or 4th,
Erskines No, the 3rd wasn’'t thers.

§: Then the Znd.

'Erakine: {(Pause} The 2nd Uivision Yatson ¥=s had, and he was

on the left. The Division on the right was , . .
iz 1t had to be the 4th.

Erskine: VYes, I guess it was the 4th.

g Sure, it was the 4th,

Erskines énywﬁy they got in on the water line, but they didn't

get %R as farfas 1 thought they could have gons. Some got bheyand
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a little railrosd that was in there. 1 think they were mors afraid
of losing their amirscs than they were about getiting ascross that
reef. Well, that's & tossup decision, but I have always felt that
if they hed pushed a litile harder we would have bsen in a much
better positiob in the early phase of that operation. But we

might havs lost many ambracs on this deal.

Going back to Kelly Turner, the same old thing -~ we had a
fisry argument end it finally ended up with having a couples of
drinks. But ! reelly liked the old fellow, he was pretty good te me,
Qs ﬁafg;;;; the Marine Carps TRrught him y # he bnd Harry Hill
§¥§%§}auab1y twe of the leading anmphibious force commanders in

the Pacific.

Ersking: I was with Harrpy Hill on his ship on several opsrations.
e had a few lit ,1\argumants to start off with, but I have the

greatest admirvation for Harry Hill, and he was fing. Another man,
whp was the chief of staff for Harry Hill was now Adm, Withington,

who was commander, [ think at that time, A very smart fellow, and

ha understood the amphibious game. But Harry wes a little like

Kelly in trying to take over. I usually would have an argument
with him. 1 can give you apn instance.

e ware going to Saipan ~- I guess it was -« to Tindan, and
there were a lot of ships in Pearl Herbor, snd it was only a few
days before we were to sail, And Harpy Hill invited me aboard his
flagehip (end I was going to sail with him on his flagship) to have

lunch. 1 arrived, and there was Harry Schmidt and Tommy Yatsen.
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They had been there, and I think Harry had besh tmlling him how
this amtrac deal uas gsing to be handled., 56 I got up -~ we'd
had most of our lunch, I think wue were at the main course -- and
he brought it up to me, and he said, “¥s have decided that the
Mavy is going to command the amtracs." This little argument was
still going. And I said, "Well, I think ye have decided that the
farines are going te command those ambracs, Thsey wear our uniform
and goddeamn it they are going to be . « .* == this was right at
iunch., No response from sither Haryy Schmidt or Tommy Uatson,
Harry thought ha'd really give me a prough time over it and didn't
know how the hell to do it. He said, "Uhat ere you going to do
if they run out of gasoline while they are out there?"™ I said,
"Hell, that's up to you, put a Bouwssy boat sbit there.® “hat do
you know about Bowssr boats?® I said, "I don't know snything
about Bowser boats, but I know there is such a thing, and it can
be duna.“ And he said, "That will taeke the bpats awsy from the
troops that are going to land, and the troops can't land over this
reef in 8 boat." "So use some of those boats ss Bowser boats."

It finelly ended up that they finally did that., But hs uwas
so damn nasty abput it that I gaid, “Admiral, let me tell you
something, I thought I wae invited here for a friendly lunch,

If you think you cen use thig kind of technique on me you are
wrong," And with that I got up from the table. And mind you,
I was still going to sail with him. B8y the time I repached the
door he was over and had me by the apm and he changed his whole

attitude, he pubt his arm asround me angd he sald, "Come on end sit

down. Goddamn it, we have good reasons for taking over the ambrags.™
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I said, "You don't, and that's it. 11 am getting the hsll out of
here, I am not going to eat with anybody that Lrests me this way.
You dontt push me around one goddamn bit, Harry, and get that
through your nut." But our twe good friends, the two Marine
officers, never said one goddamn word in this whols thing,.

But we went on, and we commandegd the amtrace.
0: VYou were on a Tirst name basis with Harey Hill at this time?
Epskine: Oh yes. g were good frisnds. But you know, sometimes

amopng your commanders youw can get into some pretty vitriolice

arguments.

s Oh yes, I must say for the record that you had guite =
reputation for being hard-nosed, You stood vight up thers on

your hind fest and would give as good as get.

Erskines I guess I had tus mrguments with Adm. King, and aftar
that I think I was pretty good to the old man. Ue had Edson's

Raiders on some «- what the hell do they cell those little destroysrs?

fix The APDs,.

Erskines The APDe. #And Capts Emmett was the commodore of this
group, and they went down off Ngrth Carelina; and it wes pretiy
rough weather as I remember, it was raining and thay had & hell

of a time, There were no facilities on these boats at that time.
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Ry Wall, they had fagilities, but not sufficient facilities for sven
washing up or shaving or bathing, and they wers short of bread, they
weresw short of all kinds of things, and the sailors got the
prefersnce on anything thet was thers.
ﬁm?ﬁg§-mant through this trzining cycle and we gRRREXERER come

aghore ip é@ﬁi@ﬁiyﬁgﬁ brought these people ashore. Holland Smith
made 8 hell of a big squeak to Adm., King about this, and Adm.
King sent Lmmett down to make an investigation of these allegaticns,
Hollend Smith ceme to me and he said, "You go too, but you don't
go with Emmett, you go by yourself,*®

I got a plene that afterncon and Tlew down there, and they
had just come asshore, and those peopls had had s hell of a rough
time, 1 went around and talked te them and evegything. 1 think
this was Friday. Un Mpnday morning we weni back to see King,
and Adm. Emmetl had put in a pretty rosy report for his Navy
boss, they were just short of facilitiess, and Hellend Smith said,
“Yhat the kekk hell are you going teo do about it? These people
may be aboapd for e menth or two. And if in ons week or tén days «e
vhatever the paricd was -- they had to put up with all of this,
they won't be worth a damn when thoy get ashore.®

Then they asked me for my reporkt, and I gave them my report,
which was 100% different from Adm. Emmett's. Emmett and I were
about ready ta'Hﬂazo%é”“‘adﬁzgg%E King said, "Sit down. I don't
want to hear anymore from sither one of you,?®

And then King asked me to write him up a report on something.
I weote up the report, and in soms place in it I made some misitaks,

I used the wrong designation, and I gave it to King ~- it was on

|
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one shset of peper -~ and he read it and he threw it at me, and

tte said, "That's wrong.” "Ghat's wrong?® He prf pointsd out what
it way, and I said, "I don*t think so, it's not wrong.” I geid,
"But let me tell you somsthing,” 1 picked up the pyper and I
threw it back at him. "Don't sver throw soything at me. I don't
taks that kind of stuff from any man, whether ha waans a uniform
or not.™ King's face Lurnad.z'damn red, haeﬁegaeﬁ his cigarstte
and he sald, "All right, sit down,” {(laughs)

I went back to the ship. #And by God I was wrong, so I went
down to sse him, and told him. I said, "I apologire for aiving
you the wpong report, you were completely right, but don't throw
any papers at me." And he laughed and he said, "Okay, okay,"

If you stood up to King; he liked it.

Another time, the Navy insistsed that a transport group would
be four ships, one for esch battalion, plus a supply ship, an &K,
And we were making a plan to go to the Azopes, which I think was

purely a cover plan,

i+ I think thers were plans afoot because Oscar Brice had made
a tour m%%ﬁﬂzﬁ%ﬁ"ﬁ§§§ﬁ§x1§§ggxbs?mra we got inte the war, and he
wap nearly arrested, he nad some yRung mavy officer who spoke

he an
Portuguese, andnﬁuan Trlpp were coming thrmughu

o _Jimmy Ropssveltb
As a matter of fact that'a where Bery Thnmag/mat him on

the way back fxum their ﬁuur; s#o thers was a plan at one time

to take over the Azpres. This wss one of Kelly Turper's brain-

childs when he yas iﬁgﬁar plens saction,

Erskins: Yes. I can tell you some more about that,
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s+ Okayy; fine.

Erskine: 1 had been complaining -~ take the old transport Les.

She was crazy, shs would pock on one side a whils, then rock on

the othey, and it wssn't big snough to take a battalion with all

ite equipment, And we had a number of other ships. e really

had a variety of ships that wers not suffivient, snd I insisted

on having another ship available. A&nd I did make remarks, and 1

guess some of his steff officers told him that I was criticizing

the commender in chief of the Pleet. %o ong day I was in there.

Actually I was then getting up an sstimets of thse situation, and

King had an office thers in &he Mein Wavy, And I walked by his

affice one day, and I hed gotten just beyond his office when a

sgpilor came rumning down and stopped me end said, "The commander

in chief wents to sse you." That waw Roosevelt at ths time,

"ghat the hell does he want to see me for?® And he said, "I don't

know, sir." I said, "Where is the commander in chief?*® He seid,

*Right down the hall.¥ And I walked down there expecting to ses

Roosevelt, and hirs was King sitting behind a desk. If he had

said caommander in chiaf of the fleet, that would have been different.
I welked in aﬁd I said, "Admiral, you'd like to sas ma?" And

he said, "VYes, come in." He pointed his finger ai me and hs said,

“Erskina, I undevstand you've been priticizing some of my decisiong,”.

I said, *In what way?Y He said, YAbout the organization of some

of my naval units. #And what the hsell do you knhow about naval

organization? 1 eaid, "Well, I think I can spesk as well as

some other people ebout it. I've besn arcund this outfit for

quite 2 while, Specifically what organization have I haen



Erskine « 192

exikizing criticizing?® He said, "The transport group.? 1 said,
"1 have? I welcoms the opportunity to make my complaint right to
you." H® said, "All right, start off with ite®

I took a shest of paper end I drew shapes of the shipd here,
and listed the number of people and the amnunt’af.equipmant, which
I had at my fingertips at that time, and then I put a circle dut
here for the psople they couldn't take. He sald, "flell, cut douwn
youy opsration to fig the ship." I seid, "That's not the idea,
You get a ship big enough to teke te or give us mors ships.®

He went through this for a 1ittle while and I drew a couple
mors sketches for himy bersxzexKirngyxhetexpeixiixirxaxdizgran

Finally he lecked et me and he said, YGreen light, you'll
get them.” Dh, 1 told him one other thing., I said, ¥0Ons resson
you keep so feuw ships in thess transport groups is so you can
get more promotions. It takes more captains, more captaine get
to be called comnodprs, and the ball with that, ws are éﬁégﬁagu
g%ﬁm this war, and we've got to have tacticsl intsgrity, and
land thasé-trmaps together, with their ocwn commaenders and with
their own supplies." I tried tv drasw thisg out, and I think I
used twp sheets of paper. I said, "That's the story, Admiral.®
He leocked at me and he said, ﬁﬂkay, green light, yoy got them."

That's how that happened. {laughs)

i+ MNow again we are getting shead, but I want to ask one guestion,

tihat were you doing at Main Navy?

Evskines e had a group up there at that time. Kelly Turner was

« » » thief of planning?
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{1t Chief of the WUar Plans Section ~- CND Office,

Erekine: VYes, lar Plansz Ssction. He and King wers pretiy much st

dagger®s points at that time too. And ¥King had this group up there
making an sstimate of the sdtuation for a number of plans. Ue were
still in fQuantico but we ceame up. I headed up thse sstimate of the

gsituation for the Azores, I think 1t was.

Inaidentally,sgggéggw this to King, I found out that if you
drew him a diagram he pot the picture right away, and you didn't
have toe much argument. I took a chart and drew most of the
gperations order out on this chart, and used conventional signs,
which he was unfemiliar with. I showed this to him and I seid,
"This is practically everything, but it won't cover your com-
munications, it won’t cover logistics and other things, but this
is your operation right here, on one chart,” I explained that
this sign wes a batialion, this sign was something else, and this
gign was something else, and while I was in there Kelly Turner
cams in to say somsthing to him, and he ssid, "Laok at that, Kelly.
That is ths uhole oparation, right there.” Kelly looked at it and
fhe s=zid, "Doesn't mean a damn thipg to @en You may run your fleet
that way, but it doesn't mean anything to me." Then King said,

“It's because you are ignorant and you can't read it.*  (lsughter)

Qs Oh, beautiful! {laughs hesrtily)

frokines He said, "Bell, what's that there?® "That's a battalion.®

"hat is this?? "This le a company.® King had just gotten his
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brisfing, you see! But he really told Kelly.

4:s In the Wer Plene Section at this time I think it was Peck,

was it nos?

Epskine: Either Peck or fFeiffer. {(Pause) I go back here to this
Martinigque thing.

Afterwards 1 found that this War Plenning Sectlon -~ I always
had difficulty with the planners that same out of Hashington and
the Navy. The war plan called for tws destroyere, I think, with
about 100 farines on each desstroyer to go dowun and take Martinique

if we evesr had bto do it.
Qe And that's all?

Erskings And what’s the other littie island? It slips my mind

at the moment -- oneg destroyer aver there, with 90~odd men on board,

@; There were tuwo islands, called 5t Plerre and Miguelon. They

*

ware up further north.

Evskine: That dosen't sound like either ons to me. A&nd Lavd,
how many hours I spent on that darn problemi But that's what they

had, They got ready to cayry those wer plans out -- that's whan

wé went up to see Adm. Ellis up in HNew Ydrk. Whoever hgd that fancy,;

idaa 1 am damned 4F 1 knows

{is That came down from ﬁamseualt?

|
1

|



Ersking ~ 198

Epskines No I don't think so, No, this brain trust right here
in Washington did it, just like the Navy Intelligence menographs.

1 think there were over 9,000 or 10,000 Senegalese troops on

that island, pretty well equippsd,.

s+ They are good fighters.

Erskins:s VYes, damn good fighters. Uhat a disaster that would have

beean.

Q¢ The Marines who were in the Har Plans Sgetion -~ Riley I think

was very closely esepciated with both King and Nimitz., King first

and later Nimitz, then of courss Peck and Feiffer. 8nd I think Nimme:

was there for a while,
Erskineg: Yes, 1 think so.

{1 And I don't know who else. Did they pretty much protect the

interests of the Marine Corps? Silverthorn was up thare.

Erskingd 1 would think Silver would., And Riley was a pretiy dapn
well educated fellow. He was sort of a peolitician, though, thers
is no doubt about that. He wae a good Friend of ming, he wass my
ADL. Hg and 1 had our little problems from time te time, One one
pecocasion, I had issued an order and hetd came in and say he didn't
think %g pught to he issuyed, and %Rﬁﬁ%ﬁg B "Usll, you sre a little
bit late, it'e issued, and you comply with it toe, and that¥s that.

I don't waent to discuss it, the dscision is made, Bill."
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We had something about & uniform there on Guam. Bill was out
thers one day conpletely out of uniform, I guess the only man in
the whole damn division, and I happsned to run inte him in his jesep,
and I ssid, "Bill, you know what the uniform of the day is."
“Oh yes, and I know whet the order is.® 1 said, "Then why don'tg
you carpry it out?" He said, "Welly I just don't think it's right®
and s0 forth. 1 said, "19711 tell you what you do. Ypu go back to
your tent and put it on and wesr it right now, whether you like ii
or not, or I'11 put you under arrest for five deys, right here.*®

Ixgidntixhenexenpkhpzxynrexabenixtt And I'd do it, too,
it I know you would! I have ne doubt that you would,

Erskiney I think svery men in the division should wear his own
uniform. Tners was npo excuse for me.
I think the peeple in those seciions were sort of torn betwesh
what they thought they could get. You know we were short of money,
we were short of everything, and they tried to do it with the lsast
possible thing becauss the tep schelon of the Navy thought it ought
te be that way, and that was just about the problem they had te solve,
I remember down in the Maring Corps Schools when I had the ‘
Bperatione Section there, and we had a naval officer down there as
a limigon officer and adviser, and mest of the gunfire that they

would put in the problems would . o

End of Side 1, Tepe 1, Session IV

et
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Sassion IV continued

Tape 1, 8ide 2

Ersking: The problems weraugg§§§¥m%§£x§g with two old bottleshipsg --
no new battleships -~ old destroyerse snd maybe & couple or four APDs.
This was ths Navy concept at that time -- that's all ths ships thay
could spare, and my thought was to hell with that, if we are going

to land we need sufficient gunfire. And you could go back ands

lopk at the experience tables from Werld War I, of how much
ampunition it takes in 78 mil;imétgr shells to cut a path through
about four bands of wira,%ﬁ%%ﬂ;??ﬂqgamathing liks 608 shells.

And vou can convert thet into ship's gunfire in a8 way. OFf course

-*kbgunfirs haa different chavracteristics from artillery, but never-

O e ccurate=-
theleas the explosive charge can bs converted taﬂfairly~ae%%¥a
, Cracec -
&

When I took over the Upesrations Section of the Schools there
I looked at this thing and I said, "The hell with this. If ge are
going to land they are going to make a major decision te land, and
we are going to land a lerge force, whatever it's called, Fleet
flavineg Force now, and we'll have a hell of a lot more if we have
waer." I was harking back to $orld Gar I, where when 1 came in
they had 17,500 troops; and I think we had some 90,000 before the

WAL Was OVEeT,
B: Yes.

Erskine: And I envisiocned the same thing to happen in a larger

degres., Seo I put the whole Atlantic Fleet in wmy problems. 8y God,
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if we zre going to be in, we are going together. This is part of
the Fleet, and ths Flaét has got to support us, I sald.

I was harassed by a lot of the instructors and even by the
chief of staff of the school. “You think ths Navy is ever going
to do that?® 1 said, "If they don't and I have anything to do
with it we are not geing to land, and that's it. It's that wvay,.

ot it doy ng fi this oy th il an @ th
$945°38u55 *yaa¥11°REab 10V b with pancil and pepus, the

/IFf you don't get it, I am not going to put Fflesh and blood in
g

there instead of steel."

I belisve it was chhH%gggg who called me and said, "I don't
think you are going to havs anything to do with it anywsy.” I didn't
think I would either, but I was trying to put what I felt was a
sound idea into the concept of thasa prab%g%% /héﬁGBdiact;cally

anded up that way, in World War II in the Pacific.

filz Yessir, 1t did.

Ergkine: VYou've got to heve the Tire powsr thers, and you can
figure out about what you nesed.

it Ysu hed o very kg argument with enother Marine =-- with Holland

e

Ymith == uboul navel gunfize about Tarawa, I understand,

Erskine: Yes. Well, in that case I didn't agree with the scheme

of manéuuarﬁ, They wanted to go right in straight in a frontal
attack, which they did, into Tarauws. Ny thought was that we should
seize an island as an artillery base, becsuse Terawa ss 1 remember

was only about 6 or 7 fest -- maybe 9 feet -- elevation. With §
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inch shells you'd have to hit that island mavbe 2000 yards ahead of
the flarinss in the front line, with a high velocity gun. That's no
goeed for 8 landing operation, ﬁ%gzigzzg/gunfire J ot g2t
heota hill 4o shoot at yow, you can get pretty close
support. B8ut I wanted to land our artiliery on one of thes other
ialands, andgéﬁg cur people in the front lins enfiladed Firs as close
as possible, which could probably have been up to 75 yards in Pront
of thsmb.
S
Harpry Hill was ,one of the main people in this argument,‘ﬂHalland
Smith voted me down, and I had so much to say about it they weouldn't

let me go down on the operation,
lr UYas there any reaction afterwards?
Ersking: UWsll, on our next operation we did that, at Kwsjalesin.

%z I undsrstand thers were no rvecriminmations, that the after asetion
and the special action peport end so on proved that -«
ligll, this was one of theg plus things that came cut of thse
Tarawa operations -~ the fact that the navel gunfire support was AOT
Ack?qQ%z, Lerons—tatk—& cough)
et o
They'hadjgreater nabal gunfire support, and the nature of it ~-

\
what was it, neutralization versus pinpoint 2&%?} I forget exactly,
Epskings Concentration.

it Concentration. The ships did not provide asdequate navel gunfire.
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Erakinag Weil, they can't raise to the gun or sumhﬂ

#ﬁ@gﬁg you have a elopg you are going up a hill, you teks youy
5 inch gun, and the big guns teo. It's the same thing., They havs
such & high veloeity that you have some elevation here if you are
gpning to get closa support for this front line.

At Kws jalein I brought this up to thae Army. The 7th Army Division
landed on Kwe jslein Island, end they did this -« they landed all the
artiliery . « » they seized the first islend, thsy landed the
grtillery and put it over there aend then gave direct support to

thelr troops.

fis Just like wse hed in Saipan, whers all Corps artillery wenit doun
tle
to the southsrn part of the island and suppartadﬂTinian?éwhﬂﬁ4hvﬂ'

Erskine:r Yas,.

G2 OFf course Tarawa did not lend itself to 8 socsllisd rolling barrage

provided by naval gunfire.

Erskinas No, the terrain was such thal your gunfire was just in-
effective, It wouldn't hit the island, 8y the tims your front line
gdrihe beach thay would be shpoting over ths island; unlees theyygﬁgt
apound and got an enfiladed position, which 1 thinﬁa few ships triad
to do there., 8ut I still think it would have bean much hettsr to
havs splzed one of the small islands, they could have gone there in

a very shoprt time and kad the srtillery up end started the bombardmant,

say the first day. VYpu didn't heve te have a whole armada thera. You
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vould have had a small task force, end so they could have bean in a
th

position whers they had to glve tgggpeaﬁls direct support, I'd say

within 75 vards uf the front,

B Why was Holland Smith so adamant? After sl) he fought so many

neaa~tnmncae)eyehallwtmwayshall Fighta.

Erskines I don¥t know, 1'11 never know. The day of the landing I
was in Pearl Harbor, asnd Adm. Nimitz invited me to lunch -~ he ktew
about this. His operations officers was a Capt. Steele of the Navy.
.E’
Gen. SU{\>
G I think that's/ﬁhepherd'sﬁ?abharwin~law‘

Erskines No. This is Steele; his wife is a sister of 2 bipg baer

man on the Wset Coast. Lopors.
s That's pright, I've met him at the Apmy & Navy Club,

Erskines At this luncheon I sat on Adm., Nimitz's right, and Steele
sat on hias left, and thers wers several pther officers there whose
names alip my mind now, Ye hoad aboubt Finished our maaig ang Steele
looked at me and he said, "I guess you'll be satisfled when the Navy
blows the goddamn islend sway down there in Tarawa, and wastes all
the ammunition, all the effort end everythipg, I Jjust don't undep-
stend why you insist on so much fPire powsr and st much help to get
them ashore. All they did is just walk eshore thers.” H#And I told
Steele he didn't know a gooddawn thing about it, end Nimite said,
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“Lopk, you two fellows walt till sfiervards and get ouiside.® You
see, we sre having lunch,™

The battle was over. Steele was relisved too and assigned to

gither the Hest Virginis or the Indiamapplis, or the Indiana, wee it?

Anyway, it wasn't very long before he distinguished himself by

colliding those tuo ships right into sach other at sea. And Steals

was relieved again,
iz He is retired, He lives hers.

Erskine: vYes. He used to have e 25,000 dollar a year job here,
rapresenting some company, I forget which. 1 have seen him a

number of times here, but I've pever menticned this discussion to

him again.

Hee
1 He is the uncle of Shepherd's wife, -Hiz father was thes admiral,

Erskines Shepherdts futher-in=law lives right over hare near tyoming
Avenue, and it's not Steele. UWhat the hell is his name? 1 know him

very well, too.

Qe Eﬁou.iS-%ka,o&des+—%mt} That's Lempul Shepherd, Jr.

D ,
The young one iaﬁﬁ. That's the one,
trskine: UOh, Oh, (Pauss)

Br What was Gen. Smith's reaction after the Tarswa operation? Because

there had to be a lot of soul searching on this whole businass,
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Erskine: I naver zh brought it up to him, You don't do sny good by .
f
@: I knouw that.u/t;/u, drdnt

Erskkinet Yhen I suggested it to the Army they picked it up right

away ~- to take this island first in making their plan. H%idn't say

-ﬂ H’o(

T
anything.I don®t think you gain anything, I think //,all PYae do is open old

WOUNGS .

s I am sure that this was the size of the man, that there was no
cause for recriminstion or hard feslingss The fact that you were

with him after Tarawa Ffor a while « » «

Erskine: WYe had our problems once in a while, personal things.

nd I lived with it, Sometimes he'd get mad at me and wouldn'i
speak to me Foyr three or four days, and we'd sat breskfast right
across the tabla? I would do things and not tell him -~ not
deliberately, but I'd forget, I wae busy and I didn®t have time

t@ tell him, and when he'd find it out he'd give me hell, and XI'd
sayy Ths commanding general you ocught to be thinking about something
slsg, 1 am running this outfit, and you think about the naxt
operation and keep the outfit out of trouble., You laok after the
politics and do things like that, I know how to zun this outfit and
I am geing to run it as long as I am chief of staff." UOn at lsast
two occasions he salid, "A}} zemkt right, you are fired!”

it You Pired @ couple of people in vour time also.

£ 1)
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Erskines And I'd go and get my gear and go in and say,; "there am 1
suppesxxy supposed tp report?” He'd say, "go back to work. Goddamndt
you know I don't mean that, We were really close friends, but these
littls things would come up and he'd get mad., 2N He was under strain
all the time. He had to fend off the Bavy. I teld him, "Your job

is tp fend the Navyk off, and keep these people gut of my backyard.

I can handle all the internal affairs.” I think he felt wore or ot

| petect by hellavrS
less the same way., I don't thionk I did a vesy—goud jobgbobt———

@iy I don't think many people would agree with you on that, General,
I think the success of the Marines in the Pacific is ample testimony

to the kind of job you and Gen, Smith did do.

Erskine: But we had to fight the Navy, I would say, almost as nuch
as we did the Japanese to geit what we considered to bs our rights.
I didn't reslize that the same situystion was going to come up in

pur country today.

Bi: 1 dont't want teo get to far inte that, because I went to go back
to the Schools., I want to ssk you & little bit more sboubt Adm. King,
about the reletionship, what kind of persat he was. You'lve given a

touchdawn of your relations.

Erskine: I thought Adm. King was a brillient men myself, e was &
vary hapd taskwaster. I think you had top stand up to King. 1 don't
think, although he had some fellows sround him sradxfs who I thought
waere yas-men Trom time to time,; as a pule King tried you put the

firet time he met you, and then afterwsrds if he thought you were
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weakening he'd give you a push, and if you came back and stood up
to him and you had a reesonable snswer, King was all for it, I liked
him very much after I got to know him., He came out to Saipan when

we hed this -- Army officey relieved.

G: Yos, B8R smith.

[iies
Erskines Yas, I knew Ralph guite well. Hgﬂuama”mvar and came ashore,
then he btalked to Gen, Smith & while and then he came out and said,
fComa and taks a=§§ggc&ith ma." And we walked out there and he put *
his arm around me and he ssgid, "Goddamn it, keep onh arguing. Things

ape going all right.”
iz That's the kind of man hs wag,

Erskinas I was very fond of King. There ig one thing ~- I had 4~
ponfidence in this mang if he decided to do something, he was geing
to do it, and kwe he was not afraids; he was not afraid of a decision.
As I say he weg a hard taskmaster. He could give you = directive in
one paragraph that was the mest all gmbracing dirsctive I have ever
ready it'd cover almost sverything, He wes a master at that sort of

thing.

~

Gs 1 think you probably read Walter Muir Uhitehill's 3%8%¥, The

Admiral King Story.

Erskine: No, I havenlt,
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e Capt. Whitehill, I gua&s.ms iz a scholapr. He was with XKing for
guite a while.

He indicates that most of the peopls he had around him and who
worked for him, whom he Yrusted, were bthe same kind of people whom
he gggasted and who stood up te him. As a result he had 8 very

tight ship and a very . .

Erskinse: I think you almpst have tu do thet when you have a job

like commander in chief of the Fleet or commandsry in chief of anything.

B lhat about the relationship -~ of course this is funny, this
has been remarked about, he ecalled himself Lominlh, or commander
in chief, which more or lass took the prerugative, the title auway
from President Roosevelt, But he wes in a sgrt of incengruous

position in the sense that here he was, commander in chief of the
fleaut, the senior navel officer, and yet Rdm, Leahy, who wes the

chiaf of steff to the President . . &

Erskiner The chisf aof &taff tp the President was not in the naval

chain af command, He wae just afbtaft officer for the President

and the Uhite Hpuse. But he couldn't issue orders to anybody, He
could recommend that Roosevelt issus orders, but he was pot in the

chain 6 command.

iy But of cvourss Roosevelt wss naval minded, mugh like Churchill,
a former naval person, and didn't he have eny inclination te dabble

with paval affairs, military affairs?



Lyskine « 207

Ezskine: I never saw it. I naver noticed that., I think Roosevelt
was smart encugh to leave the immediate decigsions to the commanders.
He I believe liked to look at it in a grand strategy viswpoint and

lpt somebody else work out the detasils.

fie Une thing I%ve been trying to pinpaint «- and I haven't been
ton successful, although I think there is enough circumstantial
evidance there to indicate kk whet the snswer might be -~ the
formation of the reidaers, the rajder concept, (0f cpurse Evana
Carlson was a protagonist, he was alwaye for it, and hie relation-
ship with Preeident Roosevell uas alway%{g%gégAghd tips and roocom~
mendations) may have heen the thing which moved President Roosevelt

to say, %¥sll, lst's form some Harine raiders.”®

Erskines It could be. I don't know, UOFf coupss Carlson yas very
¢losg to Jdimmy Roosevell, and Jimmy Roosevelt was in Carlson's
battalion, I guess the executive officer.

Bl: Yes, he was.

Erskine: And of course that's g pretty close link to the Bhite

House right therse.

"Gt 1 think Carlison had bsen the commander or the exscutive offiger

- of the Guerd down st the Little thite House in Warm Springs, Georgia,

wherse he got to konow the President.
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Erskinses I don't knew, but I knew Carlson in Peking. He was s lst
lieutenant at that time over there and he was adjutant to Cpl. Rixey

who wae in command in Psking.

Q: HNow getting hack to the Maring Corps Schools again, who wera somg

of the other instruectors thers?

Erskinet Joe Smith was in my sections Hogaboon.

B: Which one is that, Bobby?

Erskine: 8obby Hogaboom. UOf gosh, it's hard to remember.
s Shoup?

Erskine: VYes, Shoup. 1 rbought in the Intslligence Section there

with me, and Shoup turned oui to be sn sxcellent spsaker. Beschar,
s Oh yes, he was a PDY duripg the war.

Erskine: A POW in Shanghai. {Pause) Emmett Betts. For a while

Arnold Jacobsan was in the Schools thers.
fi+ He was the personnel expert, wes he not?
Erskines No, he was logistics.

s ithe had the F-3 section? UWas Jerry Thomas there at this time?
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Ersﬁ%“?ﬁﬁ, Hoble had the -3 section before I took it over. I had it
! believe only tuwc yeavrs. Noble was thergﬁans year gafter I came to

the Schools, and then I relisved Npblse.

1t At this time the Landing Force Manualy the amphibious deoctrine
had been written, and bsen experinented. The Fleet Marine Force had
baegn Formed, although the NBarine Lerps wes finding it vepry difficult
to man the FOF up to full strength. This was just befers the defanses
battalion congept came into being. 1 believe Charlie Barrett wes the
one who really pushed that,

i bslisve that skt this time alse wes 2 period of fleel landing

exercises employing thie doctribe, Hm I right, Gensral?

Erskine: You are right. And another very important thing, it wasg

a pariod in which they were dsveleping the lending boats.
{1+ Were you involved with this development at all?

Erskins: To a degres, when [ was chief of staff of the Atlantic
Amphibinus Force, I think it waes celled at that time, and Beku
Brute Krulak mwas a member of our staff, and Brute was the man
what reslly did most of the leg work and & lot of the thinking too
on the boats. Ue had as you Know the old Nevy motor sallers when
we started out, end they were pretiy poor. Une operation we had
. down at New River -- we had just taken over Npw River at that tima)
q%-ggF%;;p Lejeune «~ we had part of tha Army lst Divisice with us

down there, and we had, I think, the Mt Vernan, URLER was @ salling
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ship, she could carsy I think around 2000 or more men =8R8 but only
sguipment snough for nﬁélhattalion, that is arms and so forth,
artillery. Apd she was pretiy wesk in the ng@ﬁ and epouldntt handle
very heovy loads. 6f course she hedn't been gssigned to transpmrtcﬂdfy
vary long, and she was npt fitied -~ as a matiter of fact none of our
ships ot that tine were really fitied out for rsal honest-to-God
assaylt transports. And I know that the old motor sailers; thay'd
go in and approach the beach, and they'd always drop an anchor to
stern. In one period in this opsration we lost s9 many anchors we
had to eall off thoe opesration and let the troops on the beach, go
out and swim and dive and retrisve the anchors., That's how hard

up wg were, 4nd sach man who retrisved an anchgr gpt 2 carton of

cigarettes. I rememhsy that gyite well. That's how hard up we uwsra,

Gt This business abeout the booms on the transports relabted to

the #t. Vernon -~ as I recsll the Marinse Corps at this time, in

the developmenti of weapons specifically designsd for amphibious
ppaerations, wae working on the marmon«ﬂﬁgbingtun tank. And again

as I rerall they were btrying to get Besrmon-HArrington to rsduce the
weight to conform o the boom sbrength of the transports, which
‘acenrding to the information soweons at Headguarters had was Pdve

tons. It later turned out thet the boom strength of thess transports --

sp I hav2 been told -- wns actually 15 tonse.

trakines 1 am not surse of that, but they couldntt 1ift much weight.

e had guite a preblem. de took puer the first two real assault

ships an the Cast Coast here, tho Rawamwiny [cCawley and -~ what was

the other one?
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i+ OF course the Hegnderson was World War I. The Neville?

Ersgkiney No. Ee took tuo ships over from one of the steamehip
lines, and they were mede assault transports, and they had very
weak lifting gear. 1 remember this because I was an instructor in
the Marine Ceorps Schaols -- to go back to the marman«ﬂﬁ%rington
tenks ~~ and they had an eguipment board down at Quantico which
Gen., Holland Smith wes the president of at the time. They called
mg aver one day @s a witness to give my opinion on what kind of
tanks we needed in the Meripe Courps. 1 think at that time they
only had four of thess litile tanks, gg%ﬁﬁ were Jjust paper shsllsg
they werenit tanks in my mind at all. Ard they namsd gach one of
these tanks for one of the Canadian guadrupletz I forget their nanmes.

ft:+ The Dionne ouintuplets.

%rakine: Buintuplets. Then I mgwesw guess we must have had five.
e had a tank for each one, I took vne lpok at those things and

I said, "This is no damn gmad.” I romember fol. Mosss was alew a
member of this boerd. fink Moses. And they asked me what sort of
tank -- I was then punning thé Operationa Section of the Schools ~w-
I thought the Barine Corps should have, I sald, "ell, you've got
to have one that's got to survive, I{hat we have now I wouldntt
take into battle, they are not Fit for that.” Than Holiand Smith
hit the sky and he sald, "You know we spent & half a millien dollars
for thess things.™ #As I remember that was the figure. I sald,

*I dossn®t make any differsnce, they are no good for combat,®

"llell, what do you think?" I said, "Let's teke the Apmy tank™, the
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one we had at that time which had 2 75 nillimster gun on it,

fis The M-37

Erskine: I don't remember the number. It had a 75 millimeter gun.
Then they hit the eceilimg, "Don't you know that transports can®t holst
pkags them abosrd?" 1 said, "That's not the problem, get transporis
that cany, or put hoisting gear there so they cen 1ift them. Yeu nesd
so much equipment and menpousr to fight 2 successful batitle, and
that's the only kind of battls we want to fight. And that is ths
bast tank for us today.®™ I hadn't been very long out of Lsavenwosrth,
angd of courss they thought 1 was influgnced hy the Army, end of course
I probably was. But I couldn't see thoss othar tanks., I thought
it was just killing vourself?,

I think they had most of the tanks apmed ageinst 30 caliber
fire, but that®s about all. But sven then it was too light.

e finally had soms tanks that had 7% millimetor guns on them,
I think they wers the first ones in Army style. I'1l tell you, it
thmx took an awful lot of fighting and much haartacha‘in khose days
to get people to understand they wantsd to do spmeihing with nothing,
They'd figure up the cost for these thingﬁflpnﬁ the Harine Corps
dosen 't have that much mnney,"gﬁﬁéig%z?g%dégTiggg out of husiness."

But this is & differsnt thing now. UYhen I made inspesctions,
any time I could tear a man's cantesn off with my hends -~ and I
have a pretty geod grip -- it waes no damn good, and I used 1o
deliberately go along and tear them off and throw them down, and

the guartermasisr would Tollow cringing and JI'd say, "You get those
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people some good pguipment.¥ "Bui thet's all we have, goddamn it,"
"oet these people some epuipment! 1'11 teer off every bit of it.
finything I can break with my hends is no demn goed in battle.”?

iell, pretty scon"we had pretty good sgulpment.
Gz ithat do you think it was, a2 frame of mind?

Erskinet It wess a frame of mind. Just a frame of mind. I euppuss
it's the same thing today. A lat of the senior officers, if you are
ot actively engaged in this kind of thing, yaé?just gat an opinion
in your head that was good snough, and why spend all of this money,
and they don't keep their minds open, like going to the moon after
you go sround the werld, improving svsrything. Houwever, today I

Aot +h > peruades +he
dontt think $hers—is—tire same complex Fee ma jor services.

1t Was there a fesr on the part of certain Warines of making waves
pp rocking the boat? |

| welh) Yo - |

Erskine: 1t could beﬂ e had » task force sat up to go to the
&zéreé, It consisted of the lst Division Army and the let Civision
Marine Corps, and we had an apti-sivcraft artillery brigede of the
Apmy also attached. I made the study and wrote the order for this
thing, as chief of staff. I made the estimate, and I pas telling

- you about talking to King, and King had his little fun pver the
conventionel signs. In moking up our requirements for ammunition,
I asked for 10 units of fire For the anti-sircrsft. The thought at

that time was that Hitler might ssize a hese there and from there



Ergkine - 214

bomb New Yﬁfk and probably some other plate in the country, end~+hat
ha

Lﬂﬁgtha ideaTWaa ﬂﬂﬂﬂ4omb as o “"6? : we were making

this plan, Wg had the Army in on this thing too.

I went to Headquarters Marine Corps one day, Ny dear friend
Vandegrift I belisve was assistant commandant at the time. And I
walked in and he ssid, “Hey, come here, I want to ask you something.”
{ said, "ves, sir.% He said, "You mean to tell me that you are
serious when you ask for 10 units of fire fFor this anti-aircraft
battalion?® I said, "Absolutely, and probably another 10 in reservs,
It depends on how long this brigade is going to be thers.® He said,
*Do you know how much ammunition that is?" I said, "I cen tell you
to the round. I know exactly.® He said, *Don't you mupmugh know
there is not snhough brass in the United Statesz to make thal much
smpunition?” I said, "Well, we'd better stay homs then, if ikeyxs we
haven't got snough brass for that, And if you haven't got enough

brass to ask for what you need; you'd better stay home too."
i Whet was his reaction to that?

Erskine: Hal He was ready to throw me out, but he didn't, I had

been xxigég,sxac a long time befors, and I'd known him for a long whila{

I often laughed to mysslf ahout it., Another time I went in,
It was the day when we were getting shoulder patches. Actually we
only had one division under our control -« the lst Division at that
times. And we hod designed -~ I hed a2 little to do with it, but

somebedy else came up with this amphibious pateh for the Sth Cogps,
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which is an elligator head wlth thyee stars on it, The Pirst time
1 went tu Hemdguarters Marine Lopps when Vendegrift wes there, he
looked and said, "Turn around and let me look at that.” He looked
at it and he said, "Dp you have any hsllucinations that we are »
ever going to have @ three star organization or a three star general
in the fleld?" 1 said, QI certainly think so, it won't be long,
e got to have them. This is a big war, Vendy, it's not a little
thing, Forget the regiment and start thinking now that this iz a
gorps, The Apmy comes in and we've got two divislons -~ thet's a
sorpe, plus all the snocillary troops thath§¥§ tv be in there.®
Those who didn't go to Army schools didn't reslize how much of
these %x supporiing troops you have to have efter you have the

combat unit, liks signalman,
it Of course ths Army always ovardid it, as far as &uppmrt/%%x#l“*f“+‘

Erskine: The Avmy overdid it, end I have always sort of felt

hikye they overdo thelr staff and their staff work, But when you

get out into combat and you start losing s few of these guys, you
should have enough to go through =~ the sustaining power, It's

more than you need for a little opevation, but it's always damn

handy to have when you need it. Just because you ended up with
somathing left doesn't mean you had too much to begin with,

The ability to continue in adction afier you have suffered casusities
is what's important. Our people got that into their head toe, finally,

particularly with reference to personnel.
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§s Anyway Vendegrift saw that patch -~ that 5th Corps patch.

Erskine: Yes, he saw it, that's why he was ribbing me., "Do you
think you are doing to make Hplland Smith a three star gensral?®

1 said, YSooasr or later., I'1l make you @ bet,"

fis Yas this when he was siill assistant commandant befores he took

over the divisionZ?
Erskine: Then he went down as assistant division commandsr to Torrey.

s Yes, Phil Tprrey. But your patch was designed befpre Tuining

designed the lst Division patch? J gusss it must have been.
Erskines 1 don't know., I don't really know.

fis 1 know that the lst Division patch waes designed on Vandegrift's

way to Australia, after fLuadalcanal.

Erskine: Was it? Maybe it was later. HNo, it couldn®t have been.
HBut I know I was right down here in Headquarters Marine Corps.
After that uaﬁdy want down to be ADC to Torrey, end when Torray

was relieved, I was sitting in ~~ wé had these old combat cars ih
those days, a few mF those things around, instesd of the jeeps -~
in the combat car when Gen. Smith sent for Yandegrift, he was out
with the troops, and we drove out there, and Gen. Smith told Vandee

grift he was going to aaaigd him as division commander. Vandy
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could hardly believe iti (lsughs)

iz Oh really? uhile we are on the subject, would you care to discuss

the circumatancaes surrpunding the relief of Torrey as division

commander?

Erskine: (Pause) It{s pretty hazy in my mind now, and 1'd hate

to maks pemarks about it bwecause as I say it's hazy, and I don't
want to be unfair or ynjust. But Torrey and Gen, Smith didn't

seam to get along twgethfr vary well. And I really think the
concept of a diuisian%ﬁbiittlm bigger than Torrsy could really
understend, and that is 8 modern outfit and how to run it. He

ke was a man who had elways been ameticulous in his administrative
work and things like that, but I think it was jusi beyond his real
comprehension. At least the way Holland Smith wanted it to operata,
I am certain on that peoint. Torrey would freguently healf cerry ocut
crders of Gen. Smith, and as a matiesr of fact 1 think he sort of
felt that he had more drag in Washington than Holland Smith had,

and that was an important factor in those days. Torrsy and I didn't
gat along eithsr: he kkegki thought I was & young upstsrt who was

putting Smith up to s lot of these things. (laughs saftly)

s Did Hollen® Smith meke these decisions independently?

Mg

Ersking: 1 think sn, but I think he talked to Gen. Holeocomb first.
I think he telked it over with Gen. Holcomb before it was finally

sattled.
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1+ Did the del Valle-Torrey incident bring this to a head?

Erskine: It came eslong close to that time. T waes in Martinigue I
think, somguwhers. I forget exactly what it wes now. But I know

1 pas down at New Rirt, when pete had just been pver some place to
a meeting snd he'd gotten up and sounded wp off on what hs thought
abput certain things. I don'% know whst reslly trenspired. 1 don't
remember now, but I know Gen. Smith sent me to see Pete. Paete was
out with the artillery at that time, end I drove out there and
talked to him, and I told him he had hetter lay off this kind of
stuff. I said, "You've got snough to do training thie artillery
here, and you'd better stick to that for a little bit.* Pete was
very senisr to me, and hes ssid, "Are you speaking as my junior or
as my senior?® “I am speaking as chief of staff. That covers a
big field, I just think you are guing to get hurt badly if you
don't . . » And 1 am also speaking as s Priend." I think that was

the reason for this trouble between del Valle and Torrey ~- wmasn't it9?

fis Well -- Let me turn this off for a minute, and then you can
- want to put this on fape. ..

dacide wh@thar-arvgﬁgtyau ??Etuzns ggmhf‘g'@ff)

You were telling me about talking to Gen. del Valle about this

matter, and he asked ypou whether you came to him as ssnior or , .

Ergkine: Yeos. He was kidding me, you know. Pete and 1 have been

- good friends for a:leng time, I knew him well,

@t It's an interesting point, because I think Gen. %mixk Thomas

brought this up ~-- the rols of the chief of staff vis-d-viw the
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the regimental commanders. If you have a chief of staff who is a
genior to the resgimental commenders, I guess he is going to try to

run the divisien to the point wvhere the regimental commanders can't

get to see the commanding general. But if you have @ chief of staff

ggg# is junior, and you don't load up the staff with =s1l the senior
officers, you don't have, say, a G-1 or G-2 who is senior to any of
the regimental commanders, the regimental commanders who are really
fighting the division commander's battle have complete, direct

entres, if nead ba, to the commanding general.

(Erskingi 1 glways Felt they should, but I'd like to know what they are

f

going to talk about First, I was always Jjunior to all the division
commanders, and I pevar had any problem on this thing at all. A%

lesst 1 don't remember ever having any difficulty on it.

s v
Epxkexum: NMaybe later when we get to talk about FiFPar, there may

have been a little whesling and desling as far as reliefs went and

8o on. I think Holland Smith and Gen. Vandegrift when he was

commandant stopped it -=- if you are going to relisve somaons i%¢

it 1 a8 e w ¥
Erskine: I have te go now.

®: Wwa'll end this session then, I think we sre golng to have to
ge back to JQuantico, General, But this has been & very outstending
sgesion, I think, and I thank you for speaking frankly, because the

matters you spoke of, thers is no documentation on them; and they
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are very valuable.
trekines 1 appreciate your prompting me, because my memory is
pratty dim now on thess things. I don't remember the details, and

I should remember the details on that del Valle thing because Heolland

Smith was . . .

Vandy at that tims was ABC, wasn't he?
it No, he had npt come down yetb.
Erskines This is another pccasion.
J2 This vame just afier the division lander at New River, and btook
over Msw River. Then del Valle was up thers, and then Ban. Holcomb
sgnt Vandegrift down, end I think Stover Keyser had bsen mede assistant
commandant and relisved Vandegrift.
Erskines Uh uh,

$r Thank you very much, sir.

Erskiney I think I am free next Usdunesdsaye

End of Side 2, Teps 1, Session 1Y, End of Session IV,
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Sesslon ¥ -~ § November 1969

Yope 1, Dide 1

B Ye went a little further shead of oursslves last time, and I
wanted o continug on with your tour at the Senior School. You
were chief of the F-1 and F-2 sections and finslly the F-3 section

in the senior courss.

Erskiney Yeo.
s It seems to ma:thaﬁhat thie time all of the esrly iritial studiss
on amphibious warfPare technigue and doctrine wers being collated
there. There haé beﬁn@ennugb of the fleet landing exsrcises -
Flexes -- perhaps by now, with experiments on the Usst Coast, the
test Coest Expeditiomary Force, the FMF out therse, and purheps on
the fast Cgast down %% Vieguee, to indicate what sope of the problems
wers, ‘
Erekina: Yee, That was aﬁé_nﬁ tﬁe important things that we wers
dolng in the Schools et that timég‘ I don't know that any one person
could take aredit er‘deualnping_ﬁha various technigues that we
finally came out with, becouse meny people were inpvolved in it.

foe of our grest problems in ﬁhaﬁ.parﬁiculaa periocd wne having
s sultsble landing beoat, ﬁé;hmﬁ a hmat‘bwmnﬁ, and the boat boapd
had come up with verious typés of boets that thay had ssen, bul we

had nothing rs&emhiing the ramp bow. Watter of fact that wes thought
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to he more or less impossible by members of the board, I think.
But #ir. Higgine down in New Orleans cesme up with a remp bow

beat, and he brought it up to New fiver ~~ this wae after I'd lefd

the Schoupls -- end ran some teets with it. At that time we had to

land our srtillery by towing a beat that had ne engins in it, it

had @ couple of whai you might maiﬁ'tin planks to get the ertillery

off with, BOut we were mbsolutsly jup aguinst it to cerry e tenk of
any sizg end get it ashore, GSo Hiégina iﬂihi& peculiar way Finelly
built a tank lightﬁr,:which way xﬂ‘#@am pf 6@& renp type, and
brouwght it up and t@sﬂad-it. I ram&mbax ﬁﬁavé? the tests -- which
I didn't attend -~ uas conductad dmmn in %ha Nar?clk area. They
loaded an sriillesy: piace on one of thw Nevy" typm designs (the
ones that sere towed), and Higgine pub tha tank iﬂ his ranp bow
boat, and it vwes a pretiy rough day, ¢ % khmy s&awtad to oross
the 8oy theare, and we marg minug one Lankluhan thay got to the
vther sids, plus one bbet, But nggiﬂﬁ'/ iesamk lighter negotiated
the wrossing in axcazient Banner. That mﬁﬁ pyoof th&ﬁ sort OF got
¢ by this boat board ;n Washington, th@t\mavb@ they didn't know

averything io the Mauy ﬁapﬂrtment abnuttbeaﬁang and aeﬁ.
‘/, \,\ «>~\

| 4f\ kﬁ |

4y  This was ons of the problems, m 13 it ﬂﬁtg in the ﬁeuwlmnmant
of amphibious warface teahniques dnd daatrﬁha -~ the Fact: thaﬁ the
Navy had a correlated rewpwn@xhillty for naﬁalupmng the Zahéxng
epaft engd the transports to nar:y @ﬂph¢hi@uu pasaull Fmrsms, anﬁ

they uweren'i doing enough of it,‘,' R ‘3- | ﬂ

Erekine: Thsay didn®t have tha bﬁn&mpt aF gwtﬁaﬁg the %arﬁnﬂg amhmra, j

the samp concept thet we had.

|

\ |
\t N

F
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e had to lend with unit inteygrity and be mble to Pight from
the moment we went ashore. They sxpected us at that time to carry
vary light eguipmant, so that we could jump out of this old moter
seilar type bosts and »un ashore. But we bad @ different concept.
In order te Pight thers was a certeln type snd a certain amount of
equipnent that we nseded if we were going to be successful. The
day of the @ananaﬁdﬁrs was over in iha concegpt of mpst HBarine, I
think, and we hed to bave modern equipment, and ee had $0 have
modern ships, the shipe had to have holsting gear thai could hoist
the boats aboard, and lowsp the bbete, and holist sll of our heasvy
goulpmant and put it in the holds. They didn't have it in thoss
days, and it was pretty hard, they'd think eboui how nuch money
it's going to cost, Uell, ona of aﬁz answEars to that wes aluays
how much is your Freedom worth, ?ng-m%n'% be penny-wise on this
kind of stuff, we'va got to have it. /ﬁnﬁ a Poi navsl officers
finnlly got the ides. then bthey Pau#d\auh that they wsre going
tn ba involved in this thing it was b 11t*la ﬁl??ﬁr&ﬂt story we
and invelved ind big say. e had aﬂy number of tpr& of boats
tested, but we sndsd up with the mémn bnm bost as wux\ataﬂdurd
landing hoat. S L
ity Hy this time w~w '30-730 «« the plunnara ang thinkﬂﬁ§ dﬂﬂn gt
fuantico, and of course in FTP-167, hﬁm pretty well lined up mhat
the conduct of meving sshore was going tu ba. Intmlllgﬁnﬂe L wall,
you hullt this upy thare was grnntur qwmzmnnaa of thé type of

intelligence,estinate of the cibuation, und of gourse w& had the

\

S=payugraph operation order. ﬁuh thers wmre cartain anﬂ&&lary ﬁ%

problems, wers there not, such aa 1Uglatih$¢ which r@mq:neﬂ 8

\\

constant problem throughout the war. 4

A
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Erskine: VYes. Logistics was always o problem, But we learned a
greet deal before we sctusily ont into the wer. But we had other
problemg, Meny of the areas that we probebly would be assigned o
had coral reefs, apd ths romp bbw host was not the answer to the
coral reof, So we wore at the same time working on the smphibien
tractor, and a great daal of mohey wes spent on the rasearch and
st Foarth,.

Another thing we neaded was waterproefing of vehicles. Brube
Krulek I think playsd a greast part in developing that. I reomomber
while we weres down at f(uentico with the Amphibiocus Corps Headguarters,
Brute took 2 jeep ocut and ﬁé&ﬁﬁ imprnwisédmatwrial he'd wateprproof
this jeep so that it could at leasst run cul of a lending boat with
water up aver the ssats in the jsep. s ran a‘numhgr af experimgnts
on thet. I am # not sure who actuslly conducted the final test on
it, but we came up with preity good matar@ranfing‘fﬁr the jeeps.

I alvo remember that we at Hesdouattdrs == and 1 think Brute
aleo had a hell of & timg explaining ta‘the quartarmaﬁtar gangrgl
of the HYarine Corps why thie Jjeep wvae b nod and who hh@ hell
guthorized him to put it out there iﬂ a& 1t water and pui\ail thase
1itthe attachmants on L%, and why did e \ant to have o Jaﬁh that

473

would be smphibious in & way. Uell, the|answer to tha%quaa, RS

getd the demn things ashore. fkexwei g a\
: ‘\’1
'41 N ; \\\
tis  lNow this is another point, geing back wg 3% when the Flest |
. . I v K ‘ o
flapine Forco was organized: you had enough’ gf the oldbinmers arcund
) R o
in the Harine Corps who wers opposed $o ity they didn't hove the \W
\“. . \\:
' |
\\ | |
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vision, thay couldn't ses ghat the Future of the Marins Copps should
be. And now you mention the Quartermaster, who I guess was Seth

illiome at the time,
Eraskiney I think it was.

g And he was constantly putting on the brakes, as [ understand i,

about many things.

Erskine: I think actually et thet pericd of time the Quartsrmaster
éganaral asgrt of contrplled the flarine Loyps, bwrause he wese had
achileved o pusition sess where he way almost ;n~w£§;éﬁiJE“ZE; mongy
the Acharc +hought=
that could be spent, and any ides that didp't f&tAQF some of these
oldtimers was just out, that's ell. It had to be an emsrgency.
And sven then there wos guite a Feeling ancng some of cur senior
officers that the Barine Lorps should never o béyand aft ALT = 3@
reinforesd infantoy regiment -= and th&t was aboul ﬁq big as we
were going to be. I koow I wgs kidded muny tinesg hmaﬂuwﬂ of problems
en the division level el cetera by these pa@pja« Ang &ﬂa ohe thing
that 1 often sorl Q?'iﬁUﬂs atiout now in that these » th@ﬁgﬁ actually
came L0 poaes <« § don't taks credit for @li of this, I yae une of
a number of people who wore preaching thha docteine. Buk I hyve
Folt too that some of thesss gldtimers whﬁ wanked to keep this “&?
coricept going wers & little bit afzaid afatha future, becauge nh&y
digatt think,thmyxmmm%@xh&xﬁﬂxkhmxxmﬂﬂ%ﬁgi kmmgxdﬁﬁwxﬁxﬁmaﬁgkﬁwy
Bagxkkaxzoy thoy didntt have the Lufflﬁ@ﬂﬂﬁ that they CBULQ do it

L= side [ined :
And therefore thaey sould ssd—for 18, ¢vﬁh&nk that uss par% uf it.

i
! g
§ |

i
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fhen war broke out, didn't this

gy OF course -
prove to bs the cese -~ that the high command wes beyond thely

capabilitiss?

Ervskine: Yes. #And of course you Know how they made promotions in
and assgn<d people,

those ﬁaysn It would ba pure heresy to put a young Fellow cver spme

of these people because they had to be tried out and they had Lo be

relisved when they made a mistukes. #And soume were, Oome Fell by the

wayside phgsically and varipuz other rassons.

¢ You were down there for a period of sbout three yeers, st Guantico.

las thars anything oubtstanding during your tour in the Schools bsfore
you were tran&?ﬁrxéﬁ o the Bth Barines? 1 am gu% ﬁﬁgngs et ob.

It sesme to me thic was a period of fepment.

Preking: 1 @aw*% think of any particular svent being outstanding,
But I think we did maﬁagw to sort of get @ more forwerd looking
eoncept in the ﬁnhumlé dostrine, and I think there were improvements
and progress, bub I %hink uhat'*a port af normel. Tines were getting
tenge and people bagmn 6 think a little bit more sericualy aboutb
thege thinge, But 1 can't think of any porticular esvent at tha

mument that I would hwll outsbanding.

iy How wae the efalure and posture of the taring Corpe st this time? -

Erakine: I don't peppmber the strenpgth, but it wes, I think, spound

27,000 snlisted, 1 don*t know the m??iuér@‘ shrength.
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#t  Wes the Corpe in good shaeps generally speaking?

Erskine: Yes, 1 think it was., Looking back on it, 1 think thaey
had progressed z grest desl since topld dar I, but 1 still didett
feel thet we were up to what we had to he for Horld tar II. And

we were still fighting with the Navy to get the proper consideration
for gunfire. One thing thet we did develop in ths Schools was @
gubd theory on peval gunfire in suppert of the landing forca.

OF course it was tried out on & small scale easch ysar. One of my
great disappointeents slways wse the fect that thsre wes such greab
resistance to assigning sufficisnt naval gunfire to support & real
landing. The Navy cowld not understand that, Ufdds the oppos T
fleet was completely defeated, they fell that we got what wes left

over and mostly second rate sbuff.
i+ They had to save thae tubes for o surfaece engagement,

Erekina: Uh yes. UOnce the Navy got inte it, though, they zeslly
gave us considerable sooperation, but that was long after the warp
hed started, when they reslly found out what we had to have in

order to be suceessful.

R

onahts
fly  dho ware some of tha grant mﬁp&wmgxx Rehpureies  and ﬂmpsrtm in

naval gunf'ire down at the Schools at this time?

Erskiney e usually hsd an artilleryman wa a | chief ins sLrUotor.

Yo had s navel officer as e lieison officer fmam the Nevy Uepartmant
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there in the Schools, who was semetimes consideged to be the final

authoeity on whut the Movy wowld give and what the Nevy wouldn'g

give, the types of ships that would be svailebls. 8ut I took all

of that with a grein of salt; I figured when we got inte a real

mess we would have to have our npze blonded once oy twice before

people really got down to business. 1 think theat showsd up in

Buadaleanal, end from that time on the Navy was perfectly willing.
fictuvally when we moved our Headguerters to the Yest (oast

they set up a naval gunfire test over thers, which we hed recommended,

and puery ship thet perticipatsd and would support a ship in an

pperation would have Lo pass a tesk which wss given by the farines.

They set up our UP in Sen Clemente im u target apes there, snd xki

a lot of these ships didn't pess, The commander in chief ~- who at

that time was fAdms King -= had decided that they would pasz, and

many young captains of crulsers and destroyers got a littls spanking

from the boss man and had to run back through this ocsurse unitil it

wag satisfactory.
s des it a hard job to persuade King that this had to be done?

Erskine: After Xing saw the facts thare was no difficulty. ¥He
said, 71f thot's what we hsve to have, then we will do it, Buﬁ
ramember one thing (andéthia was @ vatchuurd with King), we do the
best we can with what mé can.®  Undch is still good advice. Bub
thot doson't sxcuse tha‘tnp laval from praufﬂing sufficient eguipe
ment and sufficient par%nnnal to take care 0f u problom, It's ne

‘upe gazrificing talented men just becauss you don’t have snough
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foree end enough squipment. To my mind that's murder,

1t OF course at this time the sguipment of the military services

was pretty low,
Erskines: Theit's rpight.
G 1t yas pbsolets and there uwesn't enough of it.

Erskines 8But I thought aluays that this country had plenty of
money ahd our industry waz probebly the graatest in {he world,
angd all we hed to do waes declilde whal we wanted and design it,

and industry could certainly produce it.

G: Uhat asbout aviastion in vour course of instruction? How did

you figure ths role of aviation?

Erskine: We had e chief zvistor who was an instructér, a lisutsnant
colangl, 1 belisve for the most part [ wae thers it was Great
Farrell, and he hzsd ssvérsl octher aviaters. e had st %.cartain
nerivd of time = leot of aviation, but they didn't get sround nuch

to the boabing side of aviabion -- it m@s moatly CAP and rocone-
nelissancy, to protect our own ared, and diraat aupport. UF course
pur people were very strong on the divs &nmbing concept, which was
the best thing geing ol that time. The Ermy Aviaticn didn*t go a

in for that, Thoy'd hoveo & level Fiight énd drop their bomba e
what they wcelled saturstion bombing. Bub ours was nore of a

pracision type thing,
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Ouy communicntions had to be improved to take care of all that,
you see, and I think we had @ pretty good team, 8ut I doubt that

it wos as clessly integrated ass wheat we call our alr~ground tesm today

B: Of course eviation had been suffering from ocutmoded equipment,

It didn't have modern equipment at this time,

Epskines That's right. 1'vs alwaye looked upon the sipplane as
basically a means Lo carry a aﬂgéea ég fram ong plecs to another.
But until about ths time of World War II, 1t was o sort of a flying
club. VYou could fly twe missiong two hours g day was the moximun.
And thers was one plane and one pilot in the squadrons, and fisliger
was the head of the lst ¥ing ot that time, and while I was chief

of astaff, in ong of wur exercises off New River 1 decided to prove
my point that this group could not stand sustained combat with one
pilot snd ane plane. %o we had 8 numbsr of sxercisss, end ans fast
as they would land I%'¢ cell them up for sntothsr ong.

Pretty soon Gedger was yelling about his aviastors being
gxhausted, and I said, "Goddamn ift, didn't I toell vou that this
machine is here to carry these things, not for the pilat*a'@wn
pleasure? This is what vou are going to have in combat.” I think
after about thres ur fouy days the mhcla»démn wing wae grounded
with exhaustion, I sald, "That's the way var i going to bey, boys®

%o they got tbogother and they had a big thing., T think finally
they got about 1 and 3/4 pilots per plano, m%L*h was shepped up to |

2 pilots or 2% pilots befnre the wer wsg over.
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i+ This hos been o probles that sxists down to this very dey.
There haas always besn this schism, this gulf betwsen ground and
air Marines, The aviators have aluays besn unhappy that the ground
officers gvrit don't guite understand them, don't guite undarstand
the problems, and the svistors have been a bresd apart,Thﬁg alnost
con be called ths wild blue yonder boys in & sense,

Bow a number of your eviators like Gresi Farrell and fegse,
and maybe Jerome and some of the others, hed sterted out es ground
officars, sv they had an ides -« they had hag infantey treining.

But some of thess other pepplse went pight into avistion,

Epskine: ! think that's coypect, and I don't doubt but what it exists

to a considerable degres sven today, The old gravel cruncher down
thers would march mavhe 20 mileg 8 day with 40 pounds on his back,
and he doesn’t go out on o mission For two hours end get back hers
and get a steak and a good shot of pum, That's sort of been the
fagling of the ground trooper. UOFf course I've been ¢ ground
troopgr all along, but I think our aviators rezlly have an pasiey
1ife than the ground trocps, However, when that boy is up therw
on his ﬂ&ﬁ he is aimply there by himsslf in air combat, ang I
respect that -~ it tekes a hsll of & lot of courage and g hsll of
a lot of good sshse to survive there, snd that's what swe wanted,

we wanted to survive, both the ground end the air,.

iy Now this conflict may get doun to @ mors basic gaint¢”§a§gﬁg§ﬂﬁ
gR the proper yole of avistion. I am surs most ground coasabders

belisve that aviation is nothing more; nothing less than a supporting
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army, along with neval guofire and artillery, wherpas some of the

avietore concelve of it as o separate arm.

Erskines They do. OF course in sddition to ground suppert you

have ysconnaissance, photggraphy, ahd also air combat that they

have to be prepared for. And I think it's proper that they should,
Howsver, the Mavine Lorpe had an advaptege: we hed 2 single

compander of the landing forve who commanded his aviation and the

ground traeps. It wasn't like the Army had at the time, where

aviation was almost-- well, i% wes in @ way -- @ separate arm,

and when they want in they had & seperate cvommand. Ip the Nawvy

we oould alwaye call, but we had to request neval suppord, and

we had to do that some pericd of time shead of time before we

could uss it, becauseg the averall Navy responsibility when we were

at sea was the protection of the ships snd so0 forth, in addition

to eny snti-submarine sotivity, shd of course the movement to the

beach, fAnd 5%@} geprentt concprned too much sbout any suppord.

The Hevy sviators weren't trained to the degres that the Herine

avistors wers, and we nesver used them s close to our front lines

a9 our WYarinee, betauss our Marines were gspecinlly trained for

that particular type of work, The aly combsi was vraerlly a sgoondary

role in the fprine Corps; we never had the better plenes; it wase

always my @ impression that the Harinegs always got second rote planes,

tig  OF course theytd raly upen the Revy to provide these sircraft.
(Pause) The guestion I want %o ask you here is thal beceuse Haring

Aviation depended so heavily on the Navy For equipmenk, planes and



Eraking - 233

woxgn otuff thet was not peculisr to the favine Corps, thers was
always a feeling ~« at lenat among some people ~- that WHorine Aviation
wea too close in bed with the Navy, and that there uwes soprt of a

divided sllegiance.
Ersking: I think that's true,

{i+ How waa that solved, if sver?

. i\\@
Erskingy Personglly, when I hadnﬁia@t flaring Fovee I never had
top much trouble. I did have a little problem from tims %o time,
becpuse the Flest would want to always keep » couple of our sguaedrons
prepared to go on board 8 carvisr, and they would from time te timw
sgt up a scheduls §g§§%§§ining, and that wag preceded of course by
whet thaey called bouncer tnaining%ﬁwhiah they'd come in and bounce
eff the Fleld., Thers was g sisulated landing, they'd drsw white
lines ascrogs the fleld to repressnt whers they should land on a
carrisr, and they'd have Lo bounce in there at & certain speed,
snd then take off, come back and bounce. That wae preliminary
training. fnd then they went sbpard ship for g period of tims.
And we alwsys had st least one squadron on one of the carriers
training. 1 can reculi%g%?bn at laast one ogcasion one of our
sguadrons on boerd hedn't been properly treined, and I had been
talking to the commander of the wing about this very thing for
some timg, angd he assuread me sverything wes all vight, that I
dign't have to worry sbout snything. Uell, this souadron was

sent aboard the ship ~- I can't think of the admirslfs nane ok
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the moment. A bigwméall guy who was commandsy in chief out in the
d o b

Pacific later. {Pause) Stump. And Stumpgaggg 39 baen &n command
af this tesk fores at the time, and they hed s couple of ¢rashes
and giz did a pretty bum job. Sg I called the vommanding general

of thae lst Wing in -= or was 1t the 2Znd #ing?
G: 1 think it was the Znd Wing.

Erskine: The 2nd Ying.

fis It waentt Aip FEFLant, was it7

Erskine: MNo. And T reised hell with him and he didn't
improve, so pretty soon I seid, "This thing-ia'ﬁiégar thaft you,
my Frisnd, you are just relieved from cempaod,”

':(

83 1 know who it ls. From Kentucky. Ha's @ @ﬁ 0oy,
[

By

\
B I
Erskinsed No, West Cosst., I thipnk he iﬂ‘&ﬁill ?%%an Cushman s

L
R

.( ,‘
| ] A\
Epakinaes flo. Field got in & jam with me 1at9r Qhan he was Ny depuby.
/ ,\ N

\

/-v .

G Dh, I thought it was Field Harris. ‘;; i

ir He wos relisved $oo. ;

o [ I A A g T o - ; i . ¥ !j'i. ,‘,_ l ;| it o e . -
Epskine: Mo, he wesn't relieved. I geve Him a'lebtep of reprimend.
,/:; .
\\Y B
) '
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Gt Was this T,J. Cushman?
Eyakines Yesn, Tom Cushman.
fis He lives oub at Loronado.

Erskines He la a good Friend of mine; we used to go gposs hunting
together and everything liks that. But I told Ton EHEE hesn't a
damn thing to do withg the proficisccy of youyr owifit, snd you not
only failed, but you threw some pretiy damn bad xske reflection on
fapine Corps Avietion, and if you can't improve it, snd vou are
@ Little retivent about acuepting any stirong suggsetions, I don't
'+ﬁink you ape Fit to commend it, angd you are heyeby ralipved, rpight
heve, right now.” #And I must say that they pézksd perked up, and

1 didn®t have that happen a second time.
flr 1t wasg an smbarrassment.
Erekina: It was.

i we'il get to that when we coms to the point whar% you had

Fif Lant, because I think thers are probably a lm@u@%\gonaiﬁaraﬁiana

[
‘.\

| that you were foced with during thet period. O

You becamé the sxacubive officer of the 5&W'ﬁaﬁiﬁfﬁ ot the and
af May 1940, Hed you been ssked for, or wag ﬁhiﬁ ju&% # routine

agsignment?
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Erekineg: Noble wes in command of the regimeni at thet time,
and he told me that he had asked thaet I be agsigned to be his sxec.,
Tht's all I know sbout how I happened to go thers.

fis Had vou known Houston Hoble befors?
Erskinet: Yas, I'd known hiam for ysars. Ue were liesutenants togather.
fis+ He was just a couple of numbers senior Lo you, then.

Epskineat Yes, he was senicr t0 ma. And we want dowh to Luaniansmo
for 8 pericd of training, which was Pinally ended up to whers they

prognized the lst Harine Division.

Be I think the brigede was formed Firvat down thers.

i

Erskines That's right, they had the brigsde.

1y Now, you and Houston Noble and several atharwmf these peoplg -

, - L o .
Gen. Shepherd and so onApthur (arton -« uwere ligutenants together.

Wag there soniprity smongst lisutenants in ﬁha$ajdays?
!,
b

Erskine: Oh ves, N A
)

' ’vl . !
[
! \

‘! '\\
Gty 1 am sure there was by the numbar, but I nesp ﬂiﬁ\ynu-hawa

tha rospsct for @ senior lisutenant? Uas thire rank apongst then?
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Erskiney BHo, ws hod the same yelationship we have today. Exectly
the sema pelationship. OFf course once in s while, after ths
selection was started, this didn'¢ continue, because some of the
people would be passed over and those who wers selsciad went shead
of those who were passed gver. But your relationship ves the same

then as it i now,

s There used to be the old saying that the degree of rank amongst
lisutenonts waes like the degese of promiscuity or chastity emongst

prostitutes, which I am sure vou've heardl!

Erakine: I've hespd that. I think that interpreted would mean

that there wvere some lisutenants that wémm'mara dasirable than others.

A

Gt Well, 1 would intesrpret it to be that wsome lisutenants would

pull renik on other lisutenants.
Epskine: Oh yes, that's heppensdl é

s 1 mean, evan though you say you were ® lisutenants together,

e .
il of @ sudden Houston Noble became senior tg you by soms numbsrs . .

3 Lo
.
:' S

T
3
'
'a
2

Erekings He'd always been senior to mey that. uas never a poimt

of any friction betwsen the tuo of us. ﬁg/ajﬁht#@w of fact .+ 4 .

N f{ .
\ ' . ; \'\
L C

13 4
Uy 4 \
y

[ty MNo, I wasn't thinking of friction, I @a@ ﬁhiﬁkihg.ﬂhmut the

: ’ \
relationships «- you were still very clode regardless of the Fact
| o '

i .
. t
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that you were a llieutenant colonsl and he wgs a colongl.

Erekine: Yas., {(Psuse) Ue went to Guantanamo and we had guite a
strenuous scheduls down there. e had to prectically build our
camp. Thay gave us 2 place that had to be cleared off with bulle
dozers. Theve was @ lobt of corsl., It was ope of the opst migerable
damn camps I've ever been in. In order Lo pitch our tenis «= you
pouldn't uwe o regular tent steke because the surface was s hard
that your stakes would breesk; we had t0o use compressed air hanmers
to dig many of the holes Lp put the stakes in and to get them doun.
It was very dry and very dusty. Ug had a hell of a time.

Then sonme esxperts in the fisld -« I don't know wvhethey they
ware in the 8-4 Ssction or ghether it wase the medices, bubt I think
the medicos -- comeg up with & new type of labvine, which was built
above ground, and as I remewber there wes a sort of a cement box
with lide on top and holes in them, out in the open. And the idea
was that thay'd be burned out each days; we'd putﬂggﬁggai oil and
burn these things out. Well, that turned out to be pretty much
of & flop, becsuse the heat spusporated & lot of t%iﬁ excreba which
was in thers, amnd that went into the air and saatﬁer&d it srounds
and pretty soon the whole demn camp swelled like # iatring,

Ancther thing I remomber about that very cla&r@y@ big hed mn‘
allowance fop a couple of Folding chaips for ﬁhﬁ'ﬁaévquﬁxtamﬁ
offices and the company office, Uutside ufﬁthﬁtfth@rg wasnty
a thing in God's w8z world for s Marine Lo ﬁiﬁ an ddmé\thawa, end
to me thet was one of the grestest things, &é%auwa‘ﬁhﬂﬁxthey had

to go to the movies they sat on the ground; shen they wdnted Lo
| o
i

i
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alt down avound their tenis they sat on the ground, or sat on thelir
bunk. Houston and I got together and we got engineers io make soms
chesp 1ittle cunvas stools, which we issued. I doa't think we sver
did get enough to g2 go around the whole regiment, But 1 supposes
the asergeants all sat on the stools, Bubt that wﬁ@ ong of the things.
Doesn*t sesm impoptant, but I think it ie an impoptant pisce of
eruipment, A guy has tg sit down cnce in a whalai And if it pains

whers iz he going to sit?
fis Uho were your battalion commandorse?

Erskingy T swear I don't belleve I recsmbey. %harliﬁ an$k$ had
the lat Baktalion of the &th, I remember him uﬁxy mall, I ﬁan’t

romenber the other two battzlion cosmandors whq usTe Lh@?ﬁ.

N
\

f 1 ' \

it fdsorfiedn't taken over a batialion yett & . \

Erskine: No, not at that time. I don't r&wamwﬁr hqw lohg iimﬁﬁ

thers -= I think Pour or Pive months, uand I w&a mads H~4 s Hrigaﬁa 4.

‘{f { f-*iﬂ
' ! . ;’7
- .: / : \ /
U3 tho had the Brigade at this time? 77 PR
' ,;' !‘ ] .
i '/: : \\
Erakiness Hollend Smith., fnd &av@ ;rarstar Jd& %h%%ﬁ'mf\ﬁtaff¢
A \
And Dave Nimmer wog B-3, ! guess wa call &t,‘q oo N N
S T A ‘
. / " }\‘
f;ﬁ 4 Yﬁﬁ E 3 )':\\
: ir
E b
' [
. “, ‘;‘
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Frskine: e hed quite & tims dowun there, getting our supplias
stralghtened out. The system - the soonlled s lagistice -~ wasg

protty well foulsd up.

2 Hed Twining joined the 3 Section . . . Ko, I guess not, this

wos toe sarly.

Lrzkine: No. Anyway, T spent o great desl of time trying to get
things straightenad ovut, and find out what we were supposed to have
and what we did hove, 1 wse unfortunste anough %aipiuk up poms soarkd
gf rash, which gventuslly coversd my whols hmdy,?anﬂ I 1a5£\a11 my
fingernails, T asdnty got on my face, it didn't do much damags
thers, but I wes just pesling off. T made nﬂafakarci@a - é landing
gxercips - on Vieques, in which I had ny ﬁajamaé\mm gnd I maé
covered with sulfa cintment, and the only thing/th$t gave me any
relief whatscever wes to lie in the ses watart ﬂw. Broun was h@
chief surgeon, end he mode me do that for aui%e a whils, and i naily
1 doveloped @ terrific cough and he thought I wae a&aut ﬁinlahaﬂ,
s thoy sent me back home. T wvent to the Naval Haapi&al e thh
pld HukmxHeXd Neval Hospital which™8R® doen hf.:::a on E ktmat, Mtwh
is noy guerbtero occupied by sanier peopls *n the Nauy DGQG?@M&Hﬁ\kw
and Dr. Hook wes the surgeon thore at that tima, and h@\tenk me in
hend and gave me X-ray treatments and cleerad thiq‘thlng up, fifter
thot wae pwer I went beck to Guentice, ¥ guess, bw;auaa 3 ﬁmn’t
rampnber going back to Cubn, betouse hhay'ﬁ mnvaﬂ Lhe @SQﬂquartﬁra

up to fuantico, Then I was made chisf of Utmff. \
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ft: Here you the seniocy colonsl?
Erskiney ¥ wes still @ lieutenant oolonel, 1 belisbe, st that tioa,

fI: How was it thaot vou wers sslectod fopr chief of staff? Uho waas

the chief of staff bhefors?

Erakine: Srewster had boen chisf of staff, and for soms reason he
was transferred Lo conmand the camp then called Hew fiver. Camp
Lejauns, %o Holland Smith sppuinted me chief of svaff -« that wag

his praropative.

£y  There was no particular resson gutside of this fesling that
you wers pevrhaps the best?
sﬂﬁﬁ;

Erskins: He naver did tell me why, bub hehwﬁs thg chiaf of gstaff
and he issusd an order to that offect. ;

then we got back to Guantico we got involved in what you might
call the joint opsrational concept, in which the lst Marvine Division
and the lst Army Division would constitute an amphib%mma forge.
That meaznt thet we had to have a sort of & joint staff. So I aéésd
Gen, HeNailr to send me thres good Apmy officers with staff ahility;\\:j
fnd fe agnt down Jdohn Blizrard to be the 6G-2 af %hiS»namztypa of \
thing, and a man by the fams of Pascual as (e} w- ﬁhay-wéi@ both
linutenant colonsls at the tims -« and H.Mﬂj.jﬁwhm@i$$§r in the 4
saction, who had 4 very good grasp of logistics, in&idsh%aliyy
Blirzard was congidarably expérisnced in Army intélligﬂﬁpa,fand

a Lts Col, Ely, who I guess was in the 3 section. i \
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e had two of the ssction chiefs who weye Apmy and two Marines.
I belisve Lmmett Hetts was the G-4 st this time.

Looking into this thing ~~ of courss I had Army btraining «w
{we were meking plans then to go to the Azores) it struck me as if
we were setiting up here what amgunted to @ mesp corps level position,
Ve didn’t have any copps communications, so 1 asked the Army to come
through with & signal company, which they did, Aond 1 nust say we
had excallent support, oxcept that I konew that theece people wwre
reperting back terying to give the poorsst impression of the way we

operated.
fis Really?

Erskina: Oh ves, I am supe they did. I never aaw any of these
reports, but they wmade quite frequent visits to Usshington. It
didn*t bothsr me, because \L\'\S_ Lirst ane ™ euee CO“‘%"‘P 0\0\1\7 Awas
Sétes going to finished up real good, and they knew that. Bub I
khew it was done. But I would go vocaesionally up to Heedquarters
here in Weshington -- I think it was cellsd the Ground Force at
that time, and Gen. f{cNair was the commander, and have a telk with
him on these things, And Haj. Gen. Culbarson was in command of
the lst Army Division that was still stetioned at Fort Devens.

I might be well to mention E§§2§g§gg; d8G 18 m&u?a ; % this
vrpganization, They hed a meeting in Uashipgton. 1 sccompanied

Gen. Smiths

s Is that the ene in fipril of %41 when you uers up bharé»an

temporary dubty at Headguarters Herineg tnzpa?in‘unnd@ﬁb&an-with
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gonferring with the commander in chief US Atlantic Fleset? I think

for the rsst of the month you uere back and Torih from . « .

Eyxskines Ko, this wasg only one or tuo sessions. Ggn. Culberson,
the commander of the ist Apmy Divigion, was sanior to Gen. Smith.

it finally ended up with & meebting in Gen. Barshsll's office,
who was chisf of staff of the femy et thet time. 1 think the Navy
had given Gen. Holland Smith & very good sendoff and wanted him to
command this joint force. And I was present when Gon. Harshall
asked Gen. Lulbsrson -- he first ssld, "You know khat you arpe senior
to Smith, and I would like to ses Smith cvommand this orgenizetion,
Do you objest to serving under Smilth?® dnd with ﬁén; Zmith presani
Lulbarson said, "le” he did not, he had grest reepect for Holland
Smith., And that waes it. (Pauwse) 1 forget who relisved Gen.
Lulberson. Gen. Culberson was @ very senior major genaral in
the Army at thet time. GSo we sbazted our joint staff From that
point on, and I think it prebably was one of the Pipst raal
operatin